
A meeting of the CABINET will be held in the COUNCIL CHAMBER, 
PATHFINDER HOUSE, ST MARY'S STREET, HUNTINGDON PE29 3TN 
on THURSDAY, 7 SEPTEMBER 2006 at 11:30 AM and you are 
requested to attend for the transaction of the following business:- 
 
 
 
APOLOGIES 
 
  

Contact 
(01480) 

1. MINUTES  (Pages 1 - 6) 
 

 

 To approve as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting held 
on 20th July 2006. 
 

Mrs H Taylor 
388008 

2. MEMBERS' INTERESTS   
 

 

 To receive Members’ declarations as to personal and/or 
prejudicial interests and the nature of those interests in relation 
to any Agenda Item.  Please see notes 1 and 2 below. 
 

 

3. FINANCIAL STRATEGY  (Pages 7 - 18) 
 

 

 To consider a report by the Head of Financial Services . 
 

S Couper 
388103 

4. GROWING SUCESS - PERFORMANCE MONITORING  
(Pages 19 - 26) 

 

 

 To consider a report by the Head of Policy on progress of the 
review of the Corporate Plan. 
 

I Leatherbarrow 
388005 

5. THE SANCTUARY PROJECT  (Pages 27 - 28) 
 

 

 To receive a report by the Development and Community 
Manager seeking the Cabinet’s approval to sign and seal the 
agreement for the Countywide Domestic Violence Sanctuary 
Project. 
 

S Hansen 
388341 

6. PAXTON PITS NATURE RESERVE  (Pages 29 - 32) 
 

 

 To consider a report by the Head of Legal and Estates and the 
Countryside Services Manager regarding a proposal to extend 
Paxton Pits Nature Reserve. 
 
Plans showing the layout of the existing pits are attached to the 
agenda separately. 
 

K Phillips 
388260 

7. GAMBLING ACT 2005: STATEMENT OF LICENSING 
PRINCIPLES  (Pages 33 - 74) 

 

 

 By way of a report by the Head of Administration to consider a R Reeves 



draft Gambling Act 2005 Statement of Licensing Principles and 
to approve it as a basis for further discussion and consultation. 
 

388003 

8. PROMOTING BETTER HEALTH IN OLDER PEOPLE 
THROUGH PHYSICAL ACTIVITY  (Pages 75 - 86) 

 

 

 To consider a report by the Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
(Service Delivery) 
 

A Roberts 
388009 

9. GODMANCHESTER (POST STREET) CONSERVATION 
AREA MANAGEMENT PLAN  (Pages 87 - 88) 

 

 

 To consider the draft Conservation Area Management Plan for 
Godmanchester (Post Street) and to approve it as a basis for 
further discussion and consultation. 
 

R Probyn 
388430 

10. KEYSTON CONSERVATION AREA MANAGEMENT PLAN  
(Pages 89 - 90) 

 

 

 By way of a report by the Planning Policy Manager to consider 
the Draft Conservation Area Management Plan for Keyston 
and to approve it as a basis for further discussion and 
consultation. 
 

R Probyn 
388430 

11. GODMANCHESTER (EARNING STREET) CONSERVATION 
AREA MANAGEMENT PLAN  (Pages 91 - 92) 

 

 

 To consider the draft Conservation Area Management Plan for 
Godmanchester (Earning Street) and to approve it as a basis 
for further discussion and consultation. 
 

R Probyn 
388430 

12. STONELY CONSERVATION AREA MANAGEMENT PLAN  
(Pages 93 - 94) 

 

 

 To consider the Management Plan for Stonely and to approve 
it as a basis for further discussion and consultation. 
 

R Probyn 
388430 

13. URBAN DESIGN FRAMEWORK & MASTER PLAN:  ST. 
MARY'S URBAN VILLAGE, ST. NEOTS  (Pages 95 - 108) 

 

 

 To consider a report by the Planning Policy Manager on 
consultation responses received in respect of the draft Urban 
Design Framework for St. Mary’s village and seeking approval 
for the adoption of a revised framework as Interim Planning 
Guidance. 
 

R Probyn 
388430 

14. NEW OPERATIONS CENTRE AND HEADQUARTERS - 
REPORT OF THE CUSTOMER FIRST & ACCOMMODATION 
ADVISORY GROU  (Pages 109 - 112) 

 

 

 To consider the report of the meeting of the Customer First & 
Accommodation Advisory Group held on 26th July 2006. 

C Deller 
388007 



 
15. ST. NEOTS LEISURE CENTRE MANAGEMENT 

COMMITTEE - REPRESENTATION   
 

 

 To note the resignation of Councillor R W Eaton from St. Neots 
Leisure Centre Management Committee and consider the 
appointment of Councillor Mrs D E Collins to the vacancy 
following her nomination by the Liberal Democrat Group. 
 

 

16. EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC   
 

 

 To resolve: 
 

that the public be excluded from the meeting because 
the business to be transacted contains exempt 
information relating to terms proposed in the course of 
negotiations for the acquisition or disposal of property 
or the supply of goods or services. 

 

 

17. NEW OPERATIONS CENTRE AND HEADQUARTERS - 
PROGRESS UPDATE  (Pages 113 - 114) 

 

 

 To consider a report by the Head of Technical Services 
 

R Preston 
388340 

 Dated this 30th day of August 2006  
 

 

 

 Chief Executive  
 
Notes 
 
1.  A personal interest exists where a decision on a matter would affect to a 

greater extent than other people in the District – 
 

(a) the well-being, financial position, employment or business of the 
Councillor, a partner, relatives or close friends; 

 
 (b) a body employing those persons, any firm in which they are a 

partner and any company of which they are directors; 
 
 (c) any corporate body in which those persons have a beneficial 

interest in a class of securities exceeding the nominal value of 
£5,000; or 

 
 (d) the Councillor’s registerable financial and other interests. 
 
2. A personal interest becomes a prejudicial interest where a member of 

the public (who has knowledge of the circumstances) would reasonably 
regard the Member’s personal interest as being so significant that it is 
likely to prejudice the Councillor’s judgement of the public interest. 



 
 

Please contact Mrs H Taylor, Senior Democratic Services Officer, Tel No. 
01480 388008/e-mail Helen.Taylor@huntsdc.gov.uk /e-mail:   if you have 
a general query on any Agenda Item, wish to tender your apologies for 
absence from the meeting, or would like information on any decision 
taken by the Cabinet. 

Specific enquiries with regard to items on the Agenda should be directed 
towards the Contact Officer.  

Members of the public are welcome to attend this meeting as observers 
except during consideration of confidential or exempt items of business. 

 
 

Agenda and enclosures can be viewed on the District Council’s website – 
www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk (under Councils and Democracy). 

 
 

If you would like a translation of 
Agenda/Minutes/Reports or would like a 

large text version or an audio version 
please contact the Democratic Services Manager 

and we will try to accommodate your needs. 
 
 

Emergency Procedure 

In the event of the fire alarm being sounded and on the instruction of the 
Meeting Administrator, all attendees are requested to vacate the building via 
the closest emergency exit and to make their way to the base of the flagpole 
in the car park at the front of Pathfinder House. 



HUNTINGDONSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
 
 MINUTES of the meeting of the CABINET held in the Council 

Chamber, Pathfinder House, St Mary's Street, Huntingdon PE29 3TN 
on Thursday, 20 July 2006. 

   
 PRESENT: Councillor I C Bates – Chairman. 
   
  Councillors Mrs J Chandler, N J Guyatt, 

A Hansard, Mrs P J Longford, 
Mrs D C Reynolds, T V Rogers and 
L M Simpson. 

   
 APOLOGY: An apology for absence from the meeting 

was submitted on behalf of Councillor 
P L E Bucknell. 

 
 

37. MINUTES   
 
 The Minutes of the meeting of the Cabinet held on the 29th June 2006 

were approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman. 
 

38. MEMBERS' INTERESTS   
 
 Councillor Bates declared a personal interest in Minute No. 46 by 

virtue of his membership of Cambridgeshire Horizons. 
 
Councillor Rogers declared a personal interest in Minute No. 51 as 
the District Council’s representative on the Huntingdonshire Citizens 
Advice Bureau. 
 

39. REVENUE MONITORING:2005/06 REVENUE OUTTURN & 2006/07 
BUDGET   

 
 A report by the Head of Financial Services was submitted (a copy of 

which is appended in the Minute Book) which contained details of the 
outturn of revenue expenditure for 2005/06 and the variations 
between the original and revised budget provision for that year. 
 
Having noted the total net variations of £1.986m from the original 
budget and the action to be taken to enhance the budget monitoring 
process in the future, it was - 
 
RESOLVED 
 

(a) that the spending variations for the revenue budget 
2005/06 be noted; 

 
(b) that the preliminary view of additional savings required 

in 2006/07 be noted; and 
 
(c) that the action to be taken to improve financial 

monitoring as outlined in Annex D to the report be 
noted. 

Agenda Item 1

1



 
40. CAPITAL MONITORING 2005/06 OUTTURN AND 2006/07 BUDGET  
 
 A report by the Head of Financial Services was submitted (a copy of 

which is appended in the Minute Book) detailing the outturn of capital 
expenditure during 2005/06, and the implications for 2006/07. 
 
Having noted those projects which had been delayed in 2005/06 and 
information on the schemes which had incurred additional costs, it 
was 
 
RESOLVED 
 

(a) that the capital schemes monitoring reproduced  at 
Annex B to the report now submitted be noted; 

 
(b) that the spending variations reported in paragraphs 2.3 

and 2.4 of the report and the receipt of additional 
disabled facilities grant be noted; 

 
(c) that the deferrals from 2005/06 and the forecast 

variations for the current year as set out in paragraph 
4.1 be noted; and 

 
(d) that the revenue implications of the variations in 

2006/07 and 2007/08 be noted.  
 

41. BUDGET AND MTP PROCESS 2007/2012   
 
 Consideration was given to a report by the Head of Financial Services 

(a copy of which is appended in the Minute Book) regarding the 
preparation, consideration and review of the financial strategy, 
2007/08 Budget and the 2008/12 Medium Term Plan. 
 
Having been advised of the views expressed by the Overview and 
Scrutiny Panel (Corporate and Strategic Framework), the Cabinet 
 
RESOLVED 
 

(a) that the timetable and stages for considering the 
financial strategy, budget and MTP be approved; and 

 
 
(b) that the proposed approach to identify savings be 

noted. 
 

42. MEDIUM TERM PLAN:  REQUEST FOR THE RELEASE OF FUNDS   
 
 With the assistance of a report by the Head of Financial Services (a 

copy of which is appended in the Minute Book) the Cabinet 
 
RESOLVED 
 

that the relevant funding as outlined in the revised Annex A 
to the report now submitted be released from the Medium 
Term Plan (Scheme Ref: 615) in respect of the Social 
Housing Grant for Affordable Housing. 

2



 
43. QUARTERLY SUMMARY OF DEBTS WRITTEN OFF   
 
 The Cabinet received and noted the report by the Head of Revenue 

Services (a copy of which is appended in the Minute Book) 
summarising debts which had been written off during April-June 2006 
as irrecoverable. 
 

44. HOUSING STRATEGY 2006-11   
 
 By way of a report by the Head of Housing Services (a copy of which 

is appended in the Minute Book) Members were acquainted with the 
content of the Housing Strategy 2006-11, Empty Homes Strategy 
2006-11 and Homeless Strategy 2006-08. 
 
Having been advised that the documents would be submitted to Go-
East, in September 2006, the Cabinet 
 
RESOLVED 
 

that the Council be recommended to approve the Housing 
Strategy 2006-11, Empty Homes Strategy 2006-11 and 
Homelessness Strategy 2006-08 for submission to Go-East. 

 
45. THE DUTY TO PROMOTE RACE EQUALITY:  UPDATE TO RACE 

EQUALITY SCHEME   
 
 Consideration was given to a report by the Head of Policy (a copy of 

which is appended in the Minute Book) to which was attached a copy 
of a Race Equality Scheme for the Council as required by the Race 
Relations Act. 
 
Having noted the aims and objectives of the scheme and the 
associated action plan, the Cabinet 
 
RESOLVED 
 

that the contents of the Race Equality Scheme and 
associated Action Plan attached to the report now submitted 
be approved. 

 
46. QUALITY OF LIFE STRATEGIES - ARTS CULTURE, MAJOR 

SPORTS FACILITIES, & GREEN INFRASTRUCTURE.   
 
 By way of a report by the Head of Planning Services, the Cabinet was 

invited to consider three Quality of Life Documents:  
 

♦ Green Infrastructure Strategy for the Cambridge Sub-
Region; 

♦ A major sports facilities strategy for the Cambridge Sub-
Region; and 

♦ Cambridge Sub-Region Culture and Arts Strategy 
commissioned by Cambridgeshire Horizons to help shape 
and guide growth across the sub-region.  Copies of the 
documents are appended in the Minute Book. 

 
Whereupon, it was  

3



 
RESOLVED 
 

(a) that the Green Infrastructure Strategy for the 
Cambridge Sub-Region be adopted as technical 
guidance to guide the preparation of any open 
space/recreation/leisure strategies and as a material 
consideration in the determination of planning 
applications and appeals; 

 
(b) that projects in the Green Infrastructure Strategy for 

the Cambridge Sub-Region in Huntingdonshire be 
considered for incorporation in the forthcoming 
Planning Obligations Supplementary Planning 
Document; and 

 
 
(c) that the content of the Cambridge Sub-Region Culture 

and Arts Strategy and the Major Sports Facilities 
Strategy be noted and the outcomes of further 
discussion with Cambridgeshire Horizons and 
adjoining authorities on the provision and financing of 
strategic sports and culture and arts facilities awaited.  

 
47. EAST OF ENGLAND PLAN: REPORT OF EXAMINATION IN 

PUBLIC   
 
 With the aid of a report by the Head of Planning Services (a copy of 

which is appended in the Minute Book) the Cabinet was acquainted 
with a summary of the independent Panel’s report of the Public 
Examination of the draft East of England Plan. Members were 
reminded that the plan outlined the strategic planning approach 
proposed for the East of England until 2021 and would set out the 
Strategic Planning Framework to guide future development.  
 
In considering the terms of a suggested response, Members also 
endorsed references with regard to a limitation of four sub-regions in 
the Eastern Region and the need for appropriate steps to ensure the 
availability of adequate water resources.   
 
RESOLVED 
 

that the Head of Planning Services, after consultation with 
the Executive Councillor for Planning Strategy, be 
authorised to make representations to the East of England 
Regional Assembly based on the content of paragraph 3 of 
the report now submitted. 

 
48. GREAT FEN PROJECT - MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT   
 
 Further to Minute No.02/32 and by way of report by the Director of 

Operational Services (a copy of which is appended in the Minute 
Book) Members were acquainted with progress on the project to 
restore over 3,000 hectares of wetland in and around the Woodwalton 
Fen and Holme Fen Nature Reserves by way of a partnership of 
organisations comprising the District Council, the Environment 
Agency, English Nature and the Wildlife Trust for Cambridgeshire. 

4



 
Having considered the content of the draft Memorandum of 
Agreement designed to replace and strengthen the existing 
Memorandum of Understanding for the project, the Cabinet 
 
RESOLVED 
 

that the Director of Operational Services be authorised to 
sign a Memorandum of Agreement between the Wildlife 
Trust, English Nature, Environment Agency and the District 
Council in relation to the Great Fen Project. 

 
49. ST NEOTS CONSERVATION AREA:  BOUNDARY REVIEW, 

CHARACTER STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT PLAN 
CONSULTATION DOCUMENTS   

 
 Consideration was given to a report by the Head of Planning Services 

(a copy of which is appended in the Minute Book) to which was 
attached draft copies of a Boundary Review, Character Statement 
and Management Plan for the St Neots Conservation Area. 
 
In noting the main aims and objectives of the documents, Members 
were advised that the boundary review proposed to amalgamate the 
existing conservation areas in St. Neots, Eynesbury and Eaton Socon 
in line with English Heritage’s general guidance on the management 
of conservation areas.  Whereupon, it was 
 
RESOLVED 
 

that the Boundary Review, Character Statement and 
Management Plan for the St Neots Conservation Area be 
approved as a basis for public consultation. 

 
50. CONFIDENTIALITY AGREEMENT   
 
 Members considered a report by the Head of Legal and Estates (a 

copy of which is appended in the Minute Book) regarding the possible 
relocation of Marshall of Cambridge Aerospace Limited and the 
availability of the Company’s business plans in order to inform 
discussion among the local authorities and other organisations 
involved.   
 
Having acknowledged the commercially sensitive nature of the 
business plan, the Cabinet 
 
RESOLVED 
 

that the Director of Central Services be authorised to enter 
into a Confidentiality Agreement with Marshall of Cambridge 
Aerospace Limited on behalf of the District Council and the 
Director of Operational Services appointed as the 
designated Officer under the Agreement. 

 
51. CITIZENS ADVICE BUREAU, HUNTINGDON   
 
 Consideration was given to a report by the Head of Legal and Estates 

(a copy of which is appended in the Minute Book) outlining details of a 

5



request from the Citizens Advice Bureau for the Council to act as a 
guarantor of a lease of new premises, in All Saints Passage, 
Huntingdon. 
 
Whereupon, it was 
 
RESOLVED 
 

that the Executive Director of Central Services, be 
authorised to approve arrangements for the Council to act 
as guarantor for a lease of premises in All Saints Passage, 
Huntingdon to the Citizens Advise Bureau. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Chairman 
 

6



  
CABINET 7 SEPTEMBER 2006 
  

FINANCIAL STRATEGY 
(Report by the Head of Financial Services) 

 
1 PURPOSE 
1.1 This report updates the Financial Forecast so that any necessary 

changes to the Council’s Financial Strategy and the approach to this 
year’s review of the MTP can be assessed. It also seeks Member 
approval of a list of proposed savings. 

  
1.2 This report will be considered by the Overview and Scrutiny Panel 

(Corporate and Strategic Framework) on 5 September and Cabinet will 
then have the opportunity to consider their comments on 7 September 
prior to making their own recommendations to Council (27 September). 

 
 
2 BACKGROUND 
2.1 The Council’s existing financial strategy and Medium Term Plan (MTP) 

recognise the challenge facing the Council if it is to balance the 
increased costs of higher than RPI inflation and increasing public 
expectations for services (whether from local people or via the 
Government) with constraints on resources, due to Government Grants 
not rising proportionally and wishing to minimise Council Tax increases. 

 
2.2 Previously, the Council planned to increase the Band D Council Tax by 

£12 per year but, as a result of being capped, limited future increases in 
Council Tax to the higher of 5% and that resulting from a 5% increase in 
Budget Requirement to minimise the risk of further capping and this has 
become a key element of the future strategy. It significantly reduces the 
options available despite the Council Tax level (£104.69) being very low. 
It is in the lowest 8% of the 238 English District Councils which range 
from £59 to £275 with an average of £145. 

 
2.3 The table below summarises the plan agreed last year which was based 

on identifying significant savings over the coming years. 
 

APPROVED PLAN  Budget MTP 
 2006/07 2007/08 2008/09 2009/10 2010/11 
  Revenue Spending  £M £M £M £M £M 
Net Spending before savings  19.3 20.7 22.6 25.0 26.9 
Savings Target -1.0 -1.6 -2.2 -2.8 -3.3 
Net Spending 18.3 19.1 20.5 22.2 23.5 
Funding -16.8 -18.0 -18.9 -19.8 -20.8 
DEFICIT – Met from Reserves -1.5 -1.2 -1.6 -2.4 -2.7 

Council Tax £104.69 £109.91 £116.50 £123.60 £134.33 
Increase % 5.0% 5.0% 6.0% 6.1% 8.7% 
Capital Spending £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 
Met from Reserves 14.5 18.0 11.9 1.1 1.1 
Borrowing 0 0 0.8 6.1 3.9 
Total 14.5 18.0 12.7 7.2 5.0 

Agenda Item 3

7



2.4 The Council is debt-free and has high levels of revenue and capital 
reserves (£18M and £42M respectively at April 2006) which currently 
provide significant financial flexibility and provide the lead time to bring 
efficiency savings on line. Maximising efficiency savings will limit the 
need for reductions in services but inevitably there will need to be some 
in due course. 

 
2.5 The Council has continued to spend carefully and this, together with a 

number of events outside of its control, has resulted in last year’s outturn 
being £2m less than budgeted. This can be retained in Revenue 
Reserves to increase future flexibility. £145k of revenue spending and 
£3M of capital spending have been brought forward to the current year. 
Cabinet received a report on the outturn at its July meeting and 
approved a number of measures to improve the accuracy of budget 
monitoring. 

 
2.6 Much of last year’s lower than expected outturn was due to temporary 

circumstances but a thorough review is underway and opportunities to 
reduce budgets will be taken and added into the savings exercise in due 
course. 
 

2.7 Although additional revenue reserves provide more flexibility the Council 
faces unavoidable significant increases in its costs over the coming 
years such as inflation in excess of RPI (particularly on fuel, pensions 
and pay) and the loss of substantial interest on reserves as they are 
used to fund capital expenditure (in the next few years) and revenue 
expenditure (more gradually). Thus the identification and delivery of 
savings remains an unavoidable element in the Council’s financial 
strategy. 

 
 
3. SAVINGS 
 
3.1 Overview & Scrutiny and Cabinet received a report in June/July that 

stated that the aim should be for the Council to reach the position where 
the savings for the following year are identified by the preceding 
December. It was envisaged that this might not be achievable for the 
2007/08 savings due to the time needed to deal with the 2006/7 target.  

 
3.2 The Chief Officers’ Management Team, following discussions with 

Executive Councillors, has identified a list of proposed savings for 
member consideration. The table below summarises the results which 
are shown in detail in Annex A. 

 

 2006/07 2007/08 2008/09 2009/10 2010/11 
 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 
Total of savings proposals Min -539 -1,149 -1,375 -1,375 -1,321 
 Max -539 -1,271 -1,525 -1,525 -1,471 
Other net  variations identified to 
date (temporary and permanent) 

 -42 +1 -184 -184 -184  

Combined Position Min -581 -1,148 -1,559 -1,559 -1,505 
 Max -581 -1,270 -1,709 -1,709 -1,655 
      
Savings Targeted for this exercise -574 -1,123 -1,700 -1,800 -1,800 
      
Savings Target Per 2006 Budget  
(net of savings previously identified) 

-574 -1,123 -1,709 -2,346 -2,898 

8



 
3.3 Given that the targets for 2006/07, 2007/08 and potentially 2008/09 can 

be achieved it has been assumed for the purpose of this forecast that 
savings targets are achievable. This will be reviewed in the next cycle of 
meetings, to take account of Member decisions on the specific items, 
and each year when the forecast is revised. 
 

 
 
4. PLANNING ASSUMPTIONS 
 
4.1 The following items need to be considered in order to update the 

forecast: 
 

• Inflation : General inflation, pay inflation and assumed increases in 
fees and charges 

• Interest Rates 
• 2005/06 outturn (revenue and capital) 
• Growth in the Council Tax base 
• Growth in Government Support 
• Minimum level of revenue reserves 
• Service Changes 2006 to March 2011 
• Service Variations post April 2011 
• Other significant items. 
 

4.2 Inflation 
General inflation continues to be based on 2.5%. Pay inflation has been 
retained at 3% (the 2006 award was 3%), additional allowance has been 
included for fuel prices which continue to escalate and pension costs are 
based on the actuary’s requirements up to 2010/11. It will be important 
to regularly review these figures each year, as Huntingdonshire’s 
position on the edge of the buoyant Cambridge sub-region and national 
shortages of staff in key professions result in additional upwards 
pressures on pay levels and contract prices. 

 
4.3 Interest Rates  

Forecasting future interest rates is problematic at the best of times. It 
has been assumed that we will earn 5% on our investments this year, 
5.25% in 2007/08 and 5% thereafter. This will be reviewed at later 
stages of the budget process. An extra 0.25% would produce an extra 
£100k next year but as reserves fall in later years the impact becomes 
insignificant. 
 
The Interest rate for borrowing has been assumed at 4.35% when 
required. 

 
4.4 2005/06 outturn (revenue and capital) 

Reserves have been adjusted for the actual position at April 2006 and 
allowance made for the revenue and capital spending brought forward 
from 2005/06. 
 

4.5 Growth in the Council Tax base  
Historically it has been assumed that new properties being built will 
result in a 1% increase in the Council Tax that would be collected each 
year. Recent experience is showing that this is too high because 
changes in society are resulting in an increased demand for smaller 
houses (with lower levels of Council Tax) and more houses are being 

9



occupied by single people who are eligible for a 25% discount. The 
growth factor has therefore been reduced to 0.5% from 2007/08 
onwards. 

 
4.6 Growth in Government Support 

Members will recall that the Government are still withholding £547k of 
grant that the Council is due to receive in order to provide safety nets to 
Councils who are due to have their grant reduced. The speed with which 
we will get this is problematical but the new 2 year grant announcement 
gives us some expectation that we will get a further £180k next year. 
 
Historically it has been assumed that grant will rise by a little less than 
inflation but there is a reasonable logic to assuming there will be some 
growth due to population increases as this is the main driver for the 
distribution of grant to District Councils. However this was not previously 
allowed for because the Grant System used to assume that all Councils 
levied their Council Tax at a standard rate which was higher than our low 
level, thus removing much of the benefit. Therefore whilst this 
assumption has apparently disappeared in the new grant system it 
would be sensible to be rather cautious in any allowance we make for 
any growth. The 2.25% annual increase has therefore been increased to 
2.75%. 

 
4.7 Minimum level of Revenue Reserves 

The Forecast is currently based on allowing Revenue Reserves to fall to 
£2m and then to be retained at that level. The Council must have 
sufficient reserves to meet any unexpected difficulties without having to 
temporarily cut services until it can increase the following year’s Council 
Tax or make alternative service cuts. The actual level is a matter for 
detailed analysis as they fall towards that level. In the meantime it 
should be noted that £2M will represent less than 4.5% of gross revenue 
expenditure by that time. 

 
4.8 Service Variations 2006 to March 2011. 

The approved MTP contains many service developments both revenue 
and capital. The capital schemes amount to £66M gross, £57M net of 
grants and contributions from other bodies. 

 
4.9 Service Variations post March 2011 

It is necessary to consider what general provision for service variations 
should be made beyond the level to March 2011 agreed in the MTP. It 
has been assumed that, given the financial position the Council will be 
facing in the coming years, there should be no additional provision for 
revenue developments but £3.7M per year for capital investment (at 
current prices). This would be sufficient for example to fund: 
 

 
 £000 
Social Housing Grant 1,000 
Leisure Centre Maintenance (300) 
and regular replacement of fitness 
equipment (200) 

500 

Disabled Facilities Grants 900 
Vehicle Replacements 600 
Other items 700 
 3,700 

 

10



No allowance has been made for unavoidable additional costs other 
than the Contingency Reserve (£132k). It has been assumed that any 
additional items that do not meet the criteria for the reserve would need 
to be funded from savings. 

 
4.10 Other significant items 

Various items have emerged from last year’s outturn and/or the current 
years monitoring that are significant enough to be included in the 
forecast at this time. They include:  
 

• £1.5M of capital spending will be delayed from 2006/07 to 
2007/08 

• £170k permanent reduction in land charges income. 
• A forecast additional cost of concessionary fares of £155k in 

2006/07 and £185k in 2007/08. The Council should receive extra 
grant in 2008/09 to fund the new Government scheme from April 
2008. 

• Additional salary costs being properly rechargeable to capital. 
• Extra interest on investments. 

 
4.11 Items not taken account of 

There are also some items that it is not possible to take account of at 
this stage but which may need to be brought into the MTP before it is 
approved next February if additional information becomes available in 
time. These include: 

 
• The VAT position on off-street car parking which is the subject of 

continuing judgements and appeals. If it is finally resolved in favour 
of local authorities there will be a benefit of £150k per year. 

• Increases in pension contributions post 2010/11 as the 
Government is consulting on changes to the benefits from the 
scheme and the level of contributions from employees. Any 
changes that emerge are likely to have some financial impact by 
2012/13. 

• The Government’s planned White Paper on Local Government and 
the Lyon’s Report on Local Government Funding. 

 
4.12 Sensitivity 

The Financial Forecast takes a longer-term view and, within that time 
frame, many of its assumptions will turn out to be inaccurate and for this 
reason section 6 below considers how sensitive it is to variations in the 
main assumptions. Local government exists in a dynamic environment of 
political change, both local and national, and increasing customer 
expectations. Because of these uncertainties the existence of a strategy 
becomes more important as, each time there is a significant change, the 
impact on the Council’s plan can be identified and addressed 

 
 
5. THE UPDATED FORECAST 
 
5.1 The result of the updating described above is quite neutral in its affect. 

The overall total of the savings required has risen from £5.8M by 
2016/17 (as reported to February Council) to £6.0M in 20017/18 before 
then falling slightly to £5.9M in 2018/19. In future reviews  the profile can 
be fine-tuned to smooth this but, in the meantime, only minor variations 
to the use of reserves or to the Council Tax increases in particular years 
allows the planned programme of savings to be retained thus continuing 

11



the strategy agreed by the Council last year. The chart below illustrates 
this and the actual figures are shown in Annex B. 

 
 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

20
06

/07

20
07

/08

200
8/09

20
09

/10

20
01

0/1
1

20
01

1/1
2

20
01

2/1
3

20
01

3/1
4

200
14/1

5

20
01

5/1
6

20
01

6/1
7

20
17

/18

20
18

/19

£M

Gross  
Spending

Net 
Spending

Savings

 
 
 
5.2 However the savings identified for consideration in Annex A are only the 

starting point of the process and so officers will be reviewing the current 
approved MTP schemes and any other unavoidable adjustments to the 
budget during September ready for the next phase of the Budget/MTP 
process which will be the subject of reports to Overview and Scrutiny 
and Cabinet during November. Whilst revenue schemes make the most 
immediate contribution to savings there is also an impact from capital 
expenditure. In the short term each £1m of capital that can be saved 
reduces revenue spending by the interest that can be earned on that 
money, say £50k per year, but this eventually means less borrowing is 
needed which would save a further £40k per year in loan repayments. 

 
 

 
6. SENSITIVITY AND RISKS 
 
6.1 The figures in the Forecast have been adjusted for changes in some 

factors, to see if they have a significant impact. The table below shows 
the factor that has been adjusted and the resulting change in the level of 
savings that would be required: 

12



 
 Variation in annual 

permanent savings required 
by 2018/19 

Interest rates investment 
0.25% variation from 2007/08 

Negligible due to drop in 
investments already assumed 

Interest Rates Borrowing 
0.25% variation from 2007/08 £0.1M 
General Inflation  
0.25% variation from 2007/08 

Negligible as long as fees and 
charges follow same trend 

Pay Inflation  
0.25% variation from 2007/08 £0.9M 
Government Grant  
0.25% variation from 2007/08 

£0.4M 
Logically some chance that if 
pay inflation rises there is less 

chance of grant decreases 
Capital Spend 
Extra £1M per year from 2011/12 £0.7M 

 
 
6.2 The above table specifically considers the long term impact. For 

example a 0.25% reduction in investment rate would cost the Council 
around £100k next year and if nothing could be done to counteract this 
extra cost then revenue reserves would need to be used more quickly 
resulting in the targeted savings needing to be found sooner than 
planned. It would not have a permanent impact though as the forecast is 
already based on reserves falling to just £2m by 2017/18. 

 
6.3 This Forecast is based on the Government maintaining the dual element 

to its capping regime that it has to date. This has a reasonable likelihood 
of continuing because the legislation requires capping to be primarily 
based on increases in a Council’s Budget Requirement (i.e. net 
spending reduced by any funding from revenue reserves). At the same 
time every Government has been keen to headline capping in terms of 
the increase in Council Tax. Therefore capping criteria have been based 
on an Authority failing two tests i.e. the Council Tax increase has 
exceeded the Government’s target AND the budget requirement has 
exceeded the Government’s target. These two targets do not have to be 
the same percentage but the forecast is based on the Council being safe 
from capping as long as the Council Tax increase does not exceed 5% 
AND the budget requirement does not exceed 5%.  

 
6.4 Government pronouncements will have to be reviewed each year before 

the Council Tax is formally set but it should be appreciated that, even 
then, the risk cannot be removed because the Government refuses to 
actually announce the capping level in advance of Council Tax levels 
being set. 

 
6.5 Fortunately, the Council’s reserves still allow flexibility if the Council 

were to be capped again. 
 
 
7. CONCLUSIONS 
 
7.1 Opportunities to increase funding from fees and charges are limited in 

some services due to statutory or commercial limitations. Council Tax 
increases are restricted due to potential capping by the Government. 

 

13



7.2 Capital reserves will be used by 2008/09 and revenue reserves will be 
gradually reduced to leave a minimum level of £2M. 

 
7.3 Borrowing will be used to fund capital spending once reserves have 

been used. This will be more expensive than simply losing interest on 
reserves. 

 
7.4 Therefore continued savings must be found to achieve a balanced plan. 
  
7.5 Annex A lists the savings for member consideration. If approved, these 

exceed the target for 2006/07 and 2007/08 and thus highlight that, at 
least for the time being, the updated Forecast, highlighted in the chart in 
paragraph 5.1 and detailed in Annex B, is realistic.  

 
7.6 The changes to the forecast have been quite neutral allowing the 

previously agreed savings profile to be maintained with just an extra 
£100k being needed by 2018/19. 

 
7.7 Significant savings are still required in later years and so the budget and 

MTP schemes, both revenue and capital, will be reviewed ready for the 
Budget/MTP report in November. 

 
7.8 Cabinet will have the comments from the Overview & Scrutiny 

Committee available when they consider this report. 
 
 
 
8. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
8.1 Cabinet is recommended to recommend to Council: 
 

• That the strategy of a steady profile of savings as shown in the 
chart in Paragraph 5.1 and detailed in Annex B be retained. 

 
• The savings items in Annex A that they support. 

 
• That they note that Officers will review all budgets and MTP 

schemes (revenue and capital) to identify any further 
opportunities for savings. 

 
 

 
 

 
 
ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT 1985 
Source Documents: 
1. Working papers in Financial Services 
2. 2005/06 Outturn, 2006/07 Revenue Budget and the 2007/2011 MTP 
 
Contact Officer:  

Steve Couper, Head of Financial Services   01480 388103

14



A
N

N
EX

 A
  

Pr
op

os
ed

 S
av

in
g 

 
 

Ex
pe

ct
ed

 R
ev

en
ue

 S
av

in
g 

Co
m

m
en

ts
 

Ri
sk

 
 

 
 

20
06

/07
 

20
07

/08
 

20
08

/09
 

20
09

/10
 

20
10

/11
 

 
 

 
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

  
 

 
Inc

re
as

e C
ou

rt 
fee

s 
JB

 
45

 
45

 
45

 
45

 
45

Hi
gh

er
 co

sts
 be

ing
 re

co
ve

re
d f

ro
m 

de
bto

rs.
 

Al
re

ad
y i

mp
lem

en
ted

. 

Re
ve

nu
es

 an
d B

en
efi

ts 
JB

 
12

 
12

 
12

 
12

 
12

Mi
no

r r
ed

uc
tio

ns
 

Lit
tle

 
Fin

an
ce

 
SC

 
23

 
23

 
23

 
23

 
23

Mi
no

r r
ed

uc
tio

ns
 

Lit
tle

 
IC

T 
Inf

ra
str

uc
tur

e 
CH

 
40

 
40

 
40

 
40

 
40

No
 ex

pa
ns

ion
 in

 C
am

bs
 di

re
ct 

& 
CC

N 
co

ntr
ac

ts 
for

 ca
ll c

en
tre

. 
 

Ca
ll C

en
tre

 
CH

 
17

 
17

 
17

 
17

 
17

Mi
no

r r
ed

uc
tio

ns
 

Lit
tle

 
Re

cru
it f

ew
er

 C
all

 C
en

tre
 A

dv
iso

rs 
CH

 
38

 
38

 
38

 
38

 
38

Re
cru

it o
nly

 4 
no

t 6
 ne

w 
ad

vis
or

s. 
  T

he
 

re
du

ce
d c

ap
ac

ity
 to

 tr
an

sfe
r s

er
vic

es
 w

ill 
me

an
 th

at 
for

 th
os

e s
er

vic
es

 th
at 

ar
e n

ot 
tra

ns
fer

re
d t

he
re

 w
ill 

be
 no

 
co

rre
sp

on
din

g i
mp

ro
ve

me
nt 

in 
cu

sto
me

r 
se

rvi
ce

. 

W
e m

ay
  o

bta
in 

a l
ow

er
 le

ve
l o

f 
co

st 
re

du
cti

on
 in

 ba
ck

 of
fic

e 
fun

cti
on

s. 

 
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
Ch

an
ge

 D
ist

ric
t e

lec
tio

ns
 to

 al
l o

ut 
ev

er
y 4

 ye
ar

s s
tar

tin
g 

in 
20

01
0/1

1 
RR

 
  

 
 

 
-5

4
Su

bs
eq

ue
nt 

sa
vin

gs
 of

 £8
7k

 pe
r y

ea
r in

 
no

n-
ele

cti
on

 ye
ar

s  
 

Re
du

ce
 C

ab
ine

t m
em

be
rsh

ip 
by

 on
e 

RR
 

3 
7 

7 
7 

7
 

 
Re

vie
w 

Co
nfe

re
nc

e a
tte

nd
an

ce
s f

or
 M

em
be

rs 
an

d 
Of

fic
er

s 
RR

 
0 

10
 

10
 

10
 

10
 

 

De
let

e A
dm

in 
su

pp
or

t p
os

t 
RR

 
20

 
20

 
20

 
20

 
20

 
 

Sa
vin

gs
 fr

om
 sh

ar
e o

f C
om

mu
nit

y S
er

vic
es

 ad
mi

n c
os

ts 
re

lat
ing

 to
 Le

isu
re

 
RR

 
0 

10
 

10
 

10
 

10
 

 

Re
du

cti
on

 in
 Le

isu
re

 C
en

tre
 T

ra
ine

es
 (2

) 
RR

 
10

 
20

 
20

 
20

 
20

 
 

Iin
cre

as
e i

nc
om

e f
ro

m 
dir

ec
t d

eb
it s

wi
mm

ing
 le

ss
on

s 
RR

 
30

 
30

 
30

 
30

 
30

 
 

Re
pla

ce
 S

t Iv
o S

ho
oti

ng
 R

an
ge

 w
ith

 ex
ten

de
d F

itn
es

s 
Su

ite
 or

 si
mi

lar
  

RR
 

0 
25

 
75

 
75

 
75

Ne
t o

f lo
st 

int
er

es
t o

n £
50

0k
 ca

pit
al 

inv
es

tm
en

t r
eq

uir
ed

 
 

Inc
re

as
e L

eis
ur

e C
en

tre
 in

co
me

 th
ro

ug
h i

nc
re

as
e t

o 
Ad

va
nta

ge
 pr

ice
s f

or
 al

l m
em

be
r c

ate
go

rie
s 

RR
 

0 
25

 
25

 
25

 
25

 
ad

ve
rse

 pu
bli

c r
ea

cti
on

 – 
po

ss
ibl

e l
os

s o
f c

us
tom

 

 

15



 

Pr
op

os
ed

 S
av

in
g 

 
 

Ex
pe

ct
ed

 R
ev

en
ue

 S
av

in
g 

Co
m

m
en

ts
 

Ri
sk

 
 

 
20

06
/07

 
20

07
/08

 
20

08
/09

 
20

09
/10

 
20

10
/11

 
 

 
 

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

 
 

Inc
re

as
e o

the
r le

isu
re

 ac
tiv

ity
 pr

ice
s a

bo
ve

 ge
ne

ra
l ra

te 
of 

inf
lat

ion
 

RR
 

0 
20

 
20

 
20

 
20

 
 

 

Re
du

ce
 bu

sin
es

s s
up

po
rt 

pu
bli

ca
tio

ns
: tr

an
sfe

r t
o D

ist
ric

t 
W

ide
, e

nh
an

ce
d W

eb
-se

rvi
ce

 
IL 

10
 

10
 

10
 

10
 

10
 

Fu
rth

er
 co

ns
ide

ra
tio

n t
o b

e g
ive

n a
lso

 to
 

re
du

cin
g v

olu
me

 of
 ot

he
r p

ub
lic

ati
on

s b
y 

wa
y o

f m
or

e i
nte

ns
ive

 us
e o

f “
Di

str
ict

 
W

ide
”. 

 

Mo
re

 ad
ve

rtis
ing

 in
 “D

ist
ric

t W
ide

” 
IL 

10
 

10
 

10
 

10
 

10
 

 
 

Ce
as

e e
mp

loy
ing

 M
od

er
n A

pp
re

nti
ce

s 
PD

 
10

 
40

 
40

 
40

 
40

 
 

 
 

 
  

 
 

 
  

 
 

De
let

e O
ffic

es
 R

en
ew

als
 F

un
d a

nn
ua

l c
on

trib
uti

on
 

RP
 

57
 

57
 

57
 

57
 

57
 

 
 

Co
ve

r v
ac

an
t A

rch
ite

ctu
ra

l T
ec

hn
ici

an
 P

os
t w

ith
 m

od
er

n 
ap

pr
en

tic
e. 

RP
 

4 
7 

7 
7 

7 
A 

les
s e

xp
er

ien
ce

d O
ffic

er
 in

 po
st.

  S
om

e 
los

s o
f c

ap
ac

ity
. 

No
ne

 

Re
sc

he
du

lin
g o

f R
efu

se
/R

ec
yc

lin
g c

oll
ec

tio
n 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts 

RW
 

Mi
n

0 
78

 
10

0 
10

0 
10

0 
Ef

fic
ien

cy
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

t 
De

pe
nd

an
t o

n r
es

ult
s o

f 
co

ns
ult

an
ts 

re
po

rt 
 

 
M

ax
0 

20
0 

25
0 

25
0 

25
0 

 
 

Re
du

ce
d r

efu
se

 tip
pin

g c
os

ts 
RW

 
46

 
46

 
46

 
46

 
46

 
Al

re
ad

y A
gr

ee
d 

No
ne

 
PC

SO
 co

ntr
ibu

tio
n 

SL
 

11
0 

32
5 

32
5 

32
5 

32
5 

Tr
an

sfe
r o

f c
os

ts 
to 

Po
lic

e. 
Ni

l 
Re

du
ce

 E
me

rg
en

cy
 P

lan
nin

g t
ra

ini
ng

  
SL

 
5 

10
 

10
 

10
 

10
 

Ma
y b

e f
un

de
d b

y C
ou

nty
 

 
De

let
e c

on
trib

uti
on

 to
 P

CT
 fo

r D
ire

cto
r o

f P
ub

lic
 H

ea
lth

 
SL

 
0 

9 
9 

9 
9 

PC
T 

re
str

uc
tur

ing
, H

DC
 no

t c
om

mi
tte

d t
o 

co
ntr

ibu
tin

g t
o n

ew
 C

ou
nty

wi
de

 D
PH

) 
 

Re
du

cti
on

 in
 G

ra
nts

 – 
Co

mm
un

ity
 In

itia
tiv

es
 

SL
 

0 
50

 
50

 
50

 
50

 
Lo

ss
 of

 se
rvi

ce
 to

 ch
ar

ita
ble

 gr
ou

ps
.  N

o 
ne

w 
gr

an
ts 

ab
ov

e e
xis

tin
g c

om
mi

tm
en

ts.
 

 

Re
vie

w 
of 

Ca
r P

ar
kin

g S
tra

teg
y 

SI
 

Ni
l 

50
 

20
0 

20
0 

20
0 

An
tic

ipa
ted

 ex
tra

 in
co

me
 fo

llo
wi

ng
 S

tra
teg

y 
Re

vie
w 

Th
is 

wo
uld

 re
qu

ire
 ch

ar
gin

g f
or

 
so

me
 lo

ng
 st

ay
. 

Re
du

cti
on

 in
 P

lan
nin

g C
on

se
rva

tio
n G

ra
nts

 
SI

 
35

 
35

 
35

 
35

 
35

 
Le

ss
 gr

an
t a

id 
to 

bu
ild

ing
s a

t r
isk

 an
d a

 
re

du
cti

on
 in

 th
e p

ro
-a

cti
ve

 co
ns

er
va

tio
n 

wo
rk 

un
de

rta
ke

n. 

No
ne

 

Ef
fic

ien
cy

 im
pr

ov
em

en
ts 

in 
pla

nn
ing

 
SI

 
10

 
30

 
30

 
30

 
30

 
Ef

fic
ien

cie
s r

es
ult

ing
 in

 co
st 

sa
vin

gs
. 

Inc
re

as
es

 in
 ap

pli
ca

tio
ns

 co
uld

 
re

qu
ire

 fu
rth

er
 sp

en
din

g 
Co

ns
ult

an
cy

 co
sts

 in
 P

lan
nin

g 
SI

 
0 

18
 

18
 

18
 

18
 

Ce
rta

in 
co

sts
 ha

ve
 al

re
ad

y b
ee

n 
co

mm
itte

d f
or

 th
is 

ye
ar

. 
Ch

an
gin

g c
irc

um
sta

nc
es

 co
uld

 
ge

ne
ra

te 
ne

w 
co

ns
ult

an
cy

 
de

ma
nd

s. 

16



 
Pr

op
os

ed
 S

av
in

g 
 

 
Ex

pe
ct

ed
 R

ev
en

ue
 S

av
in

g 
Co

m
m

en
ts

 
Ri

sk
 

 
 

20
06

/07
 

20
07

/08
 

20
08

/09
 

20
09

/10
 

20
10

/11
 

 
 

 
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
 

 
De

let
ion

 of
 pa

rt 
tim

e h
ou

sin
g p

os
t 

SP
 

0 
10

 
10

 
10

 
10

Al
re

ad
y a

gr
ee

d b
y E

mp
loy

me
nt 

Pa
ne

l 
Mi

nim
um

 im
pa

ct 
(lo

ng
 te

rm
 

sic
k) 

DF
Gs

 - 
£3

20
k r

ed
uc

tio
n i

n C
ap

ita
l b

ud
ge

t fo
r t

wo
 ye

ar
s 

SP
 

4 
12

 
16

 
16

 
16

De
ma

nd
 le

ss
 th

an
 bu

dg
ete

d. 
 N

ee
ds

 
re

vie
wi

ng
 an

nu
all

y. 
06

/07
 &

 07
/08

 ok
, b

ut 
fut

ur
e 

ye
ar

s w
ill 

de
pe

nd
 on

 ch
an

ge
s i

n 
de

ma
nd

 an
d G

ov
t s

up
po

rt 
De

let
ion

 of
 pa

rt-
tim

e H
ou

sin
g p

os
t -

 H
ou

sin
g N

ee
ds

 
As

sis
tan

t 
SP

 
0 

10
 

10
 

10
 

10
So

me
 lo

ss
 of

 se
rvi

ce
 - 

re
gis

ter
ing

 
ap

pli
ca

tio
ns

 in
 pe

ak
 pe

rio
ds

 (f
un

din
g 

su
mm

er
 st

ud
en

t 0
6/0

7 f
or

 sp
ec

ific
 ta

sk
s) 

Mi
nim

al 
im

pa
ct 

(cu
rre

nt 
va

ca
nc

y) 

Sa
vin

gs
 P

ro
po

sa
ls 

 
Mi

n
53

9 
1,1

49
 

1,3
75

 
1,3

75
 

1,3
21

 
 

 
 

M
ax

53
9 

1,2
71

 
1,5

25
 

1,5
25

 
1,4

71
 

 
Ot

he
r v

ar
iat

io
ns

 id
en

tif
ied

 to
 d

at
e 

 ( 
- f

ig
ur

es
 ar

e e
xt

ra
 co

st
) 

 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

Sa
ple

y S
qu

ar
e l

os
t r

en
t 

 
-1

26
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Re
du

ce
d l

an
d C

ha
rg

es
 in

co
me

 
 

-1
70

 
-1

70
 

-1
70

 
-1

70
 

-1
70

 
 

Inc
re

as
ed

 fu
el 

co
sts

 
 

-7
0 

-7
0 

-7
0 

-7
0 

-7
0

 
 

Inc
re

as
ed

 N
ND

R 
co

sts
 fo

r H
DC

 pr
op

er
tie

s 
 

-4
6 

-4
6 

-4
6 

-4
6 

-4
6

 
 

Re
ve

nu
e s

taf
f c

ha
rg

ed
 to

 ca
pit

al 
 

21
9 

20
0 

20
0 

20
0 

20
0

 
 

Int
er

es
t 

 
29

0 
20

0 
20

0 
20

0 
20

0
 

 
Tu

rn
ov

er
 sa

vin
gs

 
 

10
0 

70
 

70
 

70
 

70
su

bje
ct 

to 
He

ad
 of

 C
om

mu
nit

y S
er

vic
es

 
Po

st 
no

t b
ein

g f
ille

d 
 

Co
nc

es
sio

na
ry 

Fa
re

s 
 

-1
55

 
-1

85
 

  
  

 
As

su
me

d e
xtr

a g
ra

nt 
ma

y r
em

ov
e/m

itig
ate

 
co

st 
fro

m 
20

08
/09

 
 

C
O

M
B

IN
ED

 P
O

SI
TI

O
N

 
 

Mi
n

58
1 

1,1
48

 
1,5

59
 

1,5
59

 
1,5

05
 

 
 

 
Ma

x
58

1 
1,2

70
 

1,7
09

 
1,7

09
 

1,6
55

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Sa

vi
ng

s 
Ta

rg
et

ed
 fo

r t
hi

s 
ex

er
ci

se
 

 
57

4 
1,1

23
 

1,7
00

 
1,8

00
 

1,8
00

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Sa

vi
ng

s 
Ta

rg
et

 P
er

 2
00

6/
07

 B
ud

ge
t/M

TP
 

 
57

4 
1,1

23
 

1,7
09

 
2,3

46
 

2,8
98

Ne
t o

f s
av

in
gs

 al
re

ad
y i

de
nt

ifi
ed

 in
 th

e 
20

06
/07

 b
ud

ge
t/M

TP
 

 

17



A
N

N
EX

 B
  

 
SE

PT
EM

B
ER

 2
00

6 
FO

R
EC

A
ST

  
BU

DG
ET

MT
P 

FO
RE

CA
ST

 
 

20
06

/07
20

07
/08

20
08

/09
20

09
/10

20
10

/11
20

11
/12

 
20

12
/13

20
13

/14
20

14
/15

20
15

/16
20

16
/17

20
17

/18
20

18
/19

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

20
06

/7 
BU

DG
ET

/M
TP

 b
ef

or
e s

av
in

gs
 

19
,33

1 
20

,70
6 

22
,61

0 
24

,99
9 

26
,85

8 
27

,82
0 

28
,99

9 
30

,16
0 

31
,32

4 
32

,53
9 

33
,72

7 
35

,0
85

 
36

,4
46

 
Int

er
es

t a
nd

 B
or

ro
wi

ng
 V

ar
iat

ion
s 

-3
25

 
-3

93
 

-2
37

 
-2

11
 

-1
46

 
-1

35
 

-1
00

 
-8

6 
-7

1 
-5

7 
-4

0 
-3

2 
-3

6 
Inf

lat
ion

 V
ar

iat
ion

s 
11

2 
12

5 
16

4 
20

8 
78

 
59

 
85

 
15

5 
14

1 
17

4 
25

6 
89

 
52

 
Ot

he
r V

ar
iat

ion
s 

17
8 

13
1 

-5
4 

-5
4 

-5
4 

14
6 

14
6 

14
6 

14
6 

14
6 

14
6 

14
6 

14
6 

Fo
re

ca
st

 T
ot

al 
be

fo
re

 sa
vin

gs
 

19
,29

6 
20

,56
9 

22
,48

3 
24

,94
2 

26
,73

6 
27

,89
0 

29
,13

0 
30

,37
5 

31
,54

0 
32

,80
2 

34
,08

9 
35

,28
8 

36
,60

8 

20
06

/07
 T

ot
al 

Sa
vin

gs
 R

eq
ui

re
d 

-1
,02

6 
-1

,57
3 

-2
,15

7 
-2

,79
2 

-3
,34

2 
-3

,89
2 

-4
,44

2 
-4

,99
2 

-5
,49

2 
-5

,77
6 

-5
,82

6 
-5

,7
64

 
-5

,6
96

 
Ex

tra
 S

av
ing

s N
ow

 R
eq

uir
ed

 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

-2
25

 
-2

29
 

Re
vis

ed
 S

av
in

gs
 T

ot
al 

-1
,02

6 
-1

,57
3 

-2
,15

7 
-2

,79
2 

-3
,34

2 
-3

,89
2 

-4
,44

2 
-4

,99
2 

-5
,49

2 
-5

,77
6 

-5
,82

6 
-5

,98
9 

-5
,92

5 

NE
W

 F
OR

EC
AS

T 
18

,27
0 

18
,99

6 
20

,32
6 

22
,15

0 
23

,39
4 

23
,99

8 
24

,68
8 

25
,38

3 
26

,04
8 

27
,02

6 
28

,26
3 

29
,29

9 
30

,68
3 

%
 in

cre
as

e 
17

.8%
 

4.0
%

 
7.0

%
 

9.0
%

 
5.6

%
 

2.6
%

 
2.9

%
 

2.8
%

 
2.6

%
 

3.8
%

 
4.6

%
 

3.7
%

 
4.7

%
 

De
fic

it 
Fu

nd
ed

 fr
om

 R
ev

en
ue

 
re

se
rv

es
 

1,4
91

 
1,0

57
 

1,4
89

 
2,3

72
 

2,6
27

 
2,1

93
 

1,7
92

 
1,3

43
 

80
5 

52
1 

43
3 

77
 

0 

Bu
dg

et
 R

eq
ui

re
m

en
t 

16
,77

9 
17

,93
9 

18
,83

7 
19

,77
8 

20
,76

7 
21

,80
5 

22
,89

6 
24

,04
0 

25
,24

3 
26

,50
5 

27
,83

0 
29

,22
2 

30
,68

3 
%

 in
cre

as
e

9.8
%

 
6.9

%
 

5.0
%

 
5.0

%
 

5.0
%

 
5.0

%
 

5.0
%

 
5.0

%
 

5.0
%

 
5.0

%
 

5.0
%

 
5.0

%
 

5.0
%

 
FU

ND
IN

G 
 

  
  

 
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

Go
ve

rn
me

nt 
Su

pp
or

t 
-1

0,8
92

 
-1

1,6
50

 
-1

2,1
62

 
-1

2,6
84

 
-1

3,0
33

 
-1

3,3
91

 
-1

3,7
59

 
-1

4,1
38

 
-1

4,5
26

 
-1

4,9
26

 
-1

5,3
36

 
-1

5,7
58

 
-1

6,1
92

 
Co

lle
cti

on
 F

un
d D

efi
cit

 
74

 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 
Co

un
cil

 T
ax

 
-5

,96
1 

-6
,28

9 
-6

,67
4 

-7
,09

5 
-7

,73
4 

-8
,41

4 
-9

,13
6 

-9
,90

3 
-1

0,7
17

 
-1

1,5
79

 
-1

2,4
94

 
-1

3,4
63

 
-1

4,4
91

 
CO

UN
CI

L 
TA

X 
LE

VE
L 

£1
04

.69
 

£1
09

.91
 

£1
16

.05
 £

12
2.7

5 
£1

33
.15

 
£1

44
.13

 
£1

55
.73

 £
16

7.9
5 

£1
80

.85
 

£1
94

.43
 

£2
08

.75
 

£2
23

.83
 

£2
39

.72
 

%
 in

cre
as

e
5.0

%
 

5.0
%

 
5.6

%
 

5.8
%

 
8.5

%
 

8.2
%

 
8.0

%
 

7.8
%

 
7.7

%
 

7.5
%

 
7.4

%
 

7.2
%

 
7.1

%
 

Re
ma

ini
ng

 re
ve

nu
e r

es
er

ve
s E

OY
 

16
,70

9 
15

,65
2 

14
,16

3 
11

,79
1 

9,1
64

 
6,9

71
 

5,1
79

 
3,8

36
 

3,0
31

 
2,5

10
 

2,0
77

 
2,0

00
 

2,0
00

 
Re

ma
ini

ng
 ca

pit
al 

re
se

rve
s E

OY
 

28
,68

8 
11

,59
1 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 
Int

er
es

t in
clu

de
d i

n n
et 

bu
dg

et 
-3

,11
0 

-2
,43

3 
-1

,48
3 

-9
68

 
-8

51
 

-7
32

 
-6

32
 

-5
53

 
-4

99
 

-4
68

 
-4

49
 

-4
41

 
-4

46
 

 

18



 
CABINET        7th SEPTEMBER 2006 
 
 
 

“GROWING SUCCESS” — PERFORMANCE MONITORING 
(Report by the Head of Policy) 

 
1. INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to present to Members performance data for the 

period April to June 2006. 
 
2. BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
2.1 The Council have adopted a corporate plan – “Growing Success” – which includes 

a series of measures or local performance indicators to help judge levels of 
success in achieving priorities.  “Growing Success” provides the context for the 
Council’s comprehensive performance management framework.  This framework 
provides for quarterly reporting of progress against targets so that any necessary 
remedial action can be taken.  The framework also provides for an end-of-year 
review of the plan, results and targets so that the Council are focused on 
achieving their priorities. 

 
2.2 As part of the early stages of the annual review, it became apparent that the 

objectives which support the Council’s priorities and outcomes needed to be 
more specific and understandable.  Training undertaken with Executive 
Councillors suggested that the Council’s objectives could be updated and 
presented in a format which linked them with significant activities or projects, 
along with the underlying “day-to-day” activities set out in service plans.  In 
addition, Executive Councillors felt that members of the Overview & Scrutiny 
Panels should have a close involvement in the review of the objectives prior to 
presentation to Cabinet and Council. 

 
2.3 The review of Growing Success is being undertaken by a Working Group of 

members appointed by the Overview and Scrutiny Panels and an interim report is 
due to be considered by the Corporate and Strategic Framework Panel on 5th 
September. In the meantime performance monitoring is continuing on the basis 
of the existing plan. 

 
3. PERFORMANCE DATA 
 
3.1 The following performance data is appended for consideration: 
 

• Appendix A shows the results for the Council’s local measures or 
performance indicators as set out in the Corporate Plan – “Growing 
Success”. 

• Appendix B provides a summary of achievement for the action plans which 
comprise the Council’s Improvement Plan.   

 
3.2 The schedules have been colour coded as follows:- 
 

• green – achieving target or above; 
• amber – between target and an “intervention level (the level at which 

performance is considered to be unacceptable and action is required); 

Agenda Item 4

19



 

 2

• red – the intervention level or below; and 
• grey – data is currently unavailable. 

 
4. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
4.1 The Cabinet is invited to consider progress against targets 
 
 
 
 
Background Papers 
“Growing Success” – Corporate Plan 
 
Contact Officer: Howard Thackray, Policy & Research Manager  
    (01480) 388035 

20



G
ro

w
in

g 
Su

cc
es

s 
- 

A
pr

il 
2

0
0

6
 t

o 
Ju

n
e 

2
0

0
6

 
C

om
m

u
n

it
y 

be
n

ef
it

s 
w

e 
de

liv
er

: 
 O

u
tc

om
e 

La
g 

or
 e

n
d 

of
 y

ea
r 

 
M

ea
su

re
 

Ta
rg

et
 

fo
r 

20
05

/0
6 

A
ct

u
al

 
20

05
/0

6 
Le

ad
 o

r 
in

te
ri

m
 M

ea
su

re
 

Ta
rg

et
  

20
05

/0
6

A
ct

u
al

  
A

pr
il 

to
 

Ju
n

e 
0

6
 

C
om

m
en

ts
 

G
oo

d 
re

pu
ta

tio
n 

Co
m

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

(C
PA

) 
ra

tin
g 

Ex
ce

lle
nt

 
Ex

ce
lle

nt
 

%
 o

f 
CP

A 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t 
pl

an
 

ou
tc

om
es

 o
n 

tr
ac

k.
 

80
%

 
 

Se
e 

An
ne

x 
B 

%
 p

ro
je

ct
ed

 a
ve

ra
ge

 a
nn

ua
l  

co
un

ci
l 

ta
x 

in
cr

ea
se

 f
or

 t
he

 n
ex

t 
5 

ye
ar

s 
5%

 
 

5%
 

 
G

oo
d 

va
lu

e 
fo

r 
m

on
ey

 
%

 s
at

is
fie

d 
w

ith
 le

ve
l o

f 
Co

un
ci

l T
ax

 f
or

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
pr

ov
id

ed
 

(T
ak

en
 f

ro
m

 a
nn

ua
l 

su
rv

ey
 M

ar
ch

 2
00

6)
 

 

60
%

 

 
 

53
.8

%
 

  

%
 o

f 
re

si
de

nt
s 

w
ho

 h
av

e 
a 

cl
ea

r 
un

de
rs

ta
nd

in
g 

of
 c

ou
nc

il 
ta

x 
pa

id
 f

or
 

se
rv

ic
es

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
by

 t
he

 c
ou

nc
il.

 
70

%
 

 

W
ill

 n
ot

 b
e 

m
ea

su
re

d 
un

til
  

20
07

 

G
oo

d 
qu

al
ity

 o
f 

lif
e 

 
%

 s
at

is
fie

d 
w

ith
 

H
un

tin
gd

on
sh

ire
 a

s 
a 

go
od

 
pl

ac
e 

to
 li

ve
 

88
%

 
 

91
.4

%
 

%
 o

f 
le

ad
 t

ar
ge

ts
 f

or
 t

he
 s

ix
 

pr
io

ri
ty

 a
re

as
 f

or
ec

as
t 

to
 b

e 
m

et
 

80
%

 
73

%
 

11
7 

m
ea

su
re

s 
85

 g
re

en
=

 
73

%
 

Sa
fe

 a
n

d 
A

ct
iv

e 
C

om
m

u
n

it
ie

s 
%

 w
ho

 f
ee

l s
af

e 
 

85
%

 
 

90
%

 

%
 o

f 
ta

rg
et

s 
fo

r 
Sa

fe
 &

 A
ct

iv
e 

Co
m

m
un

iti
es

 f
or

ec
as

t 
to

 b
e 

m
et

 
80

%
 

50
%

 

16
 m

ea
su

re
s 

– 
8 

gr
ee

n 
=

50
%

 
2 

re
d 

5 
gr

ey
 

H
ea

lt
h

y 
P

op
u

la
ti

on
 

 

Av
er

ag
e 

lif
e 

ex
pe

ct
an

cy
  

 
M

al
es

fe
m

al
e

77
.5

 y
rs

 
m

al
es

 
81

.6
 y

rs
 

fe
m

al
es

 

77
.9

 
 

81
.6

 

%
 o

f 
ta

rg
et

s 
fo

r 
H

ea
lth

y 
Po

pu
la

tio
n 

fo
re

ca
st

 t
o 

be
 m

et
 

80
%

 
53

%
 

17
 m

ea
su

re
s 

9 
gr

ee
n 

=
 

53
%

 
5 

re
d 

2 
am

be
r 

1 
gr

ey
 

C
le

an
, G

re
en

 a
n

d 
A

tt
ra

ct
iv

e 
En

vi
ro

n
m

en
t 

 

%
 s

at
is

fie
d 

th
at

 
H

un
tin

gd
on

sh
ire

 is
 a

 
cl

ea
n,

 g
re

en
 a

nd
 a

tt
ra

ct
iv

e 
pl

ac
e 

75
%

 
 

83
.2

%
 

%
 o

f 
ta

rg
et

s 
fo

r 
Cl

ea
n,

 G
re

en
 a

nd
 

At
tr

ac
tiv

e 
En

vi
ro

nm
en

t 
fo

re
ca

st
 t

o 
be

 
m

et
 

80
%

 
79

%
 

33
 m

ea
su

re
s 

26
 g

re
en

 
=

79
%

 
 

H
ou

si
n

g 
th

at
 

m
ee

ts
 L

oc
al

 L
ee

ds
 

%
 o

f 
ho

us
in

g 
ne

ed
s 

ta
rg

et
s 

ac
hi

ev
ed

 
80

%
 

83
%

 

%
 o

f 
ta

rg
et

s 
fo

r 
H

ou
si

ng
 t

ha
t 

m
ee

ts
 

Lo
ca

l N
ee

ds
 f
or

ec
as

t 
to

 b
e 

m
et

 
80

%
 

86
%

 

22
 m

ea
su

re
s 

– 
 

19
 g

re
en

 =
 

86
%

 
 

A
N

N
EX

 A

21



O
u

tc
om

e 
La

g 
or

 e
n

d 
of

 y
ea

r 
 

M
ea

su
re

 
Ta

rg
et

 
fo

r 
20

05
/0

6 

A
ct

u
al

 
20

05
/0

6 
Le

ad
 o

r 
in

te
ri

m
 M

ea
su

re
 

Ta
rg

et
  

20
05

/0
6

A
ct

u
al

  
A

pr
il 

to
 

Ju
n

e 
0

6
 

C
om

m
en

ts
 

St
ro

n
g 

&
 D

iv
er

se
 

Ec
on

om
y 

Th
e 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 lo

ca
l j

ob
s 

75
,0

00
 

 
73

,0
00

 

%
 o

f 
ta

rg
et

s 
fo

r 
St

ro
ng

 a
nd

 D
iv

er
se

 
Ec

on
om

y 
fo

re
ca

st
 t

o 
be

 m
et

 
80

%
 

77
%

 

9 
m

ea
su

re
s 

7 
gr

ee
n 

=
 

77
%

 
 

A
cc

es
si

bl
e 

Se
rv

ic
es

 a
nd

 
Tr

an
sp

or
t 

C
h

oi
ce

s 

%
 w

ho
 f

ee
l t

he
y 

ha
ve

 
go

od
 a

cc
es

s 
to

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
 

60
%

 
 

58
%

 

%
 o

f 
ta

rg
et

s 
fo

r 
Ac

ce
ss

ib
le

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
&

 T
ra

ns
po

rt
 C

ho
ic

es
 f
or

ec
as

t 
to

 b
e 

m
et

 
80

%
 

80
%

 
20

 m
ea

su
re

s 
16

 g
re

en
 

=
80

%
 

  In
te

rn
al

 p
ro

ce
ss

 w
e 

m
u

st
 e

xc
el

 a
t:

 
 O

u
tc

om
e 

La
g 

or
 e

n
d 

of
 y

ea
r 

 
M

ea
su

re
 

Ta
rg

et
 f

or
20

05
/0

6 
A

ct
u

al
 

20
05

/0
6 

Le
ad

 o
r 

in
te

ri
m

 M
ea

su
re

 
Ta

rg
et

  
20

05
/0

6
A

ct
u

al
  

A
pr

il 
to

 
Ju

n
e 

0
6

 

C
om

m
en

ts
 

Ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

 
le

ad
er

sh
ip

 

%
 w

ho
 b

el
ie

ve
 w

e 
ha

ve
 

cl
ea

r 
di

re
ct

io
n 

an
d 

pr
io

rit
ie

s 
 

70
%

 

 

 
54

%
 

%
 o

f 
em

pl
oy

ee
s 

w
ho

 b
el

ie
ve

 w
e 

ha
ve

 c
le

ar
 d

ire
ct

io
n 

an
d 

pr
io

rit
ie

s 
(S

ta
ff

 s
ur

ve
y 

Ju
ly

 0
5)

 
90

%
 

50
.6

%
 

Le
ad

 m
ea

su
re

 
w

ill
 b

e 
ch

an
ge

d 
as

 it
 le

ss
 

fr
eq

ue
nt

 t
ha

n 
en

d 
of

 y
ea

r 
m

ea
su

re
 

H
ig

h 
qu

al
ity

 s
er

vi
ce

 
de

liv
er

y 
%

 o
f 

cu
st

om
er

s 
ra

tin
g 

se
rv

ic
e 

qu
al

ity
 a

s 
go

od
 o

r 
be

tt
er

  
65

%
 

71
%

 
%

 o
f 

se
rv

ic
e 

de
liv

er
y 

ta
rg

et
s 

ac
hi

ev
ed

 
65

%
 

 
N

ot
 a

ll 
da

ta
 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
in

 t
hi

s 
pe

rio
d 

Ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

ps
 

%
 o

f 
pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

p 
ta

rg
et

s 
ac

hi
ev

ed
 

80
%

 

 
%

 o
f 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
ps

 w
hi

ch
 c

om
pl

y 
w

ith
 t

he
 c

ou
nc

il’
s 

fr
am

ew
or

k 
90

%
 

 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
of

 
fr

am
ew

or
k.

 
un

de
rw

ay
  
D

at
a 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
2n

d 
Q

rt
 2

00
6/

07
 

R
ev

en
ue

 e
xp

en
di

tu
re

 a
s 

a 
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 o
f 
bu

dg
et

 
95

%
 

95
%

 
Fo

re
ca

st
 o

ut
tu

rn
 

90
%

 
99

%
 

 
Ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

Ca
pi

ta
l e

xp
en

di
tu

re
 a

s 
a 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f 
bu

dg
et

 
95

%
 +

/-
 

5%
 

44
%

 
Fo

re
ca

st
 o

ut
tu

rn
 

95
%

 +
/-

 
5%

,  
98

%
 

 

22



O
u

tc
om

e 
La

g 
or

 e
n

d 
of

 y
ea

r 
 

M
ea

su
re

 
Ta

rg
et

 f
or

20
05

/0
6 

A
ct

u
al

 
20

05
/0

6 
Le

ad
 o

r 
in

te
ri

m
 M

ea
su

re
 

Ta
rg

et
  

20
05

/0
6

A
ct

u
al

  
A

pr
il 

to
 

Ju
n

e 
0

6
 

C
om

m
en

ts
 

 
%

 o
f 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
ou

tc
om

es
 in

 
re

so
ur

ce
 s

tr
at

eg
ie

s 
ac

hi
ev

ed
 

85
%

 

 
%

 o
f 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
ac

tio
ns

 
on

 t
ra

ck
 

85
%

 
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
of

 
fr

am
ew

or
k 

un
de

rw
ay

. D
at

a 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
ap

pr
ai

sa
ls

 
(2

00
6)

 
M

an
ag

in
g 

Ex
pe

ct
at

io
ns

 
%

 o
f 

pe
op

le
 w

ith
 a

n 
ac

cu
ra

te
 u

nd
er

st
an

di
ng

 o
f 

ou
r 

se
rv

ic
e 

st
an

da
rd

s 
 

80
%

 
 

67
.6

%
 

%
 o

f 
se

rv
ic

es
 f

or
 w

hi
ch

 w
e 

ha
ve

 
de

fin
ed

 a
nd

 c
om

m
un

ic
at

ed
 s

er
vi

ce
 

st
an

da
rd

s 
10

0%
 

 

    
    W

h
at

 d
o 

ou
r 

pe
op

le
 t

h
in

k 
an

d 
do

 t
h

ey
 h

av
e 

th
e 

ri
gh

t 
sk

ill
s:

 
 O

u
tc

om
e 

La
g 

M
ea

su
re

 
Ta

rg
et

 
20

05
/0

6 
A

ct
u

al
 

20
05

/0
6 

Le
ad

 M
ea

su
re

 
In

te
ri

m
/

Le
ad

 
Ta

rg
et

 

A
ct

u
al

  
A

pr
il 

to
 

Ju
n

e 
0

6
 

C
om

m
en

ts
 

%
 o

f 
em

pl
oy

ee
s 

w
ith

 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 s
ki

lls
 

80
%

 

 
%

 o
f 

tr
ai

ni
ng

 &
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

pl
an

s 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 
80

%
 

50
%

  
(e

st
im

at
e)

 

PD
 P

la
ns

 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
20

06
 

ap
pr

ai
sa

ls
 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s 
an

d 
M

em
be

rs
 w

ith
 t

he
 

rig
ht

 s
ki

lls
  

%
 o

f 
M

em
be

rs
 w

ho
 h

av
e 

at
te

nd
ed

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 
co

ur
se

s 
80

%
 

48
.8

%
 

%
 o

f 
M

em
be

rs
 f

or
 w

ho
m

 t
ra

in
in

g 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
 

10
0%

 
75

%
 

Ch
an

ge
d 

m
ea

su
re

 
(S

ur
ve

y 
in

 J
un

e 
06

) 
N

o.
 o

f 
su

gg
es

tio
ns

 m
ad

e 
pe

r 
qu

ar
te

r 
20

 
20

 
 

In
no

va
tio

n 
an

d 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t 
 

%
 o

f 
st

af
f 

w
ho

 f
ee

l w
e 

ha
ve

 a
 c

ul
tu

re
 o

f 
in

no
va

tio
n 

 

60
%

 
34

.8
%

 
(0

5/
06

) 
N

o.
 o

f 
in

no
va

tio
n 

aw
ar

ds
 m

ad
e 

pe
r 

qu
ar

te
r 

2 
2 

 

23



O
u

tc
om

e 
La

g 
M

ea
su

re
 

Ta
rg

et
 

20
05

/0
6 

A
ct

u
al

 
20

05
/0

6 
Le

ad
 M

ea
su

re
 

In
te

ri
m

/
Le

ad
 

Ta
rg

et
 

A
ct

u
al

  
A

pr
il 

to
 

Ju
n

e 
0

6
 

C
om

m
en

ts
 

Ke
y 

be
ha

vi
ou

rs
 

de
m

on
st

ra
te

d 
an

d 
va

lu
ed

  

%
 o

f 
st

af
f 

w
ho

 f
ee

l t
ha

t 
ke

y 
be

ha
vi

ou
rs

 a
re

 
va

lu
ed

 
70

%
 

 

%
 o

f 
em

pl
oy

ee
s 

de
m

on
st

ra
tin

g 
ke

y 
be

ha
vi

ou
rs

 

80
%

 
 

O
rg

an
is

at
io

na
l 

va
lu

es
 a

do
pt

ed
. 

D
at

a 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
ap

pr
ai

sa
ls

 
(2

00
7)

. 
%

 o
f 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 p

ro
je

ct
s 

fo
r 

w
hi

ch
 

po
st

-p
ro

je
ct

 a
pp

ra
is

al
s 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 a
nd

 p
ub

lis
he

d 
90

%
 

 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

of
 

pr
oj

ec
t 

ap
pr

ai
sa

l 
m

et
ho

do
lo

gy
 

un
de

rw
ay

. 

Sh
ar

e 
&

 U
se

 
Kn

ow
le

dg
e 

%
 o

f 
st

af
f 

w
ho

 f
ee

l w
e 

ar
e 

a 
le

ar
ni

ng
 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
n 

 
80

%
 

70
%

 
N

o.
 o

f 
ex

am
pl

es
 o

f 
kn

ow
le

dg
e 

sh
ar

in
g 

pe
r 

m
on

th
 

20
 

 
Sy

st
em

 f
or

 
re

co
rd

in
g 

kn
ow

le
dg

e 
sh

ar
in

g 
be

in
g 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 

24



         ANNEX B 
          
CPA IMPROVEMENT PLAN – PROGRESS REPORT UP TO 30th  

June 2006 
Subject Proposed Action  
Access and 
Accommodation 
 

• Complete accommodation review 
• Complete DDA compliance survey and works 
• Deliver Customer First programme 

 

Benefits 
 

• Processes for developing and changing local 
procedures. 

• Management checks of benefit assessments. 
• Improvements in processing time. 
• Revising documentation. 
• Vetting arrangements for new staff 
• Fraud investigation and 
• recovery of over-payments 

 

Capacity • Review spending and resource allocation plans to 
ensure delivery of priorities.  

• Delivery of People Strategy 

 

Children and Young People • Adopt “Here by Right” standard. 
• Develop corporate protection policies 

 

Corporate Governance 
 

• Achievement of Corporate Governance framework.  

Diversity and user focus • Revise equality and inclusion strategy. 
• Complete “Mapping Diversity” project. 
• Use research and consultation data to plan and 

improve services. 
• Complete race assessments and implementation of 

actions. 
• Promote compliance with Disability Discrimination Act. 

 

Financial Management 
 

• Completion of programmed improvements.  

Housing • Implementation of BVR – Balancing Housing Need – 
which incorporates improvements identified during the 
CPA 

• BME survey 
• Traveller Needs Survey 
• Conduct stock condition survey 

 

Learning & Knowledge • Adopt systematic approaches to learning and sharing 
knowledge. 

• Mapping Diversity Project, Traveller Needs Survey, 
Housing Survey. “Here by Right” programme. 

 

Overview & Scrutiny 
 

• Implement overview and scrutiny development plan. 
• Integrate corporate performance management 

framework with scrutiny process 

 

Partnership Working 
 

• Develop Partnership framework 
• Monitoring and evaluation of partnership success 
• Implement “Next Steps” and performance management 

system for Huntingdonshire Strategic Partnership. 
• Contribute to the development and achievement of 

Local Public Service Agreements 

 

Performance Management • Complete project plan to implement comprehensive 
performance management framework, including 

 

25



publication of service standards 
Priorities and Vision 
 

• Facilitate strategic choices.   
• Initiate review programme, including external challenge, 

based on priorities and informed by CPMF. 
• Prepare and implement communications plans. 

 

Procurement 
 

• Review procurement strategy in relation to Gershon 
report, national procurement strategy and principles of 
sustainability 

 

Risk Management 
 

• Complete risk registers 
• Link to new service planning framework. 
• Complete business continuity plans 

 

 
 

26



 

  
 

CABINET 7TH SEPTEMBER 2006 
 

SANCTUARY PROJECT 
(Report by Head of  Environment and Community Health Development 

services)  
 
 

 
1. PURPOSE 
 
1.1 To obtain Cabinet’s approval to sign and seal the agreement for the countywide 

Domestic Violence Sanctuary Project. 
 
 
2. BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 A sanctuary scheme provides home security measures to allow victims of domestic 

violence (and their children) to remain in their own home, where they chose to do so, 
in the knowledge that they have a safe retreat from the perpetrator. Sanctuary 
schemes are a recommended requirement for all local authorities under Best Value 
Performance Indicator 225.  

 
2.2 There are considerable benefits of enabling domestic violence victims to remain in 

their own home: the social benefits and lack of disruption to education, employment 
and family networks and the cost can be considerably less than the provision of 
emergency accommodation.  

 
3. THE SANCTUARY PROJECT 
 
3.1 The Sanctuary Project for Huntingdonshire was developed through the 

Huntingdonshire Domestic Violence Forum. As other districts were also developing 
similar projects it was agreed to procure the services countywide to ensure efficiency 
and consistency of approach.  The funding request was considered and approved by 
the Huntingdonshire Community Safety Partnership (HCSP) Executive on 28th July 
2005. The funding came from the Home Office’s Safer and Stronger Communities 
Fund which is managed by the HCSP Executive.  

 
3.2 In 2006/07 £3000 has been allocated by the HCSP Executive for Sanctuary Project 

capital works in Huntingdonshire. The funds for the Sanctuary Project are held on 
behalf of the project by Huntingdonshire District Council and the spending is monitored 
by the Housing Department. If there is extra demand for the services and further funds 
are required, the Domestic Violence Forum will bid to the HCSP for funding from the 
pooled partnership funds or to the Huntingdonshire District Council Housing 
department for Homelessness grant funding. 

 
3.3 East Cambridgeshire District Council led on the procurement of the Sanctuary Project 

services. The contract was awarded to the Luminus Group. The agreement which 
requires signing is the joint contract between Luminus and the three local authorities 
who Luminus will be working on behalf of: Huntingdonshire District Council, East 
Cambridgeshire District Council and Cambridge City Council. 

 

Agenda Item 5

27



 

3.4 It has been necessary to appoint a contractor due to two of the local authorities 
involved no longer owning housing stock and therefore not having access to in-house 
workmen.  

 
4. RECOMMENDATION 
 
4.0 Cabinet are recommended to 
 
  (a)  Consider this report and approve the signing of the contract. 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 
 
Sanctuary Project Agreement Document 
 
Contact Officer: 

 
Sonia Hansen, Development and Community 
Manager 

   01480 388341 
 

28



  
 CABINET                                                                         7TH September 2006  
       
 

PAXTON PITS NATURE RESERVE 
(Joint Report by the Head of Legal & Estates  

and the Countryside Services Manager) 
 
 

1. INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 This report seeks approval to the extension of Little Paxton Nature 

Reserve by way of acceptance by the District Council of leases of 
land adjacent to the Reserve following the termination of gravel 
extraction operations. 

 
2. BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 The Little Paxton Nature Reserve currently consists of 240 acres 

(edged with a thick black line on plan A appended hereto).  Further 
gravel extraction proposals nearby provide the opportunity to increase 
this to over 700 acres making it one of the largest nature reserves in 
Cambridgeshire.  The existing Nature Reserve and the additional land 
comprise the area within the black line on plan B, also appended.  
The other areas, such as North and South Lakes, will remain in 
private ownership, but will be available for other potential leisure uses 
operated by the private sector. 

 
2.2 The additional land is jointly owned by Oxford University Chest and 

Thornhill Settled Estate. Aggregate Industries UK is currently seeking 
planning consent for the extraction of gravel and the associated 
restoration.  A Section 106 Agreement is being prepared which  will 
incorporate the following key elements: 

 
• £180,000 to cover staffing costs up to 2021 
• provision and maintenance of a vehicle for use around the 

reserve up to 2021. 
• £20,000 worth of materials for construction of additional 

facilities such as a car park 
• retention of redundant quarry buildings to develop as 

volunteer/education facilities  
• 29 kilometres of footpaths, bridle paths and cycle ways 
• an environmental management plan under which habitats of 

reed bed, wet woodland and wet meadow will be created 
 
2.3 On completion of the restoration it is proposed that several leases will 

be granted to the District Council on the following terms: 
 
 (i) the leases to be for a minimum period of 80 years with options 

to extend; 
 (ii) the rent to be a peppercorn; and 
 (iii) other terms to be agreed 
 

Agenda Item 6

29



 2 

3. IMPLICATIONS 
 
3.1 Financial  
 
3.1.1 The cost of leases of the additional land to the District Council will be 

covered by the provision to be made in the Section 106 Agreement 
and from income generated from activities on the site. 

 
3.1.2 The sources of Income could include: 
 

• agricultural grants – it should be possible to obtain 
approximately £20k per annum and it may be possible to apply 
for grants for specific projects; 

• selling franchises – for example for cycle hire; 
• events; and/or 
• fund raising – the Friends of Paxton Pits have indicated that 

they would be willing to increase fund raising activity. 
 

3.1.3 Until 2021 the Section 106 monies will cover staff costs. The 
maintenance of the paths and cycle ways will be the responsibility of 
the County Council. Therefore the income that the site generates 
needs to cover any materials required on site, staff costs after 2021 
and any costs relating to the buildings, if the buildings are in use then. 

 
3.2 Economic Development  
 
3.2.1 Currently about 120,000 people visit Paxton Pits each year from all 

over the country. This figure is expected to increase as the reputation 
of the Reserve and the facilities and opportunities it offers become 
more widely known. 

 
4. CONCLUSIONS 
 
4.1 The offer of further leases of land in this area represents an 

opportunity to extend considerably Paxton Pits Nature Reserve at no 
direct cost to the District Council.  Not only will there be ecological 
benefits but it will also provide a major leisure attraction for the area. 

 
4.2 Once completed, the Nature Reserve and the adjoining land in private 

ownership will provide a complex of lakes and public open spaces 
covering some 1,500 acres in total situated between the River Great 
Ouse and the A1 stretching from Little Paxton to Diddington.  It will 
have a network of footpaths, bridle paths and cycle ways covering the 
whole area. 

 
5. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
5.1 It is recommended that the Director of Central Services, after 

consultation with the Executive Councillor for Resources & Policy, be 
authorised to approve detailed terms for the leases. 

 

30



 3 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
County Council Planning application number: H/05007/03/CM 
 
Contact Officers:  Keith Phillips - Estates and Property Manager  
    (01480) 388260 
 
   Pat Knight – Countryside Services Manager 
    (01480) 388648 
 

31



32

This page is intentionally left blank



LICENSING COMMITTEE    24TH AUGUST 2006  
CABINET      7TH SEPTEMBER 2006 

 
 

GAMBLING ACT 2005 
STATEMENT OF PRINCIPLES 

(Report by Head of Administration) 
 
 

1. INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 The Gambling Act 2005 introduces a new regulatory regime for 

gambling in this country and establishes the Gambling Commission 
which has replaced the former Gaming Board. 

 
1.2 The Act requires a person who wishes to provide gambling to obtain 

three forms of licence – operating, personal and premises licences.  
Operating and personal licences will be issued by the Commission and 
premises licences by district and unitary councils acting as licensing 
authorities in a similar format to the powers contained in the Licensing 
Act 2003. 

 
2. STATEMENT OF PRINCIPLES 
 
2.1 The Gambling Act requires all licensing authorities to publish a 

Statement of Principles on how they intend to approach their 
responsibilities under the Act.  The authority is required to consult 
widely on a draft statement and the final statement must be approved 
by full Council.  

 
2.2 The first appointed day for the statement to come into effect is 31st 

January 2007 and it must be published 28 days prior to that date, i.e. 
3rd January 2007.  The statement must be reviewed before the expiry 
of 3 years from its first publication but can be amended at any time 
during that period (subject to consultation before it is changed). 

 
2.3 A draft statement of principles is attached.  LACORS has produced a 

template for use by authorities in producing their statements and the 
attached draft has been modelled on that document. 

 
2.4 Subject to approval by the Licensing Committee and the Cabinet, the 

draft will be advertised in the local press in the week commencing 11th 
September with a 10 weeks consultation period.  Comments as a 
result of the consultation will be reported to meetings of the Committee 
and Cabinet on 27th and 30th November to formulate 
recommendations for submission to the Council meeting to be held on 
6th December to enable the statement to be confirmed and adopted.   

 
3. CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATION 
 
3.1 The Gambling Act is the second major revision to the licensing 

legislation in as many years, following the implementation of the 
Licensing Act.  It transfers new licensing responsibilities to the Council 
from the courts and updates all of the existing betting, gaming and 
lotteries licensing currently undertaken by the authority. 

 

Agenda Item 7

33



3.2 The Statement of Principles is the first stage of the process in 
implementing the new legislative requirements and it is  

 
RECOMMENDED 

 
that the attached draft Statement be approved for the purposes 
of public consultation. 

 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
Gambling Commission Guidance to Local Authorities – April 2006 
LACORS model statement of principles under the Gambling Act 2005 
 
 
Contact Officer: Roy Reeves, Head of Administration 
    01480 388003 

34



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 

GGGaaammmbbbllliiinnnggg   AAAcccttt   222000000555   
 
 

Draft Statement of Principles 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk mail@huntsdc.gov.uk 

Tel 01480 388388 Fax 01480 388099 Pathfinder House St Mary's Street Huntingdon PE29 3TN 
 

35



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PREFACE 
 

 
Under the Gambling Act 2005, a new regime for regulating gambling 
and betting will be introduced throughout the United Kingdom from 
1st September 2007.  Apart from the National Lottery and spread 
betting, all gambling and betting will be regulated by the Gambling 
Commission, whose duties include licensing the operators and 
individuals involved in providing gambling and betting facilities. 
 
Huntingdonshire District Council, along with other licensing 
authorities, has a duty under the Act to licence premises where 
gambling and betting is taking place and to license certain other 
activities (for example the registration of small lotteries).  This 
document explains how the District Council, as the licensing authority 
for Huntingdonshire, intends to approach its responsibilities under the 
Act. 
 
All references in this document to ‘the licensing authority’ means the 
Huntingdonshire District Council. 
 

36



CONTENTS 

 

Item Page 
  

Part A - General 
1. Introduction 1
2. Huntingdonshire 1
3. Gambling Commission 1 -   2
4. Licensable Activities 2
5. The Licensing Objectives 3
6 Licensing Authority Functions 3 -   4
7. Statement of Principles 4 -   7
8. Responsible Authorities 7 -   8
9. Interested Parties 8 - 10
10. Exchange of Information 10 - 11
11. Enforcement 11 - 12
12. Consultation 12
13. Declaration 12
  

Part B - Premises licences 
14. General Principles 13
15. Definition of "Premises" 13 - 17
16. Adult Gaming Centres 17
17. Licensed Family Entertainment Centres 17 - 18
18. Casinos 18
19. Bingo Premises 18 -  19
20. Betting Premises  19
21 Tracks 19 - 21
22 Travelling Fairs 21 - 22
23. Reviews of Premises Licenses 22

 

Part C – Permits and Temporary & Occasional Use Notices 
24 Unlicensed Family Entertainment Centre gaming 

machine permits 
23 

25 (Alcohol) Licensed premises gaming machine 
permits 

24

26. Prize Gaming Permits  25 - 26
27. Club Gaming and Club Machines Permits 26 - 27
28. Temporary Use Notices 27
29. Occasional Use Notices 27
  
Appendices 
 A 29 – 30
 B 31 – 32
 C 33 – 34
 D 35

37



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This Statement of Principles has been drafted at a time when a number 
of regulations, operating and personal licence conditions, codes of 
practice and guidance have yet to be published.  Should these impact 
upon the content of this document after their publication, this statement 
may require amendment at a later stage, bearing in mind resource 
implications for the authority.  All references to the Gambling 
Commission's Guidance to Licensing Authorities refers to the Guidance 
published in April 2006. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

38



 

1 

PART A 
 

GENERAL 
 
1. INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 This Statement of Licensing Principles was approved by the licensing authority 

at a meeting of the Council held on 
_____________________________________ in accordance with section 349 
of the Gambling Act 2005 (‘the Act’).  Copies are available on request from the 
licensing authority at Pathfinder House, St Mary’s Street, Huntingdon, Cambs. 
PE29 3TN, and can viewed at public libraries in Huntingdonshire and on the 
Council’s website at www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk 

 
1.2 This Statement of Principles will not override the right of any person to make an 

application, make representations about an application or apply for a review of 
a licence.  Each will be considered on its merits and in accordance with the 
statutory requirements of the Act. 

 
2. HUNTINGDONSHIRE 
 
2.1 Huntingdonshire District Council is one of five district councils situated in the 

County of Cambridgeshire.  Huntingdonshire has a population which is currently 
estimated at 161,700 and covers an area of 906 square kilometres.  
Huntingdonshire has grown rapidly in recent years but still remains 
predominately rural with a number of market towns, the largest of which are St. 
Neots, Huntingdon and St Ives.  A map of the District is attached as Appendix 
A.   

 
2.2 The District is prosperous economically with good communications links and 

lower than average unemployment levels, although relatively small pockets of 
deprivation exist in the market towns.   

 
2.3 There are no areas within the District that are considered particularly suitable or 

unsuitable for the provision of facilities for gambling.  Potential operators should 
refer to the Development Plan and the emerging Local Development 
Framework for details about the local planning authority’s approach to planning 
permission for development where such activities may take place by contacting 
the Planning Division or visiting the authority’s website at 
www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk. 

 
3. GAMBLING COMMISSION 
 
3.1 The Gambling Commission regulates gambling in the public interest.  It does so 

by keeping crime out of gambling, by ensuring that gambling is conducted in a 
fair and open way and by protecting children and vulnerable people.  The 
Commission provides independent advice to the government about the manner 
in which gambling is carried out, the effects of gambling and the regulation of 
gambling generally. 

 
3.2 The Commission issued guidance to licensing authorities in April 2006 under 

39



 

2 

section 25 of the Act about the manner in which they should exercise their 
licensing functions under the Act and, in particular, the principles to be applied.  
Further guidance is to be issued in two further documents, one concentrating on 
licensing authorities’ responsibilities in respect of society lotteries and the other 
on the compliance and enforcement responsibilities of authorities.  Licensing 
authorities are required to take account of such guidance. 

 
3.3 The Commission also will issue codes of practice under section 24 of the Act 

about the way in which facilities for gambling are provided and which may 
include provisions about how facilities for gambling are advertised or described.  

 
3.4 The Gambling Commission can be contacted at - 
 
 The Gambling Commission  
 Victoria Square House, 
 Victoria Square 
 Birmingham 
 B2 4BP. 
 
 Website: www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk 
 e-mail: info@gamblingcommission.gov.uk 
 
4. LICENSABLE ACTIVITIES 
 
4.1 ‘Gambling’ is defined in the Act as either gaming, betting or taking part in a 

lottery. 
 
 ‘Gaming’ means playing a game of chance for a prize. 
 
 ‘Betting’ means making or accepting a bet on the outcome of a race, 

competition or any other event or process, the likelihood of anything occurring 
or not occurring, or whether anything is or is not true. 

 
 A ‘lottery’ is an arrangement where persons are required to pay in order to take 

part in the arrangement, during the course of which one or more prizes are 
allocated by a process or processes which relies wholly on chance.  

 
4.2 Private gaming in a private dwelling and on a domestic occasion is exempt from 

licensing or registration providing that no charge is made for participating, only 
equal chance gaming takes place and it does not occur in a place to which the 
public have access.  Domestic betting between inhabitants of the same 
premises or between employees of the same company is also exempt.  Non-
commercial gaming and betting (where no part of the proceeds is for private 
gain) may be subject to certain exemptions. 

 
4.3 Further advice should be sought (where appropriate) from the licensing 

authority’s licensing section at the above address or by telephoning 01480 
387075.  

 
 
 

40



 

3 

 
5. THE LICENSING OBJECTIVES 
 
5.1 In exercising most of their functions under the Gambling Act 2005, licensing 

authorities must have regard to the three licensing objectives defined in section 
1 of the Act.  These are - 

 
♦ preventing gambling from being a source of crime or disorder, being 

associated with crime or disorder or being used to support crime; 
♦ ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way; and 
♦ protecting children and other vulnerable persons from being harmed or 

exploited by gambling. 
 
5.2 The Gambling Commission has stated that the requirement in relation to 

children is explicitly to protect them from being harmed or exploited by 
gambling.   

 
5.3 The licensing authority is aware that, in accordance with Section 153 of the Act 

and in making decisions about premises licences and temporary use notices, it 
should aim to permit the use of premises for gambling in so far as it thinks it - 

 
♦ in accordance with any relevant code of practice issued by the Gambling 

Commission; 
♦ in accordance with any relevant guidance issued by the Gambling 

Commission; 
♦ reasonably consistent with the licensing objectives; and 
♦ in accordance with the authority’s statement of licensing principles. 

 
6. LICENSING AUTHORITY FUNCTIONS 
 
6.1 Under the Act, the Gambling Commission is responsible for the issue of 

operating licences and personal licences. 
 
6.2 The licensing authority will - 
 

♦ be responsible for the licensing of premises where gambling activities are 
to take place by issuing premises licences; 

♦ issue provisional statements; 
♦ regulate members’ clubs that wish to undertake certain gaming activities 

by issuing club gaming permits and/or club machine permits; 
♦ issue club machine permits to commercial clubs; 
♦ grant permits for the use of certain lower stake gaming machines at 

unlicensed family entertainment centres; 
♦ receive notifications from alcohol licensed premises (under the Licensing 

Act 2003) for the use of two or fewer gaming machines; 
♦ issue licensed premises gaming machine permits for premises licensed to 

sell and supply alcohol for consumption on licensed premises, under the 
Licensing Act 2003, where there are more than two machines; 

♦ register small society lotteries below prescribed thresholds; 
♦ issue prize gaming permits; 

41



 

4 

♦ receive and endorse temporary use notices; 
♦ receive occasional use notices; 
♦ provide information to the Gambling Commission regarding details of 

licences issued (see section below on information exchange); 
♦ maintain registers of the permits and licences that are issued by the 

authority; and 
♦ exercise its powers of compliance and enforcement under the Act in 

association with the Gambling Commission and other relevant responsible 
authorities. 

 
6.3 The licensing authority will not be involved in the licensing of remote gambling 

which is the responsibility of the Gambling Commission through the issue of 
operating licences. 

 
6.4 A definitive list of licensable activities for inclusion in this statement of licensing 

principles has been requested from the Commission and, if supplied, will be 
incorporated into the statement once received. 

 
7. STATEMENT OF PRINCIPLES 
 
7.1 Each licensing authority is required by the Act to publish a statement of the 

principles which it proposes to apply when exercising its functions.  This 
statement must be published at least every three years, with this first statement 
coming into effect on 27th January 2007.   The statement shall be reviewed and 
revised from time to time, subject to consultation on any parts thereof which are 
revised.  The statement then will be re-published. 

 
7.2 The licensing authority acknowledges that a wide variety of premises will 

require a licence or a permit, including casinos, tracks, betting shops, bingo 
halls, pubs, clubs and amusement arcades.  

 
7.3 To meet the licensing objectives, the licensing authority will establish a close 

working relationship with the police, the Gambling Commission and, where 
appropriate, other responsible authorities.  The authority will not seek to use the 
powers contained in the Act to deal with matters that can be more readily dealt 
with under other legislation. 

 
7.4 Where children, young persons and other vulnerable people are allowed access 

to premises where gambling takes place, the licensing authority may take 
whatever steps are considered necessary to either limit access generally or by 
introducing measures to prevent under-age gambling where it believes it is right 
to do so for the prevention of their physical, moral or psychological harm, 
especially where it receives representations to that effect. 

 
7.5 Applicants seeking premises licences are encouraged to propose any 

prohibitions or restrictions of their own in circumstances where it is felt that the 
presence of children would be undesirable or inappropriate.  However the 
overriding principle is that all applications and the circumstances prevailing at 
each premises will be considered on their own individual merits.  When applying 
these principles, the licensing authority will consider, in the light of relevant 
representations, whether exceptions should be made in any particular case. 

42



 

5 

 
7.6 The three licensing objectives contained in the Act are referred to more 

specifically below. 
 
 Preventing gambling from being a source of crime and disorder 
 
7.7 The Gambling Commission will play a leading role in preventing gambling from 

being a source of crime and will maintain rigorous licensing procedures that aim 
to prevent criminals from providing facilities for gambling. 

 
7.8 Anyone applying to the licensing authority for a premises licence will have to 

hold an operating licence from the Commission before a premises licence can 
be issued.  Therefore the authority will not generally be concerned with the 
suitability of an applicant and where concerns about a person’s suitability do 
arise, the authority will bring those concerns to the attention of the Commission. 

 
7.9 If an application for a licence or a permit is received in relation to premises 

which are in an area noted for particular problems with organised crime, the 
licensing authority will consider, in consultation with the police and other 
relevant authorities, whether special controls need to be applied to prevent 
those premises from being a source of crime. 

 
7.10 There are already powers in existing anti-social behaviour and licensing 

legislation to deal with measures designed to prevent nuisance, whether it 
arises as a result of noise from a building or from general disturbance once 
people have left a building.  The licensing authority does not therefore intend to 
use the Act to deal with general nuisance issues relating for example to parking 
problems, which can be dealt with under existing alternative powers. 

 
7.11 Issues of disorder will only be dealt with under the Act if the disorder amounts to 

activity that is more serious and disruptive than mere nuisance and it can be 
shown that gambling is a source of that disorder.  For example, a disturbance 
might be serious enough to constitute disorder if police assistance was required 
to deal with it.  Another factor that could be taken into account is how 
threatening the behaviour was to those who see or hear it and whether those 
people live sufficiently close to be affected or have business interests that might 
be affected. 

 
7.12 When making decisions in this regard, the licensing authority will give due 

weight to any comments by the police. 
 
 Ensuring gambling is conducted in a fair and open way 
 
7.13 The Gambling Commission does not expect licensing authorities to become 

concerned with ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way as 
this will be either a matter for the management of the gambling business or will 
relate to the suitability and actions of an individual.  These issues will be 
addressed by the Commission through the operating and personal licensing 
regimes respectively. 

 
7.14 Because track betting operators do not require an operating licence from the 

43



 

6 

Commission, the licensing authority may require conditions to be attached to 
the licence, in certain circumstances, relating to the suitability of the 
environment in which betting takes place. 

 
 Protecting children and other vulnerable persons from being harmed or 

exploited by gambling 
 
7.15 With limited exceptions, the intention of the Act is that children and young 

persons should not be allowed to gamble and should therefore be prevented 
from entering gambling premises which are adult only environments. 

 
7.16 In practice, steps will generally be taken to prevent children from taking part in, 

or being in close proximity to, gambling especially with regard to premises 
situated in areas where there may be a high rate of reported truancy.  There 
may also be restrictions on advertising so that gambling products are not aimed 
at children or advertised in such a way that makes them particularly attractive to 
children.    

 
7.17 When considering whether to grant a premises licence or permit, the licensing 

authority will consider whether any measures are necessary to protect children, 
such as the supervision of entrances, the segregation of gambling from areas 
frequented by children and the supervision of gaming machines in non-adult 
gambling specific premises, such as pubs, clubs and betting tracks. 

 
7.18 In seeking to protect vulnerable persons, the licensing authority will include 

people who gamble more than they want to, people who gamble beyond their 
means, and people who may not be able to make informed or balanced 
decisions about gambling, perhaps due to a mental impairment, alcohol or 
drugs. 

 
7.19 Children (defined in the Act as under 16s) and young persons (16 and 17 year 

olds) may take part in private and non-commercial betting and gaming but the 
Act contains a number of restrictions on the circumstances in which they may 
participate in gambling or be on premises where gambling is taking place.  An 
adult is defined as a person aged 18 or over.  In summary - 

 
♦ betting shops cannot admit children and young persons; 
♦ bingo clubs may admit children and young persons but must have policies 

to ensure that they do not gamble on the premises, except on category D 
machines; 

♦ adult entertainment centres cannot admit children and young persons; 
♦ family entertainment centres and premises with a premises licence under 

the Licensing Act 2003 that includes the sale of alcohol can admit children 
and young persons but they may not play category C machines which are 
restricted to adults; 

♦ clubs with a club premises certificate under the Licensing Act 2003 can 
admit children and young persons but they must have policies to ensure 
that they do not play machines other than category D machines; and 

♦ tracks will be required to have policies to ensure that children and young 
persons do not participate in gambling other than on category D 

44



 

7 

machines. 
 
7.20 The licensing authority will treat each case on its own individual merits and 

when considering whether specific measures are required to protect children 
and other vulnerable persons will balance its considerations against the overall 
principle of aiming to permit the use of premises for gambling. 

 
8. RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITIES 
 
8.1 The Act defines a number of public bodies as responsible authorities that must 

be notified of applications submitted for premises licences and who are entitled 
to make representations to the licensing authority if they are relevant to the 
licensing objectives.  These are - 

 
♦ a licensing authority in whose area the premises are situated in whole or 

in part (i.e. Huntingdonshire District Council and any neighbouring 
authority where a premises straddles the boundary); 

♦ the chief officer of police; 
♦ the fire and rescue authority; 
♦ the local planning authority; 
♦ the local environmental health authority; 
♦ HM Revenues and Customs; and 
♦ a body designated by the licensing authority to advise about the 

protection of children from harm (see below) 
 
8.2 The Secretary of State may also prescribe any other person as a responsible 

authority. 
 
8.3 The licensing authority is required by regulations to state the principles it will 

apply in exercising its duty to designate, in writing, a body which is competent to 
advise the authority about the protection of children from harm.  Those 
principles are - 

 
♦ the need for the body to be responsible for an area covering the whole of 

the licensing authority’s area; and 
♦ the need for the body to be answerable to democratically elected persons, 

rather than any particular vested interest group. 
 
8.4 In accordance with the suggestion in the Gambling Commission’s guidance for 

local authorities, the licensing authority designates the Office of Children and 
Young People's Services of Cambridgeshire County Council for this purpose. 

 
8.5 The contact details of all the responsible authorities are set out in Appendix B 

and available on the licensing authority’s website at 
www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk. 

 
8.6 Any representations by a responsible body in relation to their own functions 

cannot be taken into account unless they are relevant to an application itself 
and the licensing objectives.  In this regard, the licensing authority generally will 
not take into account representations which are not deemed to be relevant, 

45



 

8 

such as - 
 

♦ there are too many gambling premises in the locality (because need for 
gambling facilities cannot be taken into account); 

♦ the premises are likely to be a fire risk (because public safety is not a 
licensing objective); 

♦ the location of the premises is likely to lead to traffic congestion (because 
this does not relate to the licensing objectives); 

♦ the premises will cause crowds to congregate in one area causing noise 
and nuisance (because this can be dealt with under other legislative 
powers and public nuisance is not a licensing objective). 

 
8.7 Each representation will be considered on its own individual merits. 
 
9. INTERESTED PARTIES 
 
9.1 Interested parties can make representations about licence applications or apply 

for a review of an existing licence.  These parties are defined in the Act as 
follows: 

 
9.2 “For the purposes of this Part a person is an interested party in relation to an 

application for or in respect of a premises licence if, in the opinion of the 
licensing authority which issues the licence or to which the application is made, 
the person - 

 
(a) lives sufficiently close to the premises to be likely to be affected by the 

authorised activities; 
 
(b) has business interests that might be affected by the authorised activities; 

or 
 
(c) represents persons who satisfy paragraph (a) or (b)”. 

 
9.3 The licensing authority is required by regulations to state the principles it will 

apply in exercising its powers under the Act to determine whether a person is 
an interested party.  These are:   

 
9.4 Each case will be decided upon its merits.  The authority will have regard to the 

examples contained in the Gambling Commission’s guidance to licensing 
authorities (paragraphs  8.14 and 8.15), i.e.: 

 
 (a) Persons living close to the premises 
 
  ‘The factors that licensing authorities should take into account when 

determining what ‘sufficiently close to the premises’ means (in each case) 
might include - 

 
♦ the size of the premises; 
♦ the nature of the premises; 
♦ the distance of the premises from the location of the person making 

46



 

9 

the representation; 
♦ the potential impact of the premises (number of customers, routes 

likely to be taken by those visiting the establishment); and 
♦ the circumstances of the complainant.  This is not the personal 

characteristics of the complainant, but the interests of the 
complainant which may be relevant to the distance from the 
premises.  For example, it could be reasonable for an authority to 
conclude that ‘sufficiently close to be likely to be affected’ could 
have a different meaning for (a) a private resident (b) a residential 
school for children with truanting problems and (c) a residential 
hostel for vulnerable adults.’ 

 
 (b) Persons with business interests that could be affected 
 
  ‘It could be argued that any gambling business could be affected by 

another gambling business expanding into any part of Great Britain.  But 
that is unlikely to be enough to satisfy the test of being ‘a person with 
business interests that might be affected by the premises’ under 
consideration.  For example, an operator in a particular sector (be it 
casino, bingo, betting etc.) should not be able to lodge representations on 
every application put in by a rival operator anywhere in the country, simply 
because they are in competition within the same gambling sector.   The 
licensing authority should be satisfied that the relevant business is likely 
to be affected.  In this respect, licensing authorities should bear in mind 
that the ‘demand test’ in the 1963 and 1968 Acts has not been preserved 
in the 2005 Act.  Factors that are likely to be relevant include - 

 
♦ the size of the premises; 
♦ the ‘catchment’ area of the premises (i.e. how far people travel to 

visit); and 
♦ whether the person making the representation has business 

interests in that catchment area that might be affected. 
 
9.5 The licensing authority will also have regard to the Gambling Commission’s 

guidance that ‘has business interests’ should be given the widest possible 
interpretation and include partnerships, charities, faith groups and medical 
practices. 

 
9.6 Interested parties can include trade associations and trade unions, and 

residents’ and tenants’ associations.  The licensing authority will not however 
generally view these bodies as interested parties unless they have a member 
who can be classed as an interested person under the terms of the Act, i.e. 
lives sufficiently close to the premises to be likely to be affected by the activities 
being applied for. 

 
9.7 Interested parties can be persons who are democratically elected such as 

councillors and Members of Parliament.  No specific evidence of being asked to 
represent an interested person will be required as long as the councillor or MP 
represents the ward or constituency likely to be affected.  Likewise town and 
parish councils likely to be affected will be considered to be interested parties.  
Other than these, the licensing authority will generally require written evidence 

47



 

10 

that a person or body (e.g. an advocate/relative) represents someone who 
either lives sufficiently close to the premises to be likely to be affected by the 
authorised activities or has business interests that might be affected by the 
authorised activities.  A letter from one of those persons requesting the 
representation will be sufficient. 

 
9.8 If an interested party wishes to approach a councillor to ask him/her to 

represent their views then care should be taken that the councillor is not part of 
the Licensing Sub Committee dealing with the licence application.   The 
licensing authority has adopted a Members’ Licensing Code of Good Practice 
which forms part of its constitution which is available on the authority’s website 
at www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk.  If in doubt, an interested party may contact the 
licensing section for further information. 

 
9.9 The licensing authority will not consider representations that are frivolous or 

vexatious or which relate to demand or need for gambling facilities.  A decision 
on whether representations are frivolous or vexatious will be made objectively 
and if a representation is rejected, the interested party making the 
representation will be informed of the reason in writing.  A vexatious 
representation is generally one that is repetitive, without foundation or made for 
some other reason such as malice.  A frivolous representation is generally one 
that is lacking in seriousness or is unrelated to the licensing objectives, 
Gambling Commission guidance or this statement of licensing principles. 

 
9.10 In the absence of regulations to the contrary, representations should in general - 
 

♦ be made in writing (including by electronic communication); 
♦ indicate the name and address of the person or organisation making the 

representation; 
♦ indicate the premises to which the representation relates; 
♦ indicate the proximity of the premises to the person making the 

representation.  A sketch map or plan would be helpful; and 
♦ clearly set out the reason(s) for making the representation. 

 
10. EXCHANGE OF INFORMATION 
 
10.1 The licensing authority is required to include in its statement the principles to be 

applied by the authority in exercising its functions under sections 29 and 30 of 
the Act with regard to the exchange of information between it and the Gambling 
Commission and its functions under section 350 of the Act with regard to the 
exchange of information between it and the other bodies listed in Schedule 6 to 
the Act. 

 
10.2 The principle that the licensing authority will apply is that it will act in 

accordance with the provisions of the Act in its exchange of information which 
includes the provision that the Data Protection Act 1998 will not be 
contravened.  The licensing authority will also have regard to any guidance 
issued by the Gambling Commission to licensing authorities on this matter 
when it is published, as well as any relevant regulations issued by the Secretary 
of State under the Act.   

 

48



 

11 

10.3 In the event of any protocols being established with regard to information 
exchange with other bodies then these will be made available by the licensing 
authority.  (Discussions between the Gambling Commission and LACORS on 
information exchange between the Commission and licensing authorities are 
understood to be at an early stage.) 

 
11. ENFORCEMENT  
 
11.1 A licensing authority is required by regulation under the Act to state the 

principles to be applied by the authority in exercising its functions under Part 15 
of the Act with regard to the inspection of premises and its powers under 
section 346 of the Act to institute criminal proceedings in respect of the offences 
specified. 

 
11.2 The licensing authority’s principles are that it will be guided by the Gambling 

Commission’s guidance to licensing authorities and will endeavour to be - 
 

♦ proportionate:  the authority will only intervene when necessary, remedies 
will be appropriate to the risk posed, and costs identified and minimised; 

♦ accountable:  the authority must be able to justify its decisions and be 
subject to public scrutiny; 

♦ consistent:  rules and standards will be joined up and implemented fairly 
♦ transparent and open: licence conditions will be simple and user friendly; 

and 
♦ targeted:  regulation should be focused on the problem and side effects 

minimised.  
 
11.3 The licensing authority will endeavour to avoid duplication with other regulatory 

regimes so far as possible.   
 
11.4 The licensing authority will adopt a risk-based inspection programme.  (Whilst 

the Gambling Commission's guidance suggests that the criteria that a licensing 
authority will adopt in this respect are included in this statement, this has not 
been possible.  At the time of the preparation of the statement, the Commission 
has not published its risk criteria, nor have regulations specifying mandatory or 
default conditions nor codes of practice been published.  LACORS is working 
with the Gambling Commission to produce a risk model for premises licences 
and the authority will consider that model once it has been made available.) 

 
11.5 The main enforcement and compliance role for the licensing authority in terms 

of the Act will be to ensure compliance with the premises licences and other 
permissions which it has authorised.  The Gambling Commission will be the 
enforcement body for operating and personal licences and concerns about 
manufacture, supply or repair of gaming machines will be referred by the 
authority to the Commission.   

 
11.6 The licensing authority will also keep itself informed of developments as regards 

the work of the Better Regulation Executive in its consideration of the regulatory 
functions of authorities. 

 
11.7 Bearing in mind the principle of transparency, the licensing authority’s 

49



 

12 

enforcement and prosecution policies are available upon request from the 
authority’s licensing section.  The risk based inspection methodology will also 
be available upon request after its adoption. 

 
12. CONSULTATION 
 
12.1 The licensing authority has consulted widely upon this statement before its 

confirmation and adoption by the authority.  A list of those persons consulted is 
provided at Appendix C, including the following statutory consultees required by 
the Act - 

 
♦ the Chief Officer of Police; 
♦ one or more persons who appear to the authority to represent the 

interests of persons carrying on gambling businesses in the authority’s 
area; 

♦ one or more persons who appear to the authority to represent the 
interests of persons who are likely to be affected by the exercise of the 
authority’s functions under the Act. 

 
12.2 The consultation took place between 14th September and 23rd November 

2006.  A full list of comments made and their consideration by the authority is 
available on request to the licensing section on 01480 387075 and via the 
Council’s website at www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk. 

. 
12.3 The policy was approved at a meeting of the Council held on  _______ and was 

published via the authority’s website on _________.  Copies have been placed 
in public libraries in the District and are available at the authority’s offices at 
Pathfinder House, St Mary’s Street, Huntingdon, Cambs, PE29 3TN. 

 
12.4 Any comments with regard to this statement of principles should be addressed 

to the Licensing Officer by e-mail at greg.peck@huntsdc.gov.uk on or by writing 
to the above address.  This statement of principles will not override the right of 
any person to make an application, make representations about an application 
or apply for a review of a licence, as each will be considered on its own merits 
and according to the statutory requirements of the Act.    

 
13. DECLARATION 
 
13.1 In producing this statement of licensing policy, the licensing authority declares 

that it has had regard to the licensing objectives contained in the Gambling Act 
2005, the guidance issued by the Gambling Commission, and any responses 
from those consulted on the statement. 

 
 

50



 

13 

PART B 
 

PREMISES LICENCES 
 
 
14. GENERAL PRINCIPLES  
 
14.1 Premises licences will be subject to the requirements set out in the Gambling 

Act 2005 and regulations, as well as specific mandatory and default conditions 
which will be defined in regulations issued by the Secretary of State.  The 
licensing authority may exclude default conditions and  attach others where this 
is believed to be appropriate. 

 
14.2 The licensing authority is aware that in making decisions about premises 

licences it should aim to permit the use of premises for gambling in so far as it 
thinks it - 

 
♦ in accordance with any relevant code of practice issued by the Gambling 

Commission; 
♦ in accordance with any relevant guidance issued by the Gambling 

Commission; 
♦ reasonably consistent with the licensing objectives; and 
♦ in accordance with the authority’s statement of principles. 

 
14.3 The authority is aware of the Gambling Commission’s guidance which states 

that "moral objections to gambling are not a valid reason to reject applications 
for premises licences" (except as regards any 'no casino resolution' - see the 
section on Casinos below) and that unmet demand is not a criterion for a 
licensing authority. 

 
15. DEFINITION OF “PREMISES”  
 
15.1 Premises are defined in the Act as “any place”.  Different premises licences 

cannot apply in respect of a single premises at different times.  However it is 
possible for a single building to be subject to more than one premises licence, 
provided they relate to different parts of the building and the different parts of 
the building can be reasonably regarded as being different premises.  Whether 
different parts of a building can properly be regarded as being separate 
premises will always be a question of fact in the circumstances.  However the 
Gambling Commission does not consider that areas of a building that are 
artificially or temporarily separate can be properly regarded as different 
premises. 

 
15.2 The licensing authority takes particular note of the Gambling Commission’s 

guidance to authorities which states that - 
 

♦ licensing authorities should take particular care in considering applications 
for multiple licences for a building and those relating to a discrete part of a 
building used for other (non-gambling) purposes.  In particular they should 
be aware that entrances and exits from parts of a building covered by one 
or more licences should be separate and identifiable so that the 

51



 

14 

separation of different premises is not compromised and that people do 
not ‘drift’ into a gambling area; and 

♦ licensing authorities should pay particular attention to applications where 
access to the licensed premises is through other premises (which 
themselves may be licensed or unlicensed).  Clearly, there will be specific 
issues that authorities should consider before granting such applications, 
for example, whether children can gain access, compatibility of the two 
establishments, and the ability to comply with the requirements of the Act.   
In addition an overriding consideration should be whether, taken as a 
whole, the co-location of the licensed premises with other facilities has the 
effect of creating an arrangement that otherwise would, or should, be 
prohibited under the Act. 

 
 Provisional Statements 
 
15.3 An applicant cannot obtain a full premises licence until the premises in which it 

is proposed to offer the gambling are constructed.  The Gambling Commission 
has advised that a reference to "the premises" are to the premises in which 
gambling may now take place.  Thus a licence to use premises for gambling will 
only be issued in relation to premises that are ready to be used for gambling.  It 
will be a question of fact and degree whether premises are finished to a degree 
that they can be considered for a premises licence.  Requiring a building to be 
complete also ensures that the authority can inspect it fully, if necessary, as can 
other responsible authorities with inspection rights. 

 
15.4 A person therefore may make an application to the authority for a provisional 

statement in respect of premise that he/she expects to be constructed, expects 
to be altered or expects to acquire a right to occupy.  It should be noted that, 
following the grant of a provisional statement, no further representations from 
responsible authorities or interested parties can be taken into account unless 
they concern matters which could not have been addressed at the provisional 
statement stage or they reflect a change in the applicant’s circumstances.  The 
authority may refuse the premises licence (or grant it on terms different to those 
attached to the provisional statement) only by reference to matters - 

 
♦ which could not have been raised by objectors at the provisional 

statement stage; and 
♦ which, in the opinion of the authority, reflects a change in the applicant’s 

circumstances.  
 
 Location  
 
15.5 The licensing authority is aware that the question of demand cannot be 

considered with regard to the location of premises but that location may be a 
consideration insofar as it relates to the licensing objectives.  The authority will 
pay particular attention to the protection of children and vulnerable persons 
from being harmed or exploited by gambling, as well as issues of crime and 
disorder.  Should any specific policy be decided upon with regard to areas 
where gambling premises should not be located, this statement will be updated.  
It should be noted that this policy does not preclude any application from being 
made and each application will be decided on its merits, with the onus upon the 

52



 

15 

applicant to show how potential concerns can be overcome.   
 
 Duplication with other regulatory regimes  
 
15.6 The licensing authority will seek to avoid any duplication with other statutory or 

regulatory systems where possible, including planning.  The authority will not 
consider whether premises are likely to be granted planning permission or 
building regulations approval in its consideration of an application.  It will 
however listen to and consider carefully any concerns about conditions which 
are not able to be met by licence holders due to planning restrictions, should 
such a situation arise. 

 
 Licensing objectives  
 
15.7 The grant of a premises licences must be reasonably consistent with the 

licensing objectives.  
 
 Conditions  
 
15.8 Any conditions attached to a licence by the licensing authority will be 

proportionate and will be - 
 

♦ relevant to the need to make the proposed building suitable as a gambling 
facility; 

♦ directly related to the premises and the type of licence applied for; 
♦ fairly and reasonably related to the scale and type of premises; and 
♦ reasonable in all other respects.  

 
15.9 Decisions upon individual conditions will be made on a case by case basis, 

although there will be a number of measures that the licensing authority will 
consider utilising should there be a perceived need, such as the use of 
supervisors, appropriate signs for adult only areas etc.  Specific comments are 
made in this regard under some of the licence types referred to below.  The 
authority will also expect an applicant for a licence to offer his/her own 
suggestions as to the way in which the licensing objectives can be met 
effectively. 

 
15.10 The licensing authority will also consider specific measures which may be 

required for buildings which are subject to multiple premises licences.  Such 
measures may include the supervision of entrances, segregation of gambling 
from non-gambling areas frequented by children and the supervision of gaming 
machines in non-adult gambling specific premises in order to pursue the 
licensing objectives.   

 
15.11 The authority will ensure that where category C or above machines are 

provided in premises to which children are admitted - 
 

♦ all such machines are located in an area of the premises which is 
separated from the remainder of the premises by a physical barrier which 
is effective in preventing access other than through a designated 
entrance; 

53



 

16 

♦ only adults are admitted to the area where these machines are located; 
♦ access to the area where the machines are located is supervised; 
♦ the area where these machines are located is arranged so that it can be 

observed by the staff or the licence holder; and 
♦ at the entrance to and inside any such areas there are prominently 

displayed notices indicating that access to the area is prohibited to 
persons under 18. 

 
15.12 The licensing authority is aware that tracks may be subject to one or more 

premises licence, provided each licence relates to a specified area of the track.  
In accordance with the Gambling Commission's guidance, the authority will 
consider the impact upon the third licensing objective and the need to ensure 
that entrances to each type of premises are distinct and that children are 
excluded from gambling areas that they are not permitted to enter. 

 
15.13 The authority acknowledges that there are conditions that cannot be attached to 

premises licences which are - 
 

♦ any condition which makes it impossible to comply with an operating 
licence condition; 

♦ conditions relating to gaming machine categories, numbers, or method of 
operation; 

♦ conditions which provide that membership of a club or body be required 
which is specifically prevented by the Act; and 

♦ conditions in relation to stakes, fees, winning or prizes. 
 
 Door Supervisors  
 
15.14 The Gambling Commission guidance provides for a licensing authority to 

consider whether there is a need for door supervisors in terms of the licensing 
objectives of protecting children and vulnerable persons from being harmed or 
exploited by gambling and of preventing premises becoming a source of crime.  
Door supervisors at casinos or bingo premises are not subject to the licensing 
regime of the Security Industry Authority (SIA). The licensing authority therefore 
may find it necessary to impose specific requirements for door supervisors 
working at casinos or bingo premises which are licensed in recognition of the 
nature of their work in terms of searching individuals, dealing with potentially 
aggressive persons, etc. 

 
15.5 For premises other than casinos and bingo premises, operators and the 

licensing authority may decide that the supervision of entrances/machines is 
appropriate in particular cases.  A decision will need to be taken as to whether 
supervisors in such circumstances will need to be SIA licensed as it will not be 
automatically assumed that they need to be. 

 
 Credit 
 
15.6 Section 177 of the Act does not prevent the licensee from permitting the 

installation of cash dispensers (ATMs) on the premises.  Such machines may 
accept credit and debit cards providing that the arrangement is subject to a 

54



 

17 

requirement that the licensee has no other commercial connection in relation to 
gambling (aside from the agreement to site the machines) with the service 
provider and does not profit from the arrangement nor make any payment in 
connection with the machines. 

 
16. ADULT GAMING CENTRES 
 
16.1 Adult gaming centres may provide category B, C and D machines.  (The various 

categories of machine are defined in Appendix D attached.)  The licensing 
authority will have specific regard to the need to protect children and vulnerable 
persons from harm or being exploited by gambling and will expect the applicant 
to satisfy the authority that there will be sufficient measures to, for example, 
ensure that under 18 year olds do not have access to the premises.   

 
16.2 The licensing authority will expect applicants to offer their own measures to 

meet the licensing objectives which may cover issues such as - 
 

♦ proof of age schemes; 
♦ CCTV; 
♦ supervision of entrances/machine areas; 
♦ physical separation of areas; 
♦ location of entry; 
♦ notices/signs; 
♦ specific opening hours; 
♦ self-barring schemes; and 
♦ provision of information leaflets/helpline numbers for organisations such 

as GamCare. 
 
16.3 This list is not mandatory, nor exhaustive, and is merely indicative of possible 

examples of the measures that may be taken. 
 
17. LICENSED FAMILY ENTERTAINMENT CENTRES 
 
17.1 Licensed family entertainment centres may provide category C and D 

machines.  The licensing authority will have specific regard to the need to 
protect children and vulnerable persons from harm or being exploited by 
gambling and will expect the applicant to satisfy the authority, for example, that 
there will be sufficient measures to ensure that under 18 year olds do not have 
access to the adult only gaming machine areas.   

 
17.2 The authority will expect applicants to offer their own measures to meet the 

licensing objectives which may cover issues such as - 
 

♦ CCTV; 
♦ supervision of entrances/machine areas; 
♦ physical separation of areas; 
♦ location of entry; 
♦ notices/signs; 
♦ specific opening hours; 
♦ self-barring schemes; 

55



 

18 

♦ provision of information leaflets/helpline numbers for organisations such 
as GamCare; and 

♦ measures/training for staff on how to deal with suspected truant school 
children on the premises. 

 
17.3 This list is not mandatory, nor exhaustive, and is merely indicative of possible 

example of the measures that may be taken. 
 
17.4 The authority will refer to the Gambling Commission’s website to view any 

conditions that apply to operating licences covering the way in which the area 
containing category C machines should be delineated.  The authority will also 
make itself aware of any mandatory or default conditions on premises licences 
when they have been published.   

 
18. CASINOS 
 
18.1 The licensing authority has not passed a ‘no casino’ resolution under Section 

166 of the Gambling Act 2005 but is aware that it has the power to do so.   If the 
authority decides to pass such a resolution in the future, it will update this policy 
statement with details of that resolution.   

 
18.2 The authority is aware that where a licensing authority area is enabled to grant 

a premises licence for a new style casino, there are likely to be a number of 
operators who will want to run the casino.  In such circumstances, the authority 
comply with the provisions of Schedule 9 of the Gambling Act 2005 and any 
regulations made thereunder. 

 
19. BINGO PREMISES 
 
19.1 Bingo is a class of equal chance gaming that will be permitted on premises 

licensed for the supply of alcohol and in clubs, provided that it does not exceed 
certain thresholds.  Rules are laid down in the Act about the playing of bingo in 
those premises within exempt gaming allowances but where these are 
exceeded, a bingo operating licence will be required from the Gambling 
Commission.  The holder of a licence can provide any type of bingo game, 
including both cash and prize bingo. 

 
19.2 Prize bingo is subsumed within the allowances for prize gaming in adult 

entertainment centres, both licensed and unlicensed family entertainment 
centres and travelling fairs (or premises with a prize gaming permit).  
Commercial bingo halls will require a bingo premises licence from the licensing 
authority and amusement arcades providing bingo will require a prize gaming 
permit, also from the authority. 

 
19.3 Where children are allowed to enter premises licensed for bingo, they are not 

permitted to take part in gambling, other than on category D machines.  Where 
category C or above machines are available in premises to which children are 
admitted, the licensing authority will ensure that - 

 
♦ all such machines are located in an area of the premises separate from 

the remainder of the premises by a physical barrier which is effective to 

56



 

19 

prevent access other than through a designated entrance; 
♦ only adults are admitted to the area where the machines are located; 
♦ access to the area where the machines are located is supervised; 
♦ the area where the machines are located is arranged so that it can be 

observed by staff or the licensee; and 
♦ at the entrance to, and inside any such area there are prominently 

displayed notices indicating that access to the area is prohibited to 
persons under 18. 

 
19.4 The Gambling Commission has indicated that it intends to issue further 

guidance about the particular issues that licensing authorities should take into 
account in relation to the suitability and layout of bingo premises.  The guidance 
will be considered by the authority once it has been made available. 

 
20. BETTING PREMISES 
 
20.1 Any person wishing to operate a betting office will require a betting premises 

licence from the licensing authority.  Children and young persons will not be 
permitted to enter premises with a betting premises licence.   

 
20.2 Premises with a betting premises licence will be able to provide up to four 

gaming machines of category B, C or D and some betting machines (i.e. 
machines designed or adapted for use to bet on future real events).  In 
considering the number of betting machines and the nature and circumstances 
in which they are to be made available, the authority will take into account the 
size of the premises, the number of counter positions available for person-to-
person transactions, and the ability of staff to monitor the use of the machines 
by children and young persons (it is an offence for those under 18 to bet) or by 
vulnerable people. 

 
21. TRACKS 
 
21.1 Tracks are sites (including horse racecourses and dog tracks) where races or 

other sporting events take place.  The restriction that only one premises licence 
can be issued for any particular premises at any one time does not apply to a 
track. 

 
21.2 Track operators are not required to hold an operators licence issued by the 

Gambling Commission.  Therefore a premises licence for a track that is issued 
by the licensing authority is likely to contain requirements on the premises 
licence holder about his responsibilities in relation to the proper conduct of 
betting.  A track operator has an important role to play in ensuring that betting 
areas are properly administered and supervised. 

 
21.3 Although primarily there will be a betting premises licence for a track, there may 

be a number of other licences, provided each licence relates to a specified area 
of the track.  The authority will have particular regard to the impact upon the 
third licensing objective (i.e. the protection of children and vulnerable persons 
from being harmed or exploited by gambling) and the need to ensure that 
entrances to each type of premises are distinct and that children are excluded 

57



 

20 

from gambling areas that they are not permitted to enter. 
 
21.4 The authority will expect the applicant for a betting premises licence for a track 

to demonstrate suitable measures to ensure that children do not have access to 
adult only gaming facilities.  Although children and young persons will be 
permitted to enter track areas where facilities for betting are provided on days 
when horse and/or dog racing takes place, they are still prevented from entering 
areas where gaming machines (other than category D machines) are provided. 

 
21.5 The licensing authority therefore will expect applicants to offer their own 

measures to meet the licensing objectives which may cover issues such as - 
 

♦ proof of age schemes; 
♦ CCTV; 
♦ supervision of entrances/machine areas; 
♦ physical separation of areas; 
♦ location of entry; 
♦ notices/signs; 
♦ specific opening hours; 
♦ self-barring schemes; and 
♦ provision of information leaflets/helpline numbers for organisations such 

as GamCare. 
 
21.6 This list is not mandatory, nor exhaustive, and is merely indicative of possible 

example of the measures that may be taken. 
 
 Gaming machines  
 
21.7 A betting premises licence in respect of a track does not give any automatic 

entitlement to use gaming machines.  Further guidance is awaited from the 
Gambling Commission with regard to where such machines may be located on 
tracks and any special considerations that should apply in relation to, for 
example, the supervision of the machines and the prevention of children from 
playing them.  The authority therefore will consider the location of gaming 
machines at tracks.  An applicant for a track premises licence also will need to 
demonstrate that, where he holds a pool betting operating licence issued by the 
Commission and intends to use his entitlement to four gaming machines, these 
machines are located in areas from which children are excluded, unless they 
are category D machines. 

 
 Betting machines 
 
21.8 The licensing authority has the discretion to limit, by condition attached to a 

licence, the number of betting machines, their nature and the circumstances in 
which they are made available at a track.  The potential space for such 
machines at a track may be considerable, bringing with it significant problems in 
relation to the proliferation of such machines, the ability of track staff to 
supervise them if they are scattered around the track and the ability of the track 
operator to comply with the requirement of the Act to prevent children from 
betting on such machines.  In accordance with the Gambling Commission's 

58



 

21 

guidance, the authority therefore will take into account the size of the premises 
and the ability of staff to monitor the use of the machines by children and young 
persons (it is an offence for those under 18 to bet) or by vulnerable people, 
when considering the number, nature and circumstances of the betting 
machines that a track operator wishes to offer.  It will consider restricting the 
number and location of such machines in the light of the circumstances of each 
application for a betting premises licence for a track. 

 
 Condition on rules being displayed   
 
21.9 It accordance with guidance from the Gambling Commission, the licensing 

authority is likely to attach a condition to track premises licences requiring the 
track operator to ensure that the rules that govern the betting are prominently 
displayed in or near the betting areas or that other measures are taken to 
ensure that they are made available to the public.  For example, the rules could 
be printed on the race-card or made available in leaflet form from the track 
office. 

 
 Applications and plans   
 
21.10 Further regulations are anticipated on any specific requirements that should be 

included in an application for a premises licence but in order to gain a proper 
understanding of what it is being asked to license, the licensing authority will 
require an applicant to submit detailed plans for the track itself and the area that 
will be used for temporary “on-course” betting facilities (often known as the 
“betting ring”).  In the case of dog tracks and horse racecourses, fixed and 
mobile pool betting facilities operated by the Tote or track operator should be 
shown, as well as any other proposed gambling facilities.  Plans should make 
clear what is being sought for authorisation under the track betting premises 
licence and what, if any, other areas are to be subject to a separate application 
for a different type of premises licence. 

 
21.11 This authority concurs with the Commission’s view that it would be preferable 

for all self-contained premises operated by off-course betting operators on a 
track to be the subject of separate premises licences to ensure that there is 
clarity between the respective responsibilities of the track operator and the off-
course betting operator running a self-contained unit on the premises. 

 
22. TRAVELLING FAIRS 
 
22.1 Category D machines and equal chance prize gaming may be provided at 

travelling fairs without a permit, provided that  the facilities for gambling amount 
to no more than an ancillary amusement at the fair.  The licensing authority will 
monitor the activities at travelling fairs to ensure that such gambling does not 
exceed the level at which a permit is required. 

 
22.2 The authority will also monitor whether a fair falls within the statutory definition 

of a travelling fair by not exceeding the 27 days statutory maximum for land to 
be used as a fair in each calendar year.  This applies to a piece of land on 
which the fairs are held, regardless of whether it is the same or different 
travelling fairs occupying the land.  The authority will work with its neighbouring 

59



 

22 

authorities to ensure that land which crosses the District boundaries is 
monitored so that the statutory limits are not exceeded. 

 
23. REVIEWS OF PREMISES LICENCES 
 
23.1 Requests for a review of a premises licence can be made by interested parties 

or responsible authorities at any time.  However it is a matter for the licensing 
authority to decide whether a review is to be carried out.  In so doing, the 
authority will have regard to whether the request - 

 
♦ is frivolous or vexatious; 
♦ is substantially the same as previous representations or requests for a 

review; 
♦ will certainly not cause the authority to alter, revoke or suspend the 

licence; 
♦ is in accordance with any relevant code of practice issued by the 

Gambling Commission; 
♦ is in accordance with any relevant guidance issued by the Gambling 

Commission; 
♦ is reasonably consistent with the licensing objectives; and 
♦ is in accordance with the authority’s statement of licensing policy. 

 
23.2 The authority itself can initiate a review of a licence for any reason which it 

thinks is appropriate. 
 

60



 

23 

PART C 
 

PERMITS AND TEMPORARY & OCCASIONAL USE NOTICES 
 
 
24. UNLICENSED FAMILY ENTERTAINMENT CENTRE GAMING MACHINE 

PERMITS  
 
24.1 If a premises does not hold a premises licence but wishes to provide category D 

gaming machines, application be made to the licensing authority for a gaming 
machine permit.  However the applicant must show that the premises will be 
wholly or mainly used for making gaming machines available for use. 

 
24.2 The Act states that a licensing authority may prepare a statement of principles 

that it proposes to consider in determining the suitability of an applicant for a 
permit.  In preparing this statement and considering applications, the authority 
need not, but may, have regard to the licensing objectives and shall have 
regard to any relevant guidance issued by the Commission.   

 
24.3 An application for a permit may be granted only if the authority is satisfied that 

the premises will be used as an unlicensed family entertainment centre and the 
chief officer of police has been consulted on the application.  As an unlicensed 
family entertainment centre will not require an operating licence or be subject to 
scrutiny by the Commission, the authority will wish to be satisfied as the 
applicant’s suitability before granting a permit.   In so doing, the authority will 
require an applicant to demonstrate - 

 
♦ a full understanding of the maximum stakes and prizes of the gambling 

that is permissible in an unlicensed family entertainment centre; 
♦ that the applicant has no relevant convictions; 
♦ that staff are trained to have a full understanding of the maximum 

permissible  stakes and prizes; and 
♦ that there are policies and procedures in place to protect children from 

harm.   
 
24.4 Harm in this context is not limited to harm from gambling but includes wider 

child protection considerations. The efficiency of such policies and procedures 
will be considered on their merits but they may include appropriate measures 
and training for staff with regard to suspected truant school children on the 
premises, and how they would deal with unsupervised very young children 
being on the premises or children causing perceived problems on or around the 
premises.   

 
24.5 An applicant must submit with the application a plan of the premises to a scale 

of 1:100 showing the entrances/exits to the premises, location of gaming 
machines and the location of safety equipment. 

 
24.6 An application for the renewal of a permit may be refused by the authority only 

on the grounds that an authorised officer of the authority has been refused 
access to the premises without reasonable excuse or that renewal would not be 
reasonably consistent with the licensing objectives. 

61



 

24 

25. (ALCOHOL) LICENSED PREMISES GAMING MACHINE PERMITS 
 
25.1 Provision is made in the Act for premises licensed to sell alcohol for 

consumption on the premises to be entitled to have 2 gaming machines of 
categories C and/or D on the premises.  The licence holder merely needs to 
give notice to the licensing authority of his intention to make gaming machines 
available for use and pay the prescribed fee.  However the authority can 
remove the automatic authorisation in respect of any particular premises if - 

 
♦ provision of the machines is not reasonably consistent with the pursuit of 

the licensing objectives; 
♦ gaming has taken place on the premises that breaches a condition of 

section 282 of the Gambling Act (i.e. that written notice has been provided 
to the licensing authority, that a fee has been provided and that any 
relevant code of practice issued by the Gambling Commission about the 
location and operation of the machine has been complied with); 

♦ the premises are mainly used for gaming; or 
♦ an offence under the Gambling Act has been committed on the premises. 

 
25.2 If more than 2 machines are required, application must be made to the licensing 

authority for a licensed premises gaming machine permit.  The authority must 
consider the application based upon the licensing objectives, any guidance 
issued by the Commission and such matters as they think relevant.  The 
authority  will determine such matters on a case by case basis but generally it 
will have regard to the need to protect children and vulnerable persons from 
being harmed or exploited by gambling.  An applicant will be expected to satisfy 
the authority that there will be sufficient measures to ensure that under 18 year 
olds do not have access to the adult only gaming machines.  Such measures 
could include the adult only machines being in sight of the bar or in the sight of 
staff who will monitor that the machines are not being used by those under 18.  
Notices and signs may also be of help.  With regard to the protection of 
vulnerable persons, applicants may wish to consider the provision of 
information leaflets/helpline numbers for organisations such as GamCare. 

 
25.3 A plan must be submitted with an application for a licensed premises gaming 

machine permit of a scale of 1:100 indicating where and what type of gaming 
machines are to be provided.  This plan may take the form of an amendment to 
the plan attached to the premises licence issued under the Licensing Act 2003. 

 
25.4 Some licence holders with alcohol licensed premises may wish to apply for a 

premises licence for their non-alcohol licensed areas.  Any such application 
would most likely need to be applied for and dealt with as an adult gaming 
centre premises licence. 

 
25.5 It should be noted that the authority can decide to grant the application with a 

smaller number of machines and/or a different category of machines than that 
applied for.  Conditions other than these cannot be attached to a permit. 

 
25.6 It should also be noted that the holder of a permit must comply with any code of 

practice issued by the Gambling Commission about the location and operation 
of machines. 

62



 

25 

 
26. PRIZE GAMING PERMITS  
 
26.1 Gaming is defined as prize gaming if the nature and size of the prize is not 

determined by the number of people playing or the amount paid for or raised by 
the gaming.  The prizes will be determined by the operator before play 
commences. 

 
26.2 Prize gaming may be provided in bingo premises as a consequence of a bingo 

operating licence.  Any type of prize gaming may be provided in adult gaming 
centres and licensed family entertainment centres.  Unlicensed family 
entertainment centres may offer equal chance prize gaming under a gaming 
machine permit.  Prize gaming without a permit may be provided by travelling 
fairs, provided that none of the gambling facilities at the fair amount to more 
than an ancillary amusement.  Children and young people  may participate in 
equal chance gaming only. 

 
26.3 The licensing authority may prepare a statement of principles that it proposes to 

apply in exercising its functions in relation to prize gaming permits which may 
specify particular matters that the authority proposes to consider in determining 
the suitability of an applicant for a permit.  The statement requires an applicant  
to set out in the application the types of gaming that is intended to be offered 
and to demonstrate - 

 
♦ that he understands the limits to stakes and prizes that are set out in 

regulations; and 
♦ and that the gaming offered is within the law. 

 
26.4 The authority will also consider any child protection issues and have regard to 

the need to protect children, young persons and vulnerable persons from harm 
or being exploited by gambling and will expect the applicant to satisfy the 
authority that there will be sufficient measures in place for this purpose. 

 
26.5 In making its decision on an application for a permit, the authority does not have 

to have regard to the licensing objectives but must have regard to any 
Gambling Commission guidance.   

 
26.6 There are conditions in the Act with which the holder of a permit must comply 

but the authority cannot attach conditions.  The conditions specified in the Act 
are - 

 
♦ the limits on participation fees, as set out in regulations, must be complied 

with; 
♦ all chances to participate in the gaming must be allocated on the premises 

on which the gaming is taking place and on one day; the game must be 
played and completed on the day the chances are allocated; and the 
result of the game must be made public in the premises on the day that it 
is played; 

♦ the prize for which the game is played must not exceed the amount set 
out in regulations (if a money prize), or the prescribed value (if non-
monetary prize); and 

63



 

26 

♦ participation in the gaming must not entitle the player to take part in any 
other gambling.  

 
26.7 An applicant must submit with the application a plan of the premises to a scale 

of 1:100 indicating where and what type of prize gaming is to be provided. 
 
27. CLUB GAMING PERMITS AND CLUB MACHINE PERMITS 
 
27.1 Members clubs (but not commercial clubs) may apply for a club gaming permit 

or a club gaming machine permit.  A club gaming permit will enable the 
premises to provide up to 3 gaming machines of categories B, C or D, equal 
chance gaming and games of chance as set out in regulations.  A club gaming 
machine permit will enable the premises to provide up to 3 gaming machines of 
categories B, C or D. 

 
27.2 The Commission’s guidance states that members clubs must have at least 25 

members and be established and conducted wholly or mainly for purposes 
other than gaming, unless the gaming is permitted by separate regulations.  It is 
anticipated that this will cover bridge and whist clubs.  A members club must be 
permanent in nature, not established to make commercial profit, and controlled 
by its members equally.  Examples include working men’s clubs, branches of 
Royal British Legion and clubs with political affiliations. 

  
27.3 The licensing authority may refuse an application only on the grounds that - 
 

♦ the applicant does not fulfil the requirements for a members or 
commercial club and therefore is not entitled to receive the type of permit 
for which it has applied; 

♦ the applicant’s premises are used wholly or mainly by children and/or 
young persons; 

♦ an offence under the Act or a breach of a permit has been committed by 
the applicant while providing gaming facilities; 

♦ a permit held by the applicant has been cancelled in the previous ten 
years; or 

♦ an objection has been lodged by the Commission or the police. 
 
27.4 There is also a fast-track procedure available under the Act for premises that 

hold a club premises certificate under the Licensing Act 2003.  Under this 
procedure there is no opportunity for objections to be made by the Commission 
or the police and the grounds upon which an authority can refuse a permit are 
reduced, as follows - 

 
♦ that the club is established primarily for gaming, other than gaming 

prescribed under schedule 12 of the Act; 
♦ that in addition to the prescribed gaming, the applicant provides facilities 

for other gaming; or 
♦ that a club gaming permit or club machine permit issued to the applicant 

in the last ten years has been cancelled. 
 
27.5 Statutory conditions on both club gaming and club machine permits will require 

64



 

27 

that no child uses a category B or C machine on the premises and that the 
permit holder complies with any relevant provision of a code of practice about 
the location and operation of gaming machines. 

 
28. TEMPORARY USE NOTICES 
 
28.1 A temporary use notice may be given to the licensing authority by the holder of 

an operating licence stating his intention to carry on one or more specified 
activities.  There are a number of statutory limits with regard to temporary use 
notices, including a requirement that the same set of premises may not be the 
subject of a temporary use notice for more than 21 days in any period of 12 
months.  The definition of premises includes any place and the meaning of 
premises and set of premises will be questions of fact in the particular 
circumstances of each notice that is given.  In considering whether a place falls 
within the definition of a set of premises, the authority will have regard, amongst 
other things, to the ownership, occupation and control of the premises.   

 
28.2 The authority will consider whether to give a notice of objection to the person 

giving the temporary use notice having regard to the licensing objectives. 
 
29. OCCASIONAL USE NOTICES 
 
29.1 Where betting is to be provided on a track on 8 days or less in a calendar year, 

betting may be permitted by an occasional use notice without the need for a 
premises licence.  Tracks include, not only a horse racecourse or a dog track, 
but also any other premises on any part of which a race or other sporting event 
takes place or is intended to take place. 

  
29.2 The licensing authority has little discretion with regard to occasional use notices 

but will ensure that the statutory limit of 8 days in a calendar year is not 
exceeded and whether the person giving the notice is permitted to avail 
him/herself of the notice within the definition of a track.  

65



 

28 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This page is intentionally left blank 
 

66



APPENDIX A 
 

29 

DISTRICT OF HUNTINGDONSHIRE 
 
 
 

 
 

67



 

30 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This page is intentionally left blank 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

68



APPENDIX B 
 

31 

RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITIES 
 

 
The Licensing Authority 
 
The Licensing Section 
Huntingdonshire District Council 
Pathfinder House 
St Mary’s Street 
Huntingdon 
PE29 3T 

 
 

 01480 387075 
Fax 01480 388099 
E-mail Licensing@huntsdc.gov.uk 
 

  
The Chief Officer of Police 
 
The Licensing Section 
Cambridgeshire Constabulary 
Chatteris Police Station 
East Park Street 
Chatteris 
PE16 6LD 

 
 

 01354 606504 

  
Cambridgeshire Fire and Rescue Service 
 
Fire Safety Department 
Huntingdon Fire Station 
Hartford Road 
Huntingdon 
PE29 3RH 

 
 

 01480 433297 

  
Local Planning Authority 
 
Head of Planning Services 
Huntingdonshire District Council 
Pathfinder House 
St Mary’s Street 
Huntingdon 
PE29 3TN 

 
 

 01480 388423/ 
 01480 388424 

  
Local Environmental Health Authority 
 
Head of Environmental and Community Health 
Huntingdonshire District Council 
Pathfinder House 
St Mary’s Street 
Huntingdon 
PE29 3TN 

 
 

 01480 388302 

  
  

69



 

32 

HM Revenues and Customs 
 
National Registration Unit 
Portcullis House 
21 India House 
Glasgow 
G2 4PZ 
 

 
 

 0845 302 1448 
Text 0845 302 1452 

  
Office of Children and Young People's Services 
 
Box No SS1001 
Cambridgeshire County Council 
Shire Hall 
Castle Hill 
Cambridge 
CB3 0AP 

 
 

 0845 045 5200 
Fax 01223 717307 
 

  
 

70



APPENDIX C 

33 

LIST OF CONSULTEES 
 
 
Association of British Bookmakers 
 
Regency House 
1 – 4 Warwick Street 
LONDON 
W1B 5LT 
 
 
BACTA 
 
Mr L MacLeod-Miller 
Alders House 
133 Aldersgate Street 
LONDON 
EC1A 4JA 
 
 
Bingo Association 
 
Lexham House 
75 High Street 
NORTH DUNSTABLE 
LU6 1JF 
 
 
British Beer and Pub Association (Midland Counties) 
 
Mr R Matthews 
PO Box 3876 
KIDDERMINISTER 
DY11 5YR 
 
 
British Greyhound Racing Board 
 
Mr R Hayler 
Policy Officer 
32 Old Burlington Street 
LONDON 
W1S 3AT 
 

71



 

34 

British Holiday and Home Parks Association 
 
6 Pullman Court 
Great Western Road 
GLOUCESTER 
GL1 3ND 
 
 
Business in Sport and Leisure 
 
Ms B Simmonds 
CEO 
17a Chartfield Road 
Putney 
LONDON 
SW15 6DX 
 
 
GAMCARE 
 
2/3 Baden Place 
Crossby Row 
LONDON 
SE1 1YM 
 
 
Huntingdon Racecourse 
 
Mrs A Starkey 
CEO 
Thrapston Road 
Brampton 
HUNTINGDON 
PE28 4NJ 
 
 
 
 

72



APPENDIX D 
 

35 

 
 

GAMING MACHINES 
 
 

Category of 
Machine 

Maximum Stake Maximum Prize 

A Unlimited Unlimited 

B1 £2 £4,000 

B2 £100 £500 

B3 £1 £500 

B4 £1 £250 

C 50p £25 

D 10p or 
30p when non-monetary prize 

£5 cash or 
£8 non-monetary prize 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

73



 

36 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This page is intentionally left blank 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F:\Licensing\Gambling Act 2005\Statement of Principles.doc 

74



 

PROMOTING BETTER HEALTH IN OLDER PEOPLE THROUGH PHYSICAL 
ACTIVITY 

(Report of the Overview and Scrutiny Panel (Service Delivery)) 
 
 
1. INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 This report summarises the findings of a study by the Older Persons 

Working Group and contains Members’ recommendations arising from that 
study, which have been endorsed by the Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
(Service Delivery).  The Working Group was established by the former 
Overview and Scrutiny Panel (Service Delivery and Resources) and 
comprised Councillors Mrs M Banerjee, K J Churchill and D Harty. It met on 
a number of occasions, the last being 16th June 2006. 

 
1.2 Following analysis of the needs of older people and of the services available 

to them, the Working Group decided to concentrate on promoting better 
health in older people through physical activity.  Members’ overarching aim 
was to prolong active life for the residents of Huntingdonshire.  The Council 
had responsibility for the governance of the community and for its health and 
its social well-being.  The proposed programme met both of these 
responsibilities.  It also accorded with the Council’s Core Strategy objective 
of enabling elderly people to live independently for their lifetime and 
corresponded with the Government’s objective of enabling older people to 
remain in their homes. 

 
1.3 In undertaking the study the Working Group was mindful of predicted 

demographic changes in Huntingdonshire. Approximately 13% of the 
population of the District is aged 65 or over and Huntingdonshire has the 
largest number of over 65s in Cambridgeshire. Huntingdonshire also has the 
largest number of residents over 75 and the second largest number aged 
over 85. It is predicted that the population aged over 65 will increase by 50% 
between 2002 and 2016, which is double the national rate. 

 
1.4 In the course of the study the Working Group held discussions with 
 

♦ Councillor Mrs J Chandler, Executive Councillor with 
responsibility for Leisure; 

♦ J Barrett, Huntingdonshire District Council ; 
♦ S Lammin, Huntingdonshire District Council; 
♦ S Plant, Huntingdonshire District Council; 
♦ D Smith, Huntingdonshire District Council; 
♦ M Collins, Huntingdonshire Primary Care Trust 
♦ A Gardener, Huntingdonshire Primary Care Trust; 
♦ N Finney, Luminus; 
♦ A Goddard, Luminus, and 
♦ S Bell, Huntingdonshire District Council. 

 
1.5 The Working Group recommended the Council extend its current range of 

services to meet the needs of older people. Details of the services currently 
provided by the Council for older people are attached at Appendix A and a 
list of services provided by the Council for those aged over 50 compared 

Agenda Item 8

75



with other local authorities in Cambridgeshire appears at Appendix B.  
Appendix B does not contain facilities provided at St Neots Leisure Centre. 

 
2. THE WORKING GROUP’S FINDINGS 
 
2.1 The following paragraphs summarise the discussions held and conclusions 

reached by the Working Group. 
 
 a) Falls Prevention 
 
2.2 The Working Group received a presentation from A Gardiner on her work on 

falls prevention. Mrs Gardener was employed by the PCT but was based at 
Hinchingbrooke Hospital as part of a team working on falls prevention, which 
included specialists on physiotherapy and exercise. Approximately 8,000 
falls occurred per year in Huntingdonshire. There was a greater likelihood 
that those aged over 65 years would experience a fall and the chances of 
those over 80 falling were 1:2.  Falls had a significant impact on individuals’ 
lives. There was, therefore, a need to reduce to the incidence of falls, 
particularly amongst the elderly and exercise was perceived to be an 
important factor. 

 
2.3 Mrs Gardener acquainted the Working Group with exercise sessions held at 

the Women’s Institute Centre in Warboys. The sessions were run by staff 
from Ramsey Leisure Centre and key features to their success were their 
cost, location, transportation and the opportunity they offered for social 
interaction.  As an example of best practice in Huntingdonshire, which could 
be replicated throughout the District, Mrs Gardiner expressed the view that 
the initiative in Warboys demonstrated that the link between the Council’s 
leisure service and locally delivered services was critical.  In particular, she 
stressed the importance of specialist training for the staff involved and Mrs 
Gardiner’s team would be able to provide this training.  It subsequently was 
established that this would not meet the Council’s standard of training 
required for teaching exercise classes for older people.  See paragraph 
2.19. 

 
 b) Sheltered Accommodation 
 
2.4 The Working Group considered opportunities to provide exercise 

programmes at sheltered accommodation in the district. It was felt that there 
was demand for such services and advice from the PCT suggested that 
such classes needed to be provided on a regular basis (2/3 times a week) 
so as to achieve the required physical benefits and build a regular clientele. 

 
2.5 Mr N Finney, Group Director of Housing Services, provided the Working 

Group with details of the sheltered accommodation operated by Luminus. 
He also outlined proposals by Luminus to introduce an initiative named “Out 
and About” to provide activities for older people, the cost of which would be 
partly met by lottery funding. 

 
2.6 With regard to sheltered accommodation, the Working Group noted: 
 

♦ Luminus operated 13 sheltered schemes in the District; 
♦ Luminus Sheltered schemes housed 590 older people; 

76



♦ In total 1,000 older people occupied properties operated by 
Luminus. 

 
2.7 It was intended that Out and About would start operating in July 2006. It 

would: 
 

♦ Provide a 15 seater mini bus which had been fully adapted to 
accommodate those with impaired mobility; 

♦ Employ a part-time driver and part-time activities co-ordinator; 
♦ Provide an annual programme of activities for older people; 
♦ Be open to sheltered accommodation and other older people in 

the community; 
♦ Aim to attract 700 users per year; 
♦ Make a nominal charge. 

 
2.8 The Working Group discussed the links between Out and About, falls 

prevention and exercise for older people. There was an opportunity to 
provide exercise classes at sheltered accommodation, which would be open 
to non-resident older people who would be picked up by the mini bus. The 
classes would be provided by the managers of sheltered accommodation; 
however, they would need to be trained. Mr Finney assured the Working 
Group that all necessary training would take place. 

 
2.9 The Working Group discussed the potential to extend the current proposals 

by recruiting a full time activities co-ordinator under Out and About.  In this 
way it was hoped to provide frequent exercise classes, which would help 
with falls prevention, and provide sufficient other activities to cross 
subsidise the exercise classes. The officer also would be expected to 
produce a newsletter for distribution in the wider community so as to attract 
the level of interest aimed at for the scheme. Recruitment of a full-time 
officer would require a financial contribution from the Primary Care Trust 
(PCT). It was agreed to pursue this with the PCT.  

 
2.10 A steering group would determine the strategy for and oversee the 

operation of Out and About.  Age Concern already had been approached 
and had agreed to sit on the Steering Group. Members were of the view 
that the District Council should be represented on the Steering Group and, 
given their level of knowledge in this area, the representative should be one 
of the members of the Working Group.  If the appointment was to be an 
officer then appointees would be required from both the Leisure and 
Community Development sections.  In addition, it was agreed that the PCT 
should be invited to nominate a representative to sit on the Steering Group. 
Other Housing Associations also would be invited to participate.  

 
2.11 The funding awarded to Luminus for Out and About was available for three 

years from 2006/07. In this period the main set up costs of the initiative 
would be incurred.  While there was a condition on the funding awarded to 
Luminus that it remain solely responsible for Out and About, there existed 
opportunities for joint working between Luminus and other organisations, 
including the Council. These included advertising Out and About by the 
Council’s leisure service and via Districtwide, with a reciprocal arrangement 
to advertise the Council’s services that emerged in the long term through 
the Out and About programme via Luminus’ monthly publication.  Out and 

77



About also could be included in the Council’s database of services for older 
people, which is referred to at paragraph 2.20. 

 
2.12 Members noted that sheltered accommodation could be used during down 

time for the provision of exercise classes, for example, by the District 
Council or by the PCT.  

 
 c) Developing the Council’s Services 
 
2.13 The Working Group received a breakdown of services provided by the 

Council relating to exercise for older people, which is contained in Appendix 
A.  Additional information on exercise programmes for older people 
occurring in Huntingdonshire and at other authorities in Cambridgeshire 
together with examples of best practice further afield also were considered.  
In reviewing the information on services currently available in 
Huntingdonshire, Councillor Mrs Chandler drew particular attention to the 
following: 

 
• Impressions – individually tailored exercise programmes for the 

Councils fitness suites; 
• Doctor referrals – individual programmes; 
• Keep fit for older ladies; 
• Healthy walks in conjunction with the PCT; 
 

 Members thought that a comprehensive directory of activities available to 
older people in both the public and private sectors would be useful and a 
recommendation on this appears at the end of this report.  

 
2.14 The Working Group were of the opinion that, owing to the potential benefits 

to older people and its contribution to the objectives of a number of bodies, 
the Council should seek to establish its own programme of exercise for 
older people.  The Working Group noted that the Council’s leisure centres 
were dual use, which restricted the time they had available during the day 
for public use.  Members did not see that leisure centre availability 
represented a barrier to the provision of services as older people often 
preferred activities to be held in local village facilities.   

 
2.15 The Working Group also was informed by Councillor Mrs Chandler that 

many of the exercise programmes at the leisure centres were provided by 
part-time qualified private individuals who were paid by the Council on the 
basis of the number of attendances at their classes. The Council acted as a 
co-ordinator of these classes. The Working Group were of the view that this 
set-up presented a relatively low risk opportunity to extend the current 
range to include specialist provision of classes for older people. It was 
suggested that a pilot exercise be undertaken via the leisure service.  The 
Council would make available space at a Leisure Centre, which an external 
trainer would use to promote his/her own classes of exercise for older 
people. This would have little initial outlay or risk for the Council and would 
provide market testing for future service development by the Council. 

 
2.16 The Working Group suggested that, subject to the experience of Luminus 

with its Out and About initiative, opportunities for exercise classes for older 
people in ‘hub’ villages, at sheltered accommodation during ‘down time’ and 
at doctors surgeries should be explored.  Any programme should be 

78



developed incrementally from the Council’s existing initiative in Warboys in 
this area and of the basis of the pilot scheme referred to in the previous 
paragraph.  Transport would be available via the Luminus Group minibus.  
The minibus would be put by Luminus into the County Council’s Community 
Transport scheme and could be used by public. 

 
2.17 To have the necessary physical effect, the PCT had advised that older 

people should attend exercise classes three times per week. On this basis 
the hire of village halls was costed at approximately £6,700 per year at 
current rates.  Bearing in mind the Council’s own budget setting process 
this could not commence before 2007/08.  The ‘hub’ villages suggested by 
the Working Group were Kimbolton, Sawtry, Somersham, Warboys, 
Ramsey and Yaxley. Although more accurate costings would be required, it 
was suggested that, at present rates, a budget of approximately £32k would 
be required; however, Members were of the view that a nominal charge 
should be made for classes in order that there was little overall cost to the 
Council.  A full programme also would require the use of the community 
transport network. 

 
2.18 Budgetary provision would be required to enable the programme referred to 

above to take place although, overall, it was stressed that it would be at little 
cost to the Council.  The budgetary provision would be required in advance 
to meet the costs of the planned services but it was intended that the 
majority of the budget would be recouped through fees.  Indicative costs of 
up to £54k had been cited for a total programme.  The Working Group, 
however, preferred not to put a figure on the required budget as the costs 
referred to were for a full programme.  The incremental nature of the 
recommendations meant that it would be a number of years before a full 
programme could be introduced.  Officers would prepare the necessary 
forecasts for budgetary purposes according to the level and rate of service 
expansion deemed appropriate. 

 
 d) Training 
 
2.19 The level of qualification that physical training officers would require before 

they could provide physical activity classes for older people was a concern 
for the Working Group.  The Council’s current policy specified that those 
teaching classes to groups of older people should hold qualifications 
recognised by the National Register for Exercise Professionals (NREP) at 
level three. The Council’s Impressions and leisure centre fitness class 
instructors were all qualified to level two or three.  Training for an individual 
would cost in the order of £450 per year. The Working Group were of the 
view that the Council should seek to host the necessary training to ensure 
that sufficient staff were trained to the required level to allow the Working 
Group’s recommendations to be implemented.  In addition, they felt that, in 
order to reduce future costs in this respect, the Council should encourage at 
least one member of its leisure staff to become a qualified trainer in order 
that training could be provided direct by the Council for its own staff and for 
others.  The last recommendation was, however, subsequently withdrawn. 
Although technically possible, it was considered that the requirements 
placed on the Council to achieve trainer status would be so far in excess of 
the potential savings to the Council as to make it unjustifiable. 

79



 
 e) Marketing and Management 
 
2.20 In addition to those referred to above, the Working Group held discussions 

on other related matters.  Members were aware that many services and 
facilities were provided in Huntingdonshire that contributed to the 
overarching aim of the Working Group.  They were of the view that a 
comprehensive and up to date database of these was required in order to 
improve older people’s access to them. This was something that could be 
undertaken by the Environmental and Community Health Section. 

 
2.21 The Working Group discussed the marketing materials currently produced 

by the leisure service.  The Working Group were of the view that the 
Council’s current approach to targeting those aged 50 and over deterred 
those aged over 65 from using the Council’s facilities.  Members suggested 
that marketing materials should be produced that were specifically aimed at 
those aged over 65 years. This recommendation did not relate to new 
services and it was stressed that older people were not necessarily 
restricted to classes and facilities aimed at their age group.  It was not 
intended that new facilities and classes would be provided under this 
recommendation, merely that some marketing should be undertaken 
designed to encourage older people to use existing facilities and classes, 
which were open to all ages.  It was felt that this would reduce the likelihood 
that older people would be deterred from using existing services.  

 
2.23 In discussing exercise activities provided by the voluntary/private sector, 

Members identified a potential problem with succession where services 
were provided by key individuals.  It was suggested that it there was an 
opportunity to introduce greater continuity of provision if there was a public 
sector body, such as the Council, co-ordinating the service. 

 
 f) Exercise Referral 
 
2.24 The Working Group discussed the current exercise referral service, which 

operated at the leisure centres.  If leisure centre staff were provided with 
specialist training there was an opportunity to continue to provide services 
for frail people once their exercise referral programmes had finished.  
Having considered the extension of the existing exercise referral scheme to 
continue to provide classes specifically tailored to those who had completed 
the scheme, this was not pursued.  Members were reluctant to do this as 
there would be considerable benefit from it and there was great demand for 
such a service. It was, however, of a different nature to the main body of the 
study in that it dealt with clients post injury rather than injury prevention. 

 
 
 g) Huntingdonshire Strategic Partnership 
 
2.25 The Working Group was made aware that the potential benefits of physical 

activity hit many of the drivers of a number of bodies.  Members, therefore, 
suggested that the Health, Housing and Social Care Thematic Group of the 
Huntingdonshire Strategic Partnership should be requested to consider 
adopting the promotion of physical exercise amongst older people as one of 
its objectives. 

 
 

80



 
 
3. CONCLUSION 
 
3.1 The Older Persons Working Group met on number of occasions.  Members 

decided to concentrate on promoting better health in older people through 
physical activity.  A range of information was considered on the services 
currently provided by the Council, on services provided by other sectors in 
Huntingdonshire and in Cambridgeshire and on national best practice.  On 
the basis of this information and of discussions with relevant individuals 
Members have identified a number of initiatives that might be pursued to 
advance the objective of the Working Group.  The outcomes of these 
discussions have been summarised above and the Scrutiny Panel: 

 
RECOMMEND 

 
  that the Cabinet be requested to - 
 

(1) appoint a representative to the Out and About Steering Group; 
(2) promote Out and About through the Leisure Service and 

Distrtctwide; 
(3) subject to the progress of Out and About, establish a programme 

of exercise for older people at ‘hub’ villages and Luminus 
Sheltered Housing to commence in 2007/08; 

(4) make the necessary budgetary provision to enable the programme 
referred to above to take place although overall it will be at little 
cost to the Council; 

(5) subject to the programme of development referred to in 
Recommendation 3 and the outcome of the pilot referred to in 
Recommendation 8, train sufficient leisure staff to NREP level 
three as required to allow the programme referred to above to 
proceed; 

(6) provide facilities at the Leisure Centres for external trainers to 
provide their own classes for those aged over 65 years on a pilot 
basis; 

(7) introduce measures to ensure continuity of existing classes 
provided by the voluntary sector;  

(8) compile and maintain a comprehensive and up to date database 
of exercise services and facilities for older people; 

(9) produce marketing materials designed to encourage those aged 
over 65 years to use all of the Council’s existing leisure facilities 
and classes as appropriate; 

(10) request the Huntingdonshire Strategic Partnerships Health, 
Housing and Social Care Thematic Group to consider adopting 
the promotion of physical exercise amongst older people as one of 
its objectives, and 

(11) undertake a review of progress with the implementation of 
recommendations (1) to (10) for submission to the Overview and 
Scrutiny Panel (Service Delivery). 

 
Contact Officer: Mr A Roberts (01480) 388009 
 
Background Documents – Reports of meetings of the Older Persons Working 
Group. 

81



 
 

82



A
PP

EN
D

IX
 A

 
   

H
un

ts
 D

C
 

C
am

br
id

ge
 

C
ity

 
S

ou
th

 C
am

bs
 

D
C

 
Fe

nl
an

d 
C

D
 

E
as

t C
am

bs
 

D
C

 
P

et
er

bo
ro

ug
h 

C
C

 
Sw

im
m

iin
g/

W
at

er
 b

as
ed

 A
ct

iv
iti

es
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

O
ve

r 4
0’

s/
50

’s
 S

w
im

m
in

g 
√ 

√ 
 

√ 
 

 
A

qu
a 

A
er

ob
ic

s 
√ 

√ 
 

√ 
 

√ 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

A
er

ob
ic

s/
Fi

tn
es

s 
C

la
ss

 T
yp

e 
A

ct
iv

iti
es

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
B

od
y 

C
on

di
tio

ni
ng

 
 

√ 
 

√ 
 

√ 
Fi

tn
es

s 
P

ila
te

s 
 

√ 
 

 
 

√ 
C

irc
ui

ts
 

√ 
√ 

√ 
√ 

 
√ 

M
ig

ht
y 

M
ov

er
s 

 
√ 

 
 

 
 

T’
ai

 C
hi

 
 

√ 
 

 
 

 
Li

ne
 d

an
ci

ng
 

 
 

√ 
 

 
 

P
ila

te
s 

√ 
 

√ 
√ 

 
√ 

Y
og

a/
Y

og
a 

fo
r B

eg
in

ne
rs

/D
yn

am
ic

 Y
og

a 
√ 

 
√ 

 
 

√ 
S

tre
tc

h 
an

d 
To

ne
 

 
 

√ 
 

 
√ 

G
en

tle
 E

xe
rc

is
e 

fo
r t

he
 O

ve
r 5

0’
s 

 
 

√ 
√ 

 
√ 

A
er

ob
ic

s 
√ 

 
√ 

 
 

√ 
Th

ig
hs

, T
um

s 
&

 B
um

s 
√ 

 
√ 

 
 

 
G

et
 F

it 
fo

r O
ve

r 6
0s

 
 

 
√ 

 
 

 
K

ee
p 

Fi
t t

o 
M

us
ic

 fo
r O

ve
r 5

0’
s 

 
 

√ 
 

 
 

Ta
p 

D
an

ci
ng

 
 

 
√ 

 
 

 
B

al
lro

om
 D

an
ci

ng
 

 
 

√ 
 

 
 

K
ee

p 
Fi

t 
√ 

 
 

√ 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Sp
or

ts
 B

as
ed

 A
t L

ei
su

re
/S

po
rt

s 
C

en
tr

es
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Ta
bl

e 
Te

nn
is

 
√ 

√ 
 

√ 
 

√ 
B

ow
ls

 &
 B

ad
m

in
to

n 
 

√ 
 

√ 
 

 

83



Te
nn

is
 &

 B
ad

m
in

to
n 

√ 
√ 

 
√ 

 
√ 

Fi
t ‘

n’
 F

ift
y 

 
√ 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Sp
or

ts
 B

as
ed

 a
t O

th
er

 V
en

ue
s 

e.
g.

 p
riv

at
e 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
ns

/ 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Te
np

in
 B

ow
lin

g 
 

√ 
 

 
 

 
Te

nn
is

 L
es

so
ns

 
 

√ 
 

 
 

 
G

ol
f L

es
so

ns
 

 
√ 

 
 

 
 

V
ol

le
y 

B
al

l 
 

√ 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

G
ym

/F
itn

es
s 

St
ud

io
 B

as
ed

 A
ct

iv
iti

es
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

D
av

id
’s

 W
ee

kl
y 

W
or

ko
ut

s 
 

√ 
 

 
 

 
Fi

t F
or

 A
ll 

 
√ 

 
 

 
 

O
ve

r 5
o’

s 
fit

ne
ss

 c
la

ss
 x

 2
 (o

ff 
si

te
) 

√ 
 

 
 

 
 

  

84



APPENDIX B. 
 
 

CURRENT HDC SERVICES FOR OLDER PEOPLE 
 
 
 
Chief Officers, Heads of Service and Activity Managers have been consulted on the 
services provided by the District Council specifically for older people.  There does not 
appear to be extensive provision that is targeted at this age group: most services are 
open to all which. 
 
The following responses were received from officers: 
 

At Huntingdon Leisure Centre there is a Fit & 40s activity morning from 9.00 – 12.00 
every Monday (except Bank Holidays). This is aimed at older age groups, but is 
called Fit & 40s simply to include more customers. 

Since January 1st 2005 there have been 47 people over the age of 60 participating in 
the activity morning, many are regulars. 

For only £3.30 (£3.50 from 1st Jan 2006) customers can participate in a variety of 
activities including:  

Activity Regular cost (£) Time of activity 
Swimming 1.70  10.30 – 11.30 
Aerobics 3.50 (3.60 in Jan 

’06) 
09.35 – 10.25 

Yoga 5.25 (5.40 in Jan 
’06) 

10.35 – 12.00 

Badminton 3.50/ court 09.00 – 11.30 
Sauna/Steam 3.00 09.00 – 12.00 
Tea/ Coffee 0.90 Any time that day 
  

There are three services that are used to a large degree by older people although 
they are necessarily targeted specifically at older people. 

    Number % 
Cardiac Rehabilitation Over 60 55 71% 
Exercise Referral (04-
05) Over 65 47 15% 
Health Walks Over 60 203 53%  

 

Exercise Referral is only available for over 65’s at present as we measure this in age 
bands rather than specific ages and this is the age that the PCT require for their 
definition of an older person.  The PCT co-funds the scheme. 

The numbers for cardiac rehab and health walks are estimates at best as people 
continually join and leave these schemes.  

85



In addition the Countryside Services Manager has commented that “none of my 
services are specifically aimed at groups aged 60+ although we provide many 
services which are used by this age group, such as volunteering. We purposely avoid 
specific age or ability groups because we have a social inclusion policy. Many of our 
older volunteers work well with special needs and excluded young people. This is an 
arrangement that all parties gain from and we actively encourage. It is inevitable that 
mid-week volunteers are more likely to be retired people but we do not exclude 
others who wish to volunteer.  I do believe that my service does a substantial amount 
of work with the 60+ age range which should be flagged up to the Overview and 
Scrutiny Panel. Unfortunately, under this criterion, services provided by HDC will not 
be acknowledged by them.” 
 

86



 

                             
 
 
COMT 
CABINET 

                         22ND AUGUST 2006 
                         7TH SEPTEMBER 2006 

 
 

GODMANCHESTER POST STREET CONSERVATION AREA:  
MANAGEMENT PLAN 

CONSULTATION DOCUMENT 
(Report by Planning Policy Manager) 

 
 
1. INTRODUCTION  
 
1.1 Cabinet is asked to consider the attached draft document and approve it 

for consultation purposes. Once representations have been received 
and considered, it is intended to seek Cabinet’s endorsement of the 
documents for use as material considerations in the context of planning 
proposals and as a future strategy for the enhancement of the 
Conservation Area. 

  
 
2. BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 The District Council is already committed to the production of 

Conservation Area Character Statements to provide an analysis of the 
special interest of all the district’s 63 Conservation Areas. These 
documents will be used to guide decisions on planning matters and 
other changes to the fabric of Conservation Areas to ensure that the 
character and appearance of Conservation Areas is not diminished.   

 
2.2 A Character Statement for Godmanchester Post Street was produced in 

2003 and it complies with English Heritage’s recent guidance on 
conservation area appraisal. However, at the time of writing, national 
guidance had not advanced to explain what was required in terms of the 
future management of the area. This has now been rectified with the 
publication of Guidance on the management of Conservation Areas by 
English Heritage in March 2006, and further onus has been placed on 
the District Council through BVPI 219c which requires the production of 
Management Plans for each designated Conservation Area on a rolling 
five year programme of review. 

 
 
3. THE MANAGEMENT PLAN 
 
3.1 The Management Plan has been developed as a partner document to 

the existing Character Statement. It identifies a series of key issues 
which influence the character and appearance of the Conservation Area 
and recommends methods or solutions for improvement.  

 
3.2 The intention is for the Management Plan to form a basis for on-going 

discussion with the local community and, jointly, to bring about 
enhancement of the Conservation Area through policy refinements and 
physical works. The Plan can evolve during its use, and will be formally 
reviewed every five years. 

Agenda Item 9

87



 

 
3.3 Management Plans are considered to represent best practice and are 

intended to engender a spirit of joint-working between the local planning 
authority and the local community. 

 
 

 
4. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
4.1 That Cabinet approves the Draft Management Plan for the 

Godmanchester Post Street Conservation Area for a period of public 
consultation. 

 
 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
Conservation Area Character Statement Godmanchester Post Street 2003 
 
 
Contact Officer: Chris Surfleet 

Design & Implementation Team Leader 
  01480 388476 
 

88



 

                            . 
 
 
COMT 
CABINET 

                         22ND AUGUST 2006 
                         7TH SEPTEMBER 2006 

 
 

KEYSTON CONSERVATION AREA:  
MANAGEMENT PLAN 

CONSULTATION DOCUMENT 
(Report by Planning Policy Manager) 

 
 
1. INTRODUCTION  
 
1.1 Cabinet is asked to consider the attached draft document and approve it 

for consultation purposes. Once representations have been received 
and considered, it is intended to seek Cabinet’s endorsement of the 
documents for use as material considerations in the context of planning 
proposals and as a future strategy for the enhancement of the 
Conservation Area. 

  
 
2. BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 The District Council is already committed to the production of 

Conservation Area Character Statements to provide an analysis of the 
special interest of all the district’s 63 Conservation Areas. These 
documents will be used to guide decisions on planning matters and 
other changes to the fabric of Conservation Areas to ensure that the 
character and appearance of Conservation Areas is not diminished.   

 
2.2 A Character Statement for Keyston was produced in 2003 and it 

complies with English Heritage’s recent guidance on conservation area 
appraisal. However, in 2003, national guidance had not advanced to 
explain what was required in terms of the future management of the 
area. This has now been rectified with the publication of Guidance on 
the management of Conservation Areas by English Heritage in March 
2006, and further onus has been placed on the District Council through 
BVPI 219c which requires the production of Management Plans for each 
designated Conservation Area on a rolling five year programme of 
review. 

 
 
3. THE MANAGEMENT PLAN 
 
3.1 The Management Plan has been developed as a partner document to 

the existing Character Statement. It identifies a series of key issues 
which influence the character and appearance of the Conservation Area 
and recommends methods or solutions for improvement.  

 
3.2 The intention is for the Management Plan to form a basis for on-going 

discussion with the local community and, jointly, to bring about 
enhancement of the Conservation Area through policy refinements and 
physical works. The Plan can evolve during its use, and will be formally 
reviewed every five years. 

Agenda Item 10

89



 

 
3.3 Management Plans are considered to represent best practice and are 

intended to engender a spirit of joint-working between the local planning 
authority and the local community. 

 
 

 
4. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
4.1 That Cabinet approves the Draft Management Plan for the Keyston 

Conservation Area for a period of public consultation. 
 
 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
Keyston Conservation Area Character Statement 2003 
 
 
Contact Officer: Chris Surfleet 

Design & Implementation Team Leader 
  01480 388476 
 

90



 

                             
 
 
COMT 
CABINET 

                         22ND AUGUST 2006 
                         7TH SEPTEMBER 2006 

 
 

GODMANCHESTER EARNING STREET CONSERVATION AREA:  
MANAGEMENT PLAN 

CONSULTATION DOCUMENT 
(Report by Planning Policy Manager) 

 
 
1. INTRODUCTION  
 
1.1 Cabinet is asked to consider the attached draft document and approve it 

for consultation purposes. Once representations have been received 
and considered, it is intended to seek Cabinet’s endorsement of the 
documents for use as material considerations in the context of planning 
proposals and as a future strategy for the enhancement of the 
Conservation Area. 

  
 
2. BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 The District Council is already committed to the production of 

Conservation Area Character Statements to provide an analysis of the 
special interest of all the district’s 63 Conservation Areas. These 
documents will be used to guide decisions on planning matters and 
other changes to the fabric of Conservation Areas to ensure that the 
character and appearance of Conservation Areas is not diminished.   

 
2.2 A Character Statement for Godmanchester Earning Street was produced 

in 2003 and it complies with English Heritage’s recent guidance on 
conservation area appraisal. However, in 2003, national guidance had 
not advanced to explain what was required in terms of the future 
management of the area. This has now been rectified with the 
publication of Guidance on the management of Conservation Areas in 
March 2006 by English Heritage, and further onus has been placed on 
the District Council through BVPI 219c which requires the production of 
Management Plans for each designated Conservation Area on a rolling 
five year programme of review. 

 
 
3. THE MANAGEMENT PLAN 
 
3.1 The Management Plan has been developed as a partner document to 

the Character Statement. It identifies a series of key issues which 
influence the character and appearance of the Conservation Area and 
recommends methods or solutions for improvement.  

 
3.2 The intention is for the Management Plan to form a basis for on-going 

discussion with the local community and, jointly, to bring about 
enhancement of the Conservation Area through policy refinements and 
physical works. The Plan can evolve during its use, and will be formally 
reviewed every five years. 

Agenda Item 11

91



 

 
3.3 Management Plans are considered to represent best practice and are 

intended to engender a spirit of joint-working between the local planning 
authority and the local community. 

 
 

 
4. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
4.1 That Cabinet approves the Draft Management Plan for the 

Godmanchester Earning Street Conservation Area for a period of public 
consultation. 

 
 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
Conservation Area Character Statement Godmanchester Earning Street 2003 
 
 
Contact Officer: Chris Surfleet 

Design & Implementation Team Leader 
  01480 388476 
 

92



 

                             
 
 
COMT 
CABINET 

                         22ND AUGUST 2006 
                         7TH SEPTEMBER 2006 

 
 

STONELY CONSERVATION AREA:  
MANAGEMENT PLAN 

CONSULTATION DOCUMENT 
(Report by Planning Policy Manager) 

 
 
1. INTRODUCTION  
 
1.1 Cabinet is asked to consider the attached draft document and approve it 

for consultation purposes. Once representations have been received 
and considered, it is intended to seek Cabinet’s endorsement of the 
documents for use as material considerations in the context of planning 
proposals and as a future strategy for the enhancement of the 
Conservation Area. 

  
 
2. BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 The District Council is already committed to the production of 

Conservation Area Character Statements to provide an analysis of the 
special interest of all the district’s 63 Conservation Areas. These 
documents will be used to guide decisions on planning matters and 
other changes to the fabric of Conservation Areas to ensure that the 
character and appearance of Conservation Areas is not diminished.   

 
2.2 A Character Statement for Stonely was produced in 2003 and it 

complies with English Heritage’s recent guidance on conservation area 
appraisal. However, at that time, national guidance had not advanced to 
explain what was required in terms of the future management of the 
area. This has now been rectified with the publication of Guidance on 
the management of Conservation Areas by English Heritage in March 
2006, and further onus has been placed on the District Council through 
BVPI 219c which requires the production of Management Plans for each 
designated Conservation Area on a rolling five year programme of 
review. 

 
 
3. THE MANAGEMENT PLAN 
 
3.1 The Management Plan has been developed as a partner document to 

the existing Character Statement. It identifies a series of key issues 
which influence the character and appearance of the Conservation Area 
and recommends methods or solutions for improvement.  

 
3.2 The intention is for the Management Plan to form a basis for on-going 

discussion with the local community and, jointly, to bring about 
enhancement of the Conservation Area through policy refinements and 
physical works. The Plan can evolve during its use, and will be formally 
reviewed every five years. 

Agenda Item 12

93



 

 
3.3 Management Plans are considered to represent best practice and are 

intended to engender a spirit of joint-working between the local planning 
authority and the local community. 

 
 

 
4. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
4.1 That Cabinet approves the Draft Management Plan for the Stonely 

Conservation Area for a period of public consultation. 
 
 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
Stonely Conservation Area Character Statement 2003 
 
 
Contact Officer: Chris Surfleet 

Design & Implementation Team Leader 
  01480 388476 
 

94



 
 
 
  
 

  
COMT                                                                               22ND AUGUST 2006 
CABINET                                                                        7TH SEPTEMBER 2006 

URBAN DESIGN FRAMEWORK AND MASTERPLAN 
ST MARY’S URBAN VILLAGE, ST NEOTS 

(Report by HEAD OF PLANNING SERVICES) 
 
 

1. INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 This Urban Design Framework and Masterplan examines the 

redevelopment opportunities on land to the west of St Mary’s Church, 
between High Street and Brook Street, St Neots. It presents the 
planning policy context for the comprehensive redevelopment of this 
area, which may involve the creation of a new mixed use 
development for this part of St Neots, together with improved car 
parking and pedestrian linkages.  

 
1.2 Cabinet is asked to consider this draft document and the comments 

that have been received, and adopt the document as Interim Planning 
Guidance. 

 
2.            BACKGROUND  
 
2.1 Most of the site has been in poor repair for many years. Various 

redevelopment schemes have been proposed over the years, and as 
the site is split between several owners it has been difficult to 
assemble. 

 
2.2 The site is currently used for a number of different uses, including a 

DIY shop, storage buildings, a garage mechanics, a tanning studio, a 
tattoo parlour, a church hall, and formal and informal car parking.  

 
2.3 There are several interesting buildings within the boundaries of the 

site, some of which are listed. Among those listed is Brook House, 
one of the finest buildings in St Neots, its setting unfortunately let 
down by the garage mechanics’ buildings next door.  

 
2.4 Part of the site has been allocated for residential development for a 

number of years, but there has been little chance of it being 
implemented in the past for the reasons stated in paragraph 2.1. As a 
result, parts of the site have gradually deteriorated. 

 
2.5 There is currently agreement amongst most of the landowners to 

bring forward their land for redevelopment. Efforts are being made to 
get agreement with all parties. Failing this other measures at the 
Council’s disposal may have to be considered. 

 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 13

95



3.0 THE URBAN DESIGN FRAMEWORK AND MASTERPLAN 
 
3.1 The purpose of this document is to ensure that a well planned and 

appropriate development can take place on site, something which 
contributes to improving the built environment of the town. 

 
3.2 Particularly important is removing the inappropriate uses that 

currently exist, detracting from the setting of Brook House and St 
Mary’s Church. 

 
3.3 The Masterplan sets design parameters for the successful 

development of the site, ensuring that future proposals achieve 
imaginative and distinctive solutions. Indicative layouts are shown 
that illustrate what could be achieved. 

 
4. CONSULATION EXERCISE AND RESPONSE 
 
4.1 A public exhibition was held in the St Mary’s Church Hall in the 

afternoon of 7th July. Notices were posted to local residents and 
businesses informing them of the exhibition. Public notices were also 
placed in the local press and the local newspapers also ran stories 
highlighting the exhibition before and after the event. The local press 
were also present at the exhibition asking those who attended what 
they thought about the proposals. Over 50 members of the public 
attended, and the views of those who filled in their questionnaires 
have been attached to the appendix.  

 
4.2 The Masterplan was also presented to the Council’s Development 

Control Panel on 19th June, St Neots Town Council on 12th July, and 
the St Neots Town Centre Initiative on 13th July.  

 
5. CONCLUSION 
 
5.1 Production of an Urban Design Framework and Masterplan is best 

practice and will help to secure the most appropriate form of 
development over the whole of this site. 

 
6. RECOMMENDATION 
 
6.1 That the Cabinet authorises the revisions to the document as 

presented in Annex 1. 
 
6.2 That the Cabinet delegates adoption of the revised document, 

incorporating minor consequential amendments, as Interim Planning 
Guidance, to the Executive member for planning Strategy, in 
consultation with the Head of Planning Services.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

96



 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
Huntingdonshire Local Plan Alterations June 2002 
Huntingdonshire Design Guide SPG Sept 2004 
Huntingdonshire Landscape & Townscape Assessment SPG Sept 2004 
St Neots Town Centre – The future, Civic Trust May 2004 
 
 
 
 
Contact Officer: Mike Huntington 
  01480 388404 
 

97



98

This page is intentionally left blank



 

A
nn

ex
 1

 
S

t M
ar

y’
s 

U
rb

an
 V

illa
ge

, S
t N

eo
ts

 
S

um
m

ar
y 

of
 W

rit
te

n 
C

om
m

en
ts

  
 Th

e 
ta

bl
e 

be
lo

w
 d

et
ai

ls
 th

e 
co

m
m

en
ts

 re
ce

iv
ed

 in
 g

en
er

al
 le

tte
rs

 a
nd

 fr
om

 c
om

m
en

ts
 o

r a
tta

ch
m

en
ts

 fr
om

 th
e 

pu
bl

ic
 q

ue
st

io
nn

ai
re

s.
  

 A
ct

io
n 

C
od

e:
 

 1 
A

ct
io

n 
Ta

ke
n 

2 
N

ot
 w

ith
in

 re
m

it 
of

 IP
G

 
3 

N
o 

ac
tio

n 
re

qu
ire

d 
 C

om
m

en
t 

by
: 

 

R
es

po
n

de
nt

 
no

. 

N
at

ur
e 

of
 C

om
m

en
t 

R
es

po
ns

e 
A

ct
io

n 

S
t N

eo
ts

 
To

w
n 

C
ou

nc
il 

1 
Th

e 
m

as
te

r 
pl

an
 is

 t
o 

be
 b

ro
ad

ly
 w

el
co

m
ed

 a
lth

ou
gh

 t
he

 t
ow

n 
C

ou
nc

il 
w

ou
ld

 u
rg

e 
th

e 
D

is
tri

ct
 t

o 
“jo

in
 u

p”
 t

he
 v

ar
io

us
 m

as
te

r 
pl

an
s 

to
 fo

rm
 p

ar
t o

f a
 s

in
gl

e 
co

he
si

ve
 T

ow
n 

pl
an

 fo
r S

t N
eo

ts
. 

 N
ot

w
ith

st
an

di
ng

 t
he

 a
llo

ca
tio

n 
of

 t
hi

s 
ar

ea
 f

or
 h

ou
si

ng
 i

n 
th

e 
Lo

ca
l 

P
la

n,
 t

he
 D

is
tri

ct
 b

e 
as

ke
d 

to
 l

oo
k 

at
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

in
 a

 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 e
le

m
en

t o
f r

et
ai

l a
s 

w
el

l; 
    Th

e 
D

is
tri

ct
 s

ho
ul

d 
re

vi
ew

 th
e 

pl
an

 w
ith

 a
 v

ie
w

 to
 in

co
rp

or
at

in
g 

cr
im

e 
pr

ev
en

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

s 
in

 o
rd

er
 t

o 
m

in
im

is
e 

hi
dd

en
 a

re
as

 
an

d 
ro

ut
es

 o
f e

sc
ap

e.
 

 A
n 

el
em

en
t 

of
 le

is
ur

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

ne
ed

s 
to

 b
e 

in
cl

ud
ed

 a
nd

 t
he

 
ar

ea
s 

be
 in

ve
st

ig
at

ed
 fo

r t
he

 p
os

si
bi

lit
y 

of
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

a 
ci

ne
m

a 
on

 

N
ot

ed
. 

   A
 la

rg
e 

el
em

en
t o

f r
et

ai
l, 

w
ith

 it
s 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 s

er
vi

ci
ng

 re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

, w
ou

ld
 

bl
ig

ht
 th

is
 h

is
to

ric
 p

ar
t o

f t
he

 to
w

n.
 

H
ow

ev
er

, a
n 

in
cr

ea
se

d 
el

em
en

t o
f s

m
al

l 
sc

al
e 

re
ta

il 
co

ul
d 

be
 lo

ok
ed

 a
t. 

 N
ot

ed
. A

dd
 c

om
m

en
t i

n 
an

ne
x 

re
ga

rd
in

g 
se

cu
re

 b
y 

de
si

gn
.  

 Th
e 

C
hu

rc
h 

H
al

l h
as

 b
ee

n 
su

gg
es

te
d 

in
 

th
e 

m
as

te
rp

la
n 

fo
r a

n 
en

la
rg

ed
 

3    1      3   3  

99



 

C
om

m
en

t 
by

: 
 

R
es

po
n

de
nt

 
no

. 

N
at

ur
e 

of
 C

om
m

en
t 

R
es

po
ns

e 
A

ct
io

n 

th
is

 s
ite

.    
      Th

e 
sc

he
du

le
 o

f l
is

te
d 

bu
ild

in
gs

 in
 th

is
 a

re
a 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
re

vi
ew

ed
. 

 

co
m

m
un

ity
 / 

le
is

ur
e 

re
so

ur
ce

 in
 th

is
 

lo
ca

tio
n.

 T
he

 s
ite

 is
 n

ot
 th

e 
be

st
 lo

ca
tio

n 
fo

r a
 c

in
em

a.
 S

uc
h 

a 
us

e 
w

ou
ld

 re
qu

ire
 a

 
la

rg
e 

bu
ild

in
g 

th
at

 w
ou

ld
 n

ot
 s

it 
w

el
l i

n 
th

is
 h

is
to

ric
 a

re
a,

 a
nd

 w
ou

ld
 s

er
io

us
ly

 
de

tra
ct

 fr
om

 th
e 

se
tti

ng
 o

f t
he

 li
st

ed
 

bu
ild

in
gs

 a
nd

 th
e 

co
ns

er
va

tio
n 

ar
ea

. 
 D

is
ag

re
e.

 L
is

te
d 

bu
ild

in
gs

 p
ro

vi
de

 a
n 

im
po

rta
nt

 h
is

to
ric

 b
ac

kd
ro

p 
to

 th
e 

to
w

n.
  

 

        3 

S
t N

eo
ts

 
P

ar
is

h 
C

hu
rc

h 
 

2 
W

el
co

m
ed

 p
ro

po
sa

ls
 a

s 
an

 a
tte

m
pt

 to
 d

ea
l w

ith
 a

n 
ar

ea
 th

at
 

ha
s 

so
m

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l b

ut
 w

hi
ch

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
in

 a
 p

oo
r s

ta
te

 fo
r m

an
y 

ye
ar

s.
 

 P
ro

vi
si

on
 o

f p
ed

es
tri

an
 a

cc
es

s 
w

as
 to

 b
e 

en
co

ur
ag

ed
. 

 S
ev

er
al

 p
oi

nt
s 

re
la

tin
g 

to
 th

e 
fu

tu
re

 u
se

 o
f t

he
 C

hu
rc

h 
H

al
l, 

its
 

po
te

nt
ia

l f
or

 e
xp

an
si

on
, f

ut
ur

e 
ow

ne
rs

hi
p 

an
d 

m
an

ag
em

en
t. 

 U
ns

ur
e 

as
 to

 w
hy

 c
on

si
de

ra
tio

n 
w

as
 n

ot
 g

iv
en

 to
 p

ro
pe

rti
es

 
fu

rth
er

 w
es

t t
ha

n 
W

in
dm

ill
 R

ow
. 

 N
ot

ed
 th

at
 p

ro
po

se
d 

bu
ild

in
gs

 a
dj

ac
en

t t
o 

ch
ur

ch
 y

ar
d 

w
al

l t
o 

th
e 

no
rth

 o
f t

he
 C

hu
rc

h 
R

oo
m

 w
ou

ld
 a

lte
r t

he
 v

ie
w

 fo
rm

 th
e 

ch
ur

ch
ya

rd
, a

nd
 th

is
 w

ou
ld

 n
ee

d 
to

 ta
ke

 in
to

 a
cc

ou
nt

 th
e 

pr
es

en
ce

 o
f t

re
es

 a
lo

ng
 th

e 
w

al
l. 

 

N
ot

ed
 

   N
ot

ed
 

 N
ot

ed
. T

hi
s 

w
ill 

be
 d

is
cu

ss
ed

 a
t s

om
e 

fu
tu

re
 ti

m
e.

 
 Th

es
e 

pr
op

er
tie

s 
ar

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
sh

op
s,

 
of

fic
es

 a
nd

 fl
at

s,
 a

nd
 a

re
 n

ot
 p

ro
po

se
d 

fo
r r

ed
ev

el
op

m
en

t. 
 A

gr
ee

. T
he

 s
ca

le
 o

f b
ui

ld
in

gs
 w

ill
 n

ee
d 

to
 

be
 d

is
cu

ss
ed

 a
t m

or
e 

de
ta

ile
d 

st
ag

e.
  

 

3    3  3   3    3   

100



 

C
om

m
en

t 
by

: 
 

R
es

po
n

de
nt

 
no

. 

N
at

ur
e 

of
 C

om
m

en
t 

R
es

po
ns

e 
A

ct
io

n 

 
 

H
D

C
 

Tr
an

sp
or

t 
te

am
 

3 
Fi

gu
re

 1
6 

- l
ab

el
 th

e 
st

re
et

s 
on

 th
e 

m
ap

 
 P

ar
a 

6.
2 

– 
ch

an
ge

 to
 ‘s

om
e 

of
 th

es
e 

ac
ce

ss
es

’ 
 P

ar
a 

8.
3 

- C
hu

rc
h 

W
al

k 
an

d 
ot

he
r o

ff 
si

te
 a

cc
es

se
s 

m
ay

 n
ee

d 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
. 

 P
ar

a 
8.

5 
– 

A
cc

es
s 

A
 –

 Ib
be

tts
 R

ow
, w

ill
 n

ee
d 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 to
 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

an
d 

vi
si

bi
lit

y.
 

 P
ar

a 
9.

4 
ad

d 
A

cc
es

s 
to

 th
e 

si
te

 w
ill 

re
qu

ire
 c

lo
se

 e
xa

m
in

at
io

n 
to

 
ac

hi
ev

e 
sa

fe
 a

nd
 p

ra
ct

ic
al

 a
ll 

m
od

e 
ac

ce
ss

 to
 th

e 
si

te
 d

ow
n 

th
es

e 
na

rr
ow

 c
or

rid
or

s.
 

 A
ls

o 
m

ak
e 

re
fe

re
nc

e 
to

 th
e 

ne
w

 M
an

ua
l f

or
 S

tre
et

s 
an

d 
fo

rth
co

m
in

g 
de

si
gn

 a
dv

ic
e 

fro
m

 C
C

C
. 

  

A
gr

ee
. M

ak
e 

ch
an

ge
s.

 
 A

gr
ee

. M
ak

e 
ch

an
ge

s.
 

 A
gr

ee
. M

ak
e 

ch
an

ge
s.

 
 A

gr
ee

. M
ak

e 
ch

an
ge

s.
 

  A
gr

ee
. M

ak
e 

ch
an

ge
s.

 
  A

gr
ee

. M
ak

e 
ch

an
ge

s.
 

 

1  1  1  1   1   1    
C

C
C

  
H

ig
hw

ay
s 

4 
S

up
po

rt 
th

e 
pr

op
os

al
 fo

r a
n 

ur
ba

n 
vi

lla
ge

, b
ut

 th
in

k 
th

er
e 

ne
ed

s 
at

 a
pp

lic
at

io
n 

st
ag

e 
to

 b
e 

so
m

e 
w

or
k 

on
 e

nf
or

ci
ng

 p
ar

ki
ng

 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 to

 li
m

it 
us

e 
et

c,
 b

ut
 th

at
’s

 a
 m

in
or

 it
em

. 
 

N
ot

ed
 

   

3    
E

nv
iro

nm
en

t 
A

ge
nc

y 
5 

Fu
lly

 s
up

po
rt 

th
e 

pr
od

uc
tio

n 
of

 d
es

ig
n 

fra
m

ew
or

ks
 fo

r s
pe

ci
fic

 
si

te
s.

 
 N

ot
ed

 in
 p

ar
a 

4.
1 

th
at

 a
lth

ou
gh

 th
e 

si
te

 is
 m

os
tly

 o
ut

si
de

 th
e 

1 
in

 1
00

 y
ea

r f
lo

od
 p

la
in

, m
os

t o
f t

he
 s

ite
 is

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
1 

in
 1

00
0 

ye
ar

 fl
oo

d 
pl

ai
n.

  

N
ot

ed
.  

  N
ot

ed
. A

dd
 to

 d
oc

um
en

t. 
  

3   1   

101



 

C
om

m
en

t 
by

: 
 

R
es

po
n

de
nt

 
no

. 

N
at

ur
e 

of
 C

om
m

en
t 

R
es

po
ns

e 
A

ct
io

n 

 S
up

po
rt 

st
at

em
en

t i
n 

pa
ra

 9
.7

 th
at

 a
ny

 a
pp

lic
at

io
n 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
ac

co
m

pa
ni

ed
 b

y 
a 

Fl
oo

d 
R

is
k 

As
se

ss
m

en
t. 

 P
la

nn
in

g 
P

ol
ic

y 
G

ui
da

nc
e 

N
ot

e 
25

 (P
PG

25
) i

s 
no

t m
en

tio
ne

d.
 

E
xt

re
m

el
y 

im
po

rta
nt

 th
at

 re
fe

re
nc

e 
is

 m
ad

e 
to

 th
is

 d
oc

um
en

t. 
 

 N
ot

ed
. 

  N
ot

ed
. A

dd
 to

 d
oc

um
en

t. 
 

 3   1   
C

ou
nt

y 
A

rc
ha

eo
lo

gy
 

6 
R

ec
or

ds
 in

di
ca

te
 th

at
 th

e 
si

te
 is

 lo
ca

te
d 

in
 a

n 
ar

ea
 o

f h
ig

h 
ar

ch
ae

ol
og

ic
al

 p
ot

en
tia

l. 
 

 Th
e 

si
te

 is
 lo

ca
te

d 
in

 th
e 

m
ed

ie
va

l c
or

e 
of

 th
e 

to
w

n,
 a

dj
ac

en
t t

o 
th

e 
m

ed
ie

va
l p

ar
is

h 
ch

ur
ch

 o
f S

t M
ar

y 
(r

ec
or

d 
nu

m
be

r 
C

B
14

93
2)

, a
nd

 in
ve

st
ig

at
io

ns
 in

 S
ou

th
 S

tre
et

 h
av

e 
de

m
on

st
ra

te
d 

th
at

 d
ep

os
its

 a
ss

oc
ia

te
d 

w
ith

 th
e 

m
ed

ie
va

l 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f t

he
 to

w
n 

su
rv

iv
e 

in
 th

e 
vi

ci
ni

ty
 (r

ec
or

d 
nu

m
be

r 
E

C
B

46
4)

. 
 

N
ot

ed
. A

dd
 to

 a
nn

ex
. 

  N
ot

ed
. A

dd
 to

 a
nn

ex
. 

1   1 

S
t N

eo
ts

 
To

w
n 

C
en

tre
 

In
iti

at
iv

e 
– 

R
ed

ev
el

op
m

e
nt

 a
nd

 
E

nv
iro

nm
en

t 
G

ro
up

 
 

7 
A

re
a 

be
tw

ee
n 

H
ig

h 
S

t a
nd

 B
ro

ok
 S

t h
as

 a
 lo

t o
f p

ot
en

tia
l t

o 
im

pr
ov

e 
ac

ce
ss

 a
nd

 th
ro

ug
h 

ro
ut

es
. T

he
re

 is
 a

 lo
t o

f w
as

te
d 

an
d 

un
de

ru
se

d 
sp

ac
e.

 It
 is

 a
pp

re
ci

at
ed

 th
at

 d
iv

id
ed

 la
nd

 
ow

ne
rs

hi
p 

ha
s 

hi
nd

er
ed

 p
as

t a
tte

m
pt

s 
to

 im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

ar
ea

. 
 It 

is
 h

op
ed

 th
at

 th
is

 p
la

n 
ca

n 
pr

oc
ee

d 
an

d 
if 

an
y 

on
e 

la
nd

ow
ne

r 
is

 o
bs

tru
ct

iv
e 

th
en

 th
e 

D
is

tri
ct

 C
ou

nc
il 

sh
ou

ld
 c

on
si

de
r u

si
ng

 it
s 

po
w

er
s 

to
 o

ve
rc

om
e 

su
ch

 a
 p

ro
bl

em
. 

 Fa
vo

ur
ed

 s
m

al
l s

ca
le

 re
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t a
pp

ro
ac

h 
w

ith
 th

e 
th

ro
ug

h 

N
ot

ed
. 

    N
ot

ed
. 

   N
ot

ed
. 

3     3    3 

102



 

C
om

m
en

t 
by

: 
 

R
es

po
n

de
nt

 
no

. 

N
at

ur
e 

of
 C

om
m

en
t 

R
es

po
ns

e 
A

ct
io

n 

ro
ut

es
 m

ad
e 

m
or

e 
at

tra
ct

iv
e.

 
 Fe

lt 
th

at
 s

m
al

l r
et

ai
l u

ni
ts

 w
ou

ld
 o

nl
y 

su
cc

ee
d 

if 
cl

os
e 

to
 th

e 
H

ig
h 

S
tre

et
. R

es
t o

f s
ite

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 m

ix
tu

re
 o

f s
m

al
l h

ou
si

ng
 

un
its

, o
ffi

ce
s,

 a
nd

 w
or

ks
ho

ps
. L

at
te

r w
ou

ld
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

ct
iv

ity
 

du
rin

g 
th

e 
da

y 
an

d 
ad

d 
to

 th
e 

H
ig

h 
S

t f
oo

tfa
ll.

 T
he

 w
or

ks
ho

ps
 

co
ul

d 
fit

 in
to

 th
e 

C
re

at
iv

e 
E

nt
er

pr
is

e 
C

en
tre

’s
 c

lu
st

er
 s

tra
te

gy
. 

Th
e 

In
iti

at
iv

e 
ha

s 
a 

st
ro

ng
 in

te
re

st
 in

 B
ro

ok
 H

ou
se

 a
nd

 a
gr

ee
s 

w
ith

 th
e 

P
la

nn
in

g 
vi

ew
 o

f i
ts

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
n 

to
 th

e 
ar

ea
. 

   
  

  N
ot

ed
. 

  3 

S
t N

eo
ts

 
To

w
n 

C
en

tre
 

In
iti

at
iv

e 
– 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

G
ro

up
 

 

8 
A

pp
ro

ve
d 

th
e 

co
nc

ep
t o

f b
et

te
r a

cc
es

s 
th

ro
ug

h 
op

en
in

g 
up

 
ce

rta
in

 p
as

sa
ge

w
ay

s.
 

 S
m

al
l r

et
ai

l w
as

 a
lre

ad
y 

ov
er

su
pp

lie
d 

as
 it

 w
as

 d
iff

ic
ul

t f
or

 th
em

 
to

 s
ur

vi
ve

 a
s 

sm
al

l u
ni

ts
 w

ith
 h

ig
h 

re
nt

s 
/ r

at
es

. 
   O

ne
 m

em
be

r t
ho

ug
ht

 th
at

 th
is

 w
as

 a
 lo

st
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

ty
 fo

r a
 

10
,0

00
 s

q 
ft 

re
ta

il 
un

it 
th

at
 th

e 
re

ta
il 

se
ct

or
 b

ad
ly

 n
ee

de
d.

  
    S

oc
ia

l p
ro

vi
si

on
 u

si
ng

 th
e 

C
hu

rc
h 

ce
nt

re
 w

as
 n

ot
 th

ou
gh

t 
am

bi
tio

us
 e

no
ug

h.
  

 

N
ot

ed
. 

  P
ro

po
sa

l f
ol

lo
w

s 
id

ea
s 

pr
op

os
ed

 in
 th

e 
C

iv
ic

 T
ru

st
 re

po
rt 

to
 c

re
at

e 
an

 ‘u
rb

an
 

vi
lla

ge
’ o

f s
m

al
l s

ca
le

 b
ui

ld
in

gs
 w

ith
 a

 m
ix

 
of

 u
ni

ts
. 

 D
is

ag
re

e.
 T

hi
s 

w
ou

ld
 n

ot
 re

fle
ct

 th
e 

C
iv

ic
 

Tr
us

t’s
 re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

ns
. S

ite
 is

 in
 th

e 
hi

st
or

ic
 c

or
e 

of
 th

e 
to

w
n 

an
d 

an
y 

la
rg

e 
sc

al
e 

re
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t w
ou

ld
 b

lig
ht

 th
is

 
ar

ea
. 

 Th
is

 w
ou

ld
 b

e 
di

sc
us

se
d 

at
 a

 la
te

r s
ta

ge
. 

  

3   3     3      3   

103



 

C
om

m
en

t 
by

: 
 

R
es

po
n

de
nt

 
no

. 

N
at

ur
e 

of
 C

om
m

en
t 

R
es

po
ns

e 
A

ct
io

n 

Im
po

rta
nc

e 
of

 B
ro

ok
 H

ou
se

 w
as

 re
co

gn
is

ed
, a

s 
w

as
 th

e 
ne

ed
 to

 
ta

ck
le

 th
e 

un
si

gh
tly

 g
ar

ag
e 

pr
ob

le
m

.  
 It 

w
as

 a
gr

ee
d 

th
at

 th
e 

pr
op

os
al

 w
as

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
sp

iri
t o

f t
he

 C
iv

ic
 

Tr
us

t r
ep

or
t. 

 

N
ot

ed
. 

  N
ot

ed
. 

3   3   
11

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 

qu
es

tio
nn

ai
re

s 
9 

 
8 

‘s
tro

ng
ly

 s
up

po
rt’

 re
de

ve
lo

pi
ng

 th
e 

si
te

, 
an

d 
3 

‘s
up

po
rt’

 
 5 

‘s
tro

ng
ly

 s
up

po
rt’

 th
e 

ov
er

al
l c

on
ce

pt
, 4

 
‘s

up
po

rt’
, a

nd
 2

 ‘o
pp

os
e’

 th
e 

co
nc

ep
t 

 

3  

C
or

re
ct

io
n 

1 
 

‘R
ed

 li
ne

 b
ou

nd
ar

y’
 to

 s
ite

 in
co

ns
is

te
nt

 o
n 

al
l m

ap
s.

 
 

R
ed

 li
ne

 b
ou

nd
ar

y 
to

 b
e 

as
 fi

gu
re

 2
6,

 b
ut

 
w

ith
ou

t t
he

 b
ui

ld
in

gs
 h

ig
hl

ig
ht

ed
 w

ith
 a

n 
ar

ro
w

 a
s 

‘re
ta

il 
w

ith
 re

si
de

nt
ia

l a
bo

ve
’. 

Th
es

e 
bu

ild
in

gs
 s

ho
ul

d 
no

t b
e 

in
cl

ud
ed

. 
 

 

C
or

re
ct

io
n 

2 
 

R
e-

or
de

r p
ho

to
s 

to
 c

or
re

ct
ly

 re
la

te
 to

 fi
gu

re
 1

7 
 

 
 

C
or

re
ct

io
n 

3 
 

P
ar

a 
8.

8 
un

fin
is

he
d.

 C
la

rif
y 

w
ha

t P
P

G
22

 m
ea

ns
. 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 A

ls
o 

m
in

or
 ty

po
s.

 
 

 

  

104



 

W
rit

te
n 

co
m

m
en

ts
 fr

om
 m

em
be

rs
 o

f t
he

 p
ub

lic
 w

ho
 a

tte
nd

ed
 th

e 
ex

hi
bi

tio
n:

- 
  1.

 ‘W
e 

w
ou

ld
 li

ke
 th

e 
ar

ea
 to

 b
ec

om
e 

on
e 

th
at

 c
an

 b
e 

br
ow

se
d 

th
ro

ug
h,

 s
o 

th
at

 s
ho

ps
 c

an
 b

e 
pa

rt 
of

 a
 p

le
as

an
t e

xp
er

ie
nc

e.
 It

 is
 a

ls
o 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 
to

 h
av

e 
al

l t
he

 
in

fra
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

in
pl

ac
e 

be
fo

re
 w

or
k 

st
ar

ts
 ra

th
er

 th
an

 a
fte

r w
or

k 
ha

s 
be

en
 c

om
pl

et
ed

’. 
  2.

 ‘T
hi

s 
ar

ea
 is

 lo
ng

 o
ve

rd
ue

 to
 b

e 
br

ou
gh

t b
ac

k 
in

to
 u

se
. I

 a
pp

ro
ve

 o
f t

he
 fa

ct
 th

at
 th

e 
ol

d 
co

tta
ge

s 
an

d 
th

e 
fo

rg
e 

w
ill

 re
m

ai
n 

an
d 

be
 b

ro
ug

ht
 b

ac
k 

in
to

 u
se

 –
 th

e 
so

on
er

 th
e 

be
tte

r. 
Th

e 
fa

ct
 th

at
 B

ro
ok

 S
tre

et
 d

oe
s 

oc
ca

si
on

al
ly

 fl
oo

d 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

ta
ke

n 
in

to
 a

cc
ou

nt
. T

oo
 m

an
y 

pe
de

st
ria

n 
ro

ut
es

 m
ay

 re
su

lt 
in

 la
te

 n
ig

ht
 a

nt
is

oc
ia

l 
be

ha
vi

ou
r -

 o
ne

 th
ou

gh
 ro

ut
e 

w
ou

ld
 b

e 
pr

ef
er

ab
le

.’ 
 3.

 ‘E
xc

el
le

nt
 id

ea
, l

on
g 

ov
er

du
e.

 P
le

as
e 

try
 to

 k
ee

p 
as

 m
uc

h 
of

 th
e 

or
ig

in
al

 b
ui

ld
in

gs
 a

nd
 s

ty
le

 a
s 

po
ss

ib
le

.’ 
 4.

 ‘S
tro

ng
ly

 a
gr

ee
 w

ith
 th

e 
pl

an
s.

 It
 w

ou
ld

 tu
rn

 a
n 

ey
es

or
e 

in
to

 a
 d

es
ira

bl
e 

pl
ac

e 
to

 b
e.

’ 
 5.

 ‘I
t w

ou
ld

 b
e 

ni
ce

 to
 s

ee
 ‘b

ou
tiq

ue
’ t

yp
e 

sh
op

s 
in

 th
e 

al
le

ys
 in

 th
e 

w
ay

 th
at

 h
as

 h
ap

pe
ne

d 
in

 H
itc

hi
n,

 a
nd

 if
 th

e 
m

ar
ke

t w
er

e 
ju

dg
ed

 to
 b

e 
su

ffi
ci

en
t, 

pe
rh

ap
s 

m
or

e 
(w

ith
 re

si
de

nt
ia

l a
bo

ve
) c

ou
ld

 b
e 

ad
de

d.
 T

hi
s 

ar
ea

 o
f t

he
 to

w
n 

is
 in

cr
ed

ib
ly

 im
po

rta
nt

 a
nd

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 o

pe
ne

d 
up

 a
nd

 c
ur

re
nt

 b
ar

rie
rs

 re
m

ov
ed

. A
cc

es
s 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

si
te

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 e

ns
ur

ed
 in

 a
ny

 p
la

n.
 W

ha
te

ve
r h

ap
pe

ns
, t

he
 s

ite
 s

ho
ul

d 
no

t b
e 

re
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

so
le

ly
 fo

r r
es

id
en

tia
l p

ur
po

se
s.

’ 
 6.

 ‘W
as

 h
op

in
g 

it 
w

as
 g

oi
ng

 to
 in

cl
ud

e 
m

or
e 

sh
op

s.
 N

ee
ds

 a
 s

ea
tin

g 
ar

ea
 a

nd
 p

os
si

bl
y 

flo
w

er
 b

ed
s 

or
 b

as
ke

ts
.’ 

 7.
 ‘T

he
 c

on
ce

pt
 o

f m
ix

ed
 u

se
 is

 g
oo

d 
bu

t m
y 

co
nc

er
n 

is
 to

o 
m

an
y 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l u

ni
ts

 in
to

 s
m

al
l a

 s
pa

ce
 c

au
si

ng
 p

ar
ki

ng
 a

nd
 c

on
ge

st
io

n 
pr

ob
le

m
s.

 T
he

 a
re

a 
at

 
pr

es
en

t i
s 

sh
ab

by
 b

ut
 h

as
 a

 c
er

ta
in

 c
ha

rm
.’ 

 8.
 ‘N

o 
m

or
e 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l u

ni
ts

, m
or

e 
gr

ee
n 

ar
ea

s 
fo

r p
eo

pl
e 

to
 s

it 
an

d 
re

la
x 

an
d 

ea
t. 

A
n 

ar
ea

 fo
r y

ou
ng

 c
hi

ld
re

n 
to

 b
e 

ab
le

 to
 g

et
 o

ut
 o

f t
he

ir 
pu

sh
ch

ai
rs

 a
nd

 w
al

k 
sa

fe
ly

.’ 
 9.

 ‘T
he

 o
rig

in
al

 tr
ig

ge
r f

or
 th

is
 p

la
n 

w
as

 th
e 

C
iv

ic
 T

ru
st

 re
po

rt.
 B

ut
 th

e 
m

aj
or

 p
ar

t w
as

 th
at

 S
t N

eo
ts

 n
ee

de
d 

bi
gg

er
 re

ta
il 

ar
ea

s.
 T

hi
s 

is
 n

ot
 a

dd
re

ss
ed

. I
ns

te
ad

 o
f 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l a

re
as

 h
ow

 a
bo

ut
 a

 c
in

em
a!

 D
ev

el
op

er
s 

ar
e 

w
ill

in
g 

to
 c

om
e 

he
re

 if
 g

iv
en

 th
e 

rig
ht

 a
re

a.
 T

hi
s 

is
 a

n 
id

ea
l a

re
a.

’ 
 

105



 

 

106



 

 

107



108

This page is intentionally left blank



 

CABINET 7TH SEPTEMNBER 2006 
 

CUSTOMER FIRST & ACCOMMODATION 
ADVISORY GROUP  

(Report of the Advisory Group) 
 
1. INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 The Advisory Group met on 26th July 2006 and Councillors I C Bates, S J 

Criswell, P J Downes, K Reynolds, T V Rogers and L M Simpson were 
present. 

 
1.2 An apology for absence from the meeting was submitted on behalf of 

Councillor P L E Bucknell. 
 
1.3 Councillor I C Bates was elected Chairman and Councillor L M Simpson 

appointed Vice-Chairman of the Advisory Group respectively. 
 
1.4 Terms of reference for the Advisory Group were approved. 
 
2. HEADQUARTERS AND OTHER ACCOMMODATION 
 
2.1 By way of a report by the Head of Technical Services, the Advisory Group 

were acquainted with progress achieved on the Headquarters and 
Accommodation Project since the Spring.  In a presentation by the 
Director of Operational Services, specific reference was made to the 
current position in the following key areas –  

 
♦ the Development Agreement; 
♦ the acquisition of land for and design of the Operations Centre;  
♦ options for securing best value in terms of the future use and 

disposal of Castle Hill House; and 
♦ the outcome of the space planning exercise. 

 
2.2 Having regard to the overall capital cost of the project, the Advisory 

Group were assured that whilst the position necessarily would fluctuate 
as the project progressed, this should be contained within the approved 
MTP provision.  The financial position would continue to be received as 
the project progressed and as further detailed design and cost 
information became available. 

 
2.3 With regard to the Operations Centre, the Advisory Group were informed 

that whilst the design should deliver a BREEAM “very good” rating, 
consideration had been given to an alternative construction strategy, at 
less cost, which could result in a “good” rating.  Notwithstanding the 
difficulty in attaining an “excellent” rating for what substantially would be 
an industrial building and the potential for achieving this by way of 
investment in biomass boilers, the Advisory Group were strongly of the 
view that the Council should strive to achieve, at the very least, a “very 
good” BREEAM rating for the new Operation Centre. 

 
2.4 Bearing in mind the requirement to name the Centre for mailing 

purposes, the Advisory Group indicated their support for research to 
commence on the history of the site in order to arrive at an appropriate 
name for the new building.  Accordingly, it was 

 

Agenda Item 14

109



 

 RECOMMENDED 
 
  that the Director of Operational Services, after consultation with 

the Executive Councillor for the new Headquarters and Information 
Technology, be authorised to determine an appropriate name for 
the new Operations Centre.   

 
3. CONTINUATION OF CHANGES TO CALL CENTRE HANDLING 

ARRANGEMENTS 
 
3.1 The outcomes of a three-months trial of changes to call handling 

arrangements at the Call Centre were presented to the Advisory Group 
by the Acting Call Centre Manager.  The trial comprised – 

 
♦ an increase in operational lines from 10 to 30 and the introduction 

of call queuing; 
♦ the introduction of an announcement to advise customers that 

calls might be recorded for training purposes; and 
♦ the introduction of an announcement, played after 30 seconds, 

asking the customer if they wished to be held in a queue or to 
leave a message. 

 
3.2 Having commended the contribution these arrangements had made to the 

services offered to customers on a day of industrial action during March, 
the Advisory Group 

 
 RECOMMENDED 
 
 that the Cabinet be requested to approve the continued use of call 

queuing as described in the report by the Head of Information 
Management. 

 
4. UPDATE 
 
4.1 The Advisory Group received and noted a report by the Head of 

Information Management on progress achieved in five key project areas 
included within the Customer First programme. 

 
4.2 Progress was reported on the five priority areas indentified by the 

Customer First team as follows – 
 

♦ the roll out of services to the call centre and of EDM to services; 
♦ the implementation of a transactional web site; and 
♦ IT and business analyst input to the Customer Service Centre 

project. 
 

Having also noted improvements programmed over the next 6 – 18 
months, progress on other projects in the programme and performance 
figures for the Centre during June 2006, the Advisory Group requested 
that the Overview and Scrutiny Panel (Service Support) undertake to 
monitor the performance of the call centre on a regular basis. 

 
 
 
 
 

110



 

5. VISIT TO OPERATIONS CENTRE 
 
5.1 The Advisory Group suggested that a seminar and a site visit for all 

Members should be arranged once construction of the Operations Centre 
was underway.   

 
 

Councillor I C Bates 
Chairman of the Advisory Group 

 
 

111



 

  

112



Agenda Item 17

113

By virtue of paragraph(s) 9 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



114

This page is intentionally left blank


